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Group revenue

£17. Obn
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Adjusted profit
before tax

£1,356m

12027 £908m]

£ 1 ,488m

2021 £1.807m
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Operating profit

£1,178m
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Gross investment
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Adjusted operating profit
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Adjusted earnings
per share

131 1p

(200

_z

Basu: earnings
per share

Py
=

Net debt including lease
liahilities

f_“l 764m

: Profit before tax

£1 O76m

12021 £725m
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Financial leverage

0.8 x

2021 0.7




AT A GLANCE

Our operating businesses

Revenue Adjusted operating profit
Our Grocery division employs more than £3,735m £399m
15,000 people and comprises brands which 2021 £3 5331 9091 £2150)

occupy leading positions in markets across
the globe. In the UK, nine out of 10
households use our brands. Our Twinings and
Ovaltine brands are enjoyed in more than 100
countries worldwide.

AB Sugar is a leading producer of sugar and £2,016m £162m
sugar-derived co-products in Africa, the UK, G021 £1 B50m) 2091 1520
Spain and north east China. e T ’ ‘
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AB Agri is a leading international agri-food £1,722m £47m
business operating across the supply chain, 2621 £1 537 2091 FAA)
producing and marketing animal feed, '

nutrition and technology based products

and services.

Cur Ingredients businesses are leaders in £1,827m £158m |
veast and bakery ingredients as well as in (2027 £1 508m) (2051 :
specialty ingredients for the food, human and o
animal nutrition, pharmaceuticat and various |
other industries. '
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Primark is one of the largest clothing retailers £7.687m £756m
in Europe, the largest by volume in the UK 2021 £5 533N (021 £371 1)
and has a growing presence in the US. In T T T '
total, we have 408 stores in 14 countries

across Europe and the US,
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About us

Our values
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See pages 8 and 9 for more on our
values and how we operate.

132,000 54%

of our total workfarce
are vwwomen

employees

53 84%

of our people have
access to an employee
assistance programme

countries operated in,
across Europe, Africa, the
Americas, Asia

and Australia

One ofthe 185

food manufacturing

la rg eSt sites globally

food producers in the UK

84% 54%

of the energy we used
came from rengwables

of the waste* we
generated was sent for
recycling, recovery or
other beneficial use
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Associated British Foods plc Annial B

Group revenue and profit
were much stronger this year
than last, demonstrating that
our businesses have emerged
robustly from the disruption
of the pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT continued

Our commitment to ESG

This ycar the Group continved to make
turther significant and wide-ranging
progress in its environmental, social and
governance activity.

In May we presented to investors the
environmental factors which are most
material for our businesses. With reaard
to greenhouse gas emissions, our fnnns
has been on delivering on cur 2030
commitments, but we are also intent on
achieving net zero by 2050 or potentially
scaner. Some 54% of the Group's total
enegrgy neeads are alreardy met from
renewable sources which are mastly
from bio-mass by-products in our Sugar
businesses; furthermore, we highlighted
that our Sugar businesses provide
co-products that in turn are critical
feedstock for other impaortant industries.

Inflation is most onerous to people on
lower incames. We take the wellbeing of
our people seriously. Across the Group
our businesses are taking steps to
rnitigate wherever possible these higher
living costs, In the UK we have delivered
several initiatives to suppert our pecpla,
These include differentiated salary
increases, so that those on lower
incomes have higher increases, short-
term financial support, benefits hubs
ofiering discounts on goods including
groceries, and other measures. The detail
of this support warics by business arnl
country, 85 we are a dccoentralised group,
but the principles are clear and our
businesses across the world are adopting
a similar approach,

Frogress an kE5G must be owned by
managecmaent at all levels, starting with
the most senior. Effective from the
2022/23 financial year, 156% of the
short-ierm incentive opportunity for the
Chief Executive and Finanece Director will
be linked to ESG priorities including those
that are climate-related.

Looking alead, we receanise thar thare
is likely to be further significant regulation
and legislation from governments to drive
ESG progress and bring transparency fo
related carporate activity Whilst wo will
of course comptly with all new
reguirements, our focus will be on
actions which make the most material
difference.

Our latest Responsibifity Repart is issued
with this Report and it details the large
numboer of actions being taken across the
Group. It can be found on the Group
website.

Board

| have nnly nne instance of succession
planning to report this year, but it is
unusually noteworthy. In July we
announced that John Bason would be
stepping down as Finance Director of the
Group, and from the Beard on 28 April
next year after a long and distinguished
perod of senvice. John took up the post
ot Finance Director in May 1999 and his
tenure hag been marked by claar
dridlysls, exceltent judgement and tireless
commitrnent to the Group. On behalf of
the Board | would like to place on record
our deep gratitude for his exceptional
contribution. | am delighted that we are
retaining John’s experience and expettise
in Primatk where he will became Senior
Advisor and Chairman of the newly
constituted Stretegic Advisory Board
from May next year, In his place we
welcome Eoin Tonge frem Marks and
Spencer Group Plc where he is cutrently
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Strategy
Officer. Eoin was previously Chief
Financial Officer of Greencore Group plc
and so importantly he has experience of
both food and retail industries. He will
jcin the Board no later than February
2023 and | am confident that he will
make a strong contribution.

Executive remuneration

The Remunaration Committee has
carried out its triennial review of the
Group's remuneration policy. The key
change 1s the proposal to replace the
current long-term incentive pian for the
Group's senior management, including
the executive directors, with a restricted
share plan starting in the 2022/23
financial year. Full details of the proposal
are set out in the report of the
Remungiation Committee.

Her Majesty lhe Uueen

On the death of Her Majesty, Georgs
Waeston, Chief Executive, issued the
following statemeant: "t 1s with the
greatest sadness that we note the news
today of the death of Her Majesty The
Oiiean. Her Majesty worked cansistently
0 bring pecples trom ditterent nations
and cultures together and she personified
s0 many of the bast human values. With
husinanaes in A3 countries around the
warld including in 20 Commaonwealth
nations, we at ABF place on record ocur
gratitude for all she has done to promote
a suuse of shared humanity and
purpose.”
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Our employees

In the tirst half of this year our
businesses had 1o contend with
considerable disruption from the
pandemic, and the second half of the
year saw the emergence of high inflation
and volatile prices. | would ke 1o thank
our people for the way in which they
responded to the many challenges of the
year in a fast-changing business
environment, The skills and
protessionalism of our people continue to
impress me hugely.

Looking ahead

The Group continues to face considerable
headwinds from high inflation, particularly
in energy costs, volatile exchange rates
and pressure on consumer discretionary
spending. However, | rernain confident
that the Group has the business model
necessary to deliver a year of resilient
performance with further growth in sales.

We look forward to Primark’s accelerated
rollout of stores, espacially in the United
States, and to further digital development
incitding the launch of the new Click and
Collect trial in stores in the north of
England and Wales. Our Food businesses
contnue to plan to recover rising input
tosts both through pricing and efficiency
improvements, to launch new products
and to invest in brand development.

In a Group as diversified as this, there
are no shortages of opportuniiies:

wa shall continue to invest wheraver
and whenever our return thresholds
can be met.

Michael McLintock
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT o

Operating review
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This year benefitted from higher interest
income compared to last year and other
financial income was higher driven by a
further increasa in the surplus in the
Group’s UK defined benefit pension
scherne. As expected, the Group's full
year effective tax rate declined from
28.1% last financial year 1o 22.2% this
year. As a result, adjusted earnings per
share increased by 4% from 80.1p to
131.1p per share. Basic eamnings per
share were 88.6p, an increase of 46% on
the reported 60.5p per share last year,

There was a cash outflow for the Group
Wis year tndaiily due tu an niciease i
working capilal of suing £750i. The
inLrease itowwurking cepital was driven by
the timing of receipt of Primark autwmn/
winter inventory of £440m in total around
both financial vear end dates, the effect
of inflation across our businesses and,
where necessary, some planned highar
levels of inventory to mitigate potential
supply chain disruption.

As a result, net cash before lease
fiabilities at the financial year end was
f1.8bn, a reduction an £1.9bn at the end
of the last financial year.

The Group remains financially strong with
good cash ganeration and substantial
liquidity and we are announcing this year
a share buyback programme of £5600m.

ESG

We have made ennsidarable prngress in
understancing the envirnnmental fantors
mnst materal tn nor hesinessas Oor
focus is to deliver on our 2030
commitment te reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and we intend to achieve nat
zero by 2050 or potentially sooner. Some
54% of the Group's total energy needs
are already met from renewable sources,
mostly from bio-rmass by-products from
our Sugar and Agriculture businesses,

Qur Sugar businesses produce by-
products that act as critical feedstock for
important industries. We have a clearly
identified pipeline of capital projects, all
of them delivering above our raquired
return on capital employed, and which
will deliver the 30% reduction
commitment in carbon emissions for
Sugar by 2030.

Cur businesses play a crucial role in
providing products to help other
companias and customers reduce their
own emissions. For example, AB
Enzymes has recently launched cold
cellulase products which enable cotton
production 1o take place at iower water
temnperatures and enzymes for the
detergent industry, which enable
consumers 10 wash at lower
1emperatures and reduce their
electricity usage.

We have incorporated in our annual
raport our reporting on the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures
framewaork (TCFD). We have engaged
with the spirit as well as the letter of the
scenario planning that is centrafl to TCFD,
More broadly our undersianding of the
opportunities and risks ahead has been
enhanced by an improvement in our data
collection and analysis. We conducted a
comprehensive risk assessment across
the Group's supply chains which led to a
focus on the most material risks: AB
Sugar, Primark and Twinings. Taking into
account different scenarios for climate
change, we beliave that the risks 1o the
Group are not materiai to 2030. In doing
this work we recognisad that the main
conseguence of climate change for us
will be that we will be affected by a
patiern of more freqguent and more
extreme weather conditions. The effects
of cyclones and severe flooding in llovo,
and the flooding in the eastern part of
Australia, are examples of such events
and our businesses are inevitably already
building on their capabilities to deal with
the consequences of these. Over the
period to 2030 ihere is more confidenca
in the climate change models and hence
the outcomes. Not surprisingly the
variability of outcomes for longer-term
scenarios to 2050 is much greater, and
30 wa use the 2050 data to check our
sense of direction. Cur actions are
focused on the peried to 2030. The
pencfit we have scen fram doveloping
the long terrm scenarios, however, is that
they have added impetus to, and
provided focus for, our businesses’
strategic plans.

Our social commitments femain as
irportant as ever to us. We believe
firmly in the pursuit of a “just transition”
that halances action to protect the planet
with & concern for the welare of our
employees and the people in our value
chain. Pannership with suppliers
hacomes more important than ever in the
face of geopolitical uncertainty and
econamic volatility and enables us to plan
much more effectively for disruption.

Qutlook

As we ook ahead, we expect further
significant input cost inflation, and
ongeing high volatility inevitably has
made forecasting more difficult.

We expect the aggregate profit of our
Food husinesses to be ahead of the
2021/22 financial year. Adjusted
operating profit 1s expected to be well
ahead in AB Suger, and broadly in ine in
AB Agri and Ingredients. We expect
some further margin erosion in Grocery

with significant additional infiation in input

costs which should be recovered through
pricing in the course of the year.
Investment in our Grocery brands will
inutedse willy highe tharketing spend.

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022

We expect Primark sales growth to be
driven by the price increases
implemented for autumnjwinier this year
and those already planned for spring/
summer next year and the increase in
retail seliing space. Input cost inflation is
expected to be significant, with inflation
in raw material and energy costs and in
labour ratss, alongside higher purchasing
costs which have resulted trom the
strengthening of the US dollar against
sterling and the eure. Given a context of
a likely reduction in consumer disposable
income we have decided this year notto
implement further price increases on the
autumnfwinter and spring/summer
ranges beyond those already
implemented and planned. We believe
this decision i1s in the best interests of
Primark, supporting our core preposition
of everyday affordability and price
leadership and supporting market share
growth over the longer term. We expect
Primark’s adjusted operating profit
margin for next year tc be lower than 8%
but looking further ghead, we remain
focused on returning to an adjusted
operating profit margin of some 10% as
commodity prices moderate and
consumer confidence improves.

Finance income Is expected to increase
reflecting higher interest ratas on our het
bank balances. Other financial income
will increase substantially as a resuit of
the further increase in the surplus in the
Group's defined benefit pension
schermas. We expect an increase in the
effective 1ax rate to around 25%, driven
by an adverse change in the profit mix of
the Group and higher UK corporation tax
rates.

QOur outlook remains unchanged.

For the full year, we continue to expect
significant growth in sales for the
Group, and adjusted operating profit and
adjusted earnings per share to ba lower
than the financial year just closed.

George Weston
Chief Executive
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Creating value
together

Our Group strategy and ...applied across our five
devolved operating model... business segments...

Long-term view

Crganic and
acqulsftlon growth

Devaolved
operating model

Entrepreneuriai flair T

ﬁg‘sgciatad
British Foods

Capital discipline

Prudent balance
sheet management

Commitment to
ethical conduct

Sustainable
business practice

For business segment
strategies please see:

Grocery. page 16
Sugar: pago 26
Agricuiture: page 34
il1gtedients: page 42

Retail: page 50
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Our way of operating — entrepreneurial but
atso tinancially prudent and focused on the
fong term — has achieved growth over many
years and creates long-term value for our
shareholders and other stakeholders alike.

...creates long-term value
for all our stakeholders.

Customers

Investors and
shareholders

Employees

Suppliers

Communities

Governments




Associated British Foods is a highly diversified group with a
wide range of food and ingredients busingsses, more than
40 well-known grocery brands, and our flagship retail brand,
Primark. We have a strong social purpose: to provide safe,
nutritious and affordable food, and clothing that is great
value for money. We are a glebal organisation with 132,000
employees, operations in 53 countries, suppliers in many
more, and customers in more than 100 countries. More than
half of our senior leaders are non-UK citizens, representing
26 different nationalities between them.
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Delivered through our devolved operating model
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Read more

about Grogcery's
perfarmance and
brands in action
this year, including
how Acetum is
Lrannlnig Sopeacily,

on pages 14 to 23.
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Read more about
Sugar’'s performance
and the development
of our business this
year, including how
we produce valuable
co-products, on
pages 24 to 31.
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o

Read more about
Agriculture’s
petrfermance and
the expansion of

our business this
year, including

the acquisition of
Greencoat, on pages
3210 39.

R ' r " o
Read more about
ngredients’

performance and

cusioner-centt e cuiture. Tive readth

andd lewve cychicality of our progucts,

oL 1er base and appiications ! h
provide commercist tesilience Ouw the innovation in
. ) ) our busin his
strate: aor groweth both threugn pusiness t
2 o year, including the

development of our
sourdough product
portfolic, on pages
40 to 47.

ENRION,

e anoacalions

Read more about

our performance

and investment

in Primark this

year, including the
transformation of our
digital capabilities,

on pages 48 to 59.

anabi'y proc

fewd v osus
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

We use key performance indicators (KPls)

HOW we to measure our progress in delivering the

successful implementation of our strategy and

traCk prog ress to monitor our performance

Financial
Group revenue Adjustad operating profit Adjusted earmings per share
{Ehn} {£m) (pence}
o ] e
. A "_l I ) s :
173 0 s s i is 13 23 21 1.3 i s Z1
Sevenee §armessure of busiress growth Aopisten prubl eng ean s Bas s ovls The Group’s argznic growth obective aims
Constant currency comparisons are alsa vsed a cons'stent mdicator of perforrance year- to delwver stesdy growth 'n earnings over the
to provae greanen Ca ty o perforiasce cr-year ard are aligned with management long term. Ad usted esmrings per share is a bey
mcentive large s marsgentent rcantive measurg.
Dividends per share Return on capital employed Gross investment
{pence) {%) (Erm)
' e ¥ o , :
p] “ C o
) E” il
" le | 20 21 D n 1% 17 Iy i 14 B L]
The Group's orgaric growth objacive aims to Tnis measure monitars the level of return A sre ot e coreTi  ant
deliver steady groveth in dvidends ower the gaenerated by the Group's investment in term deve'oprrant of the busmess.
‘ong term, In 2027 this included (~e payment Its operating assets. 1115 also a key part of
of 2 13 80p special dviderd. management incentive targels.
Cash generation Net cash before lease liabilities Financial leverage
(Em) (Em}
.3 o B N
Tird w - f - I -
- i = A G
- b Py S e
8 e 15 0 21 B [ 20 Ea L it i 21
This meas. e monitors the Group's This nreasurg 1s anly proviced since the
liou'dity and cap:tal structure and s wsed to implerentetion of IFRS 18, This measure
calculate reties assooiated wth the Grotp's romters the Group’s lirangal strernigth o
barking covenants ersurg lorg-term nanceal statiaty.
The 2018 figure 15 given on an IFRS 16 pre
forma basis
f cud PERRLN IR R
st T \ re ot ; - z=1 ot [T

s
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Non-financial

Lost time injuries and lost time
injury rate (%)

= -
i
S et
- T
Y i
i g
S A
e g Y] 21

A measure of the Group's management of
v nes it acd sefew of s evplovees - e
namiber of lost tme injunies resulung from a=
zcodent ansing out of, or in connection weth,
work aouviues and the proport'en of the full
Tme egaivalent workforce expenancing alost
TIMNE IMUry

~* Read more on page 77

ABF Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions

(000 tonnes of CO,e}

Xl

Tra amount of ABF Group Scope 1 and 2
greentouse gas enissions

~* Read more on page 74

Primark selling space and number of
countries of operation

(000 s ft)

Z

Trese twom ures represect 1ne retsl space
growveth and breadth of Primack’s presence

~? Read more on pages 50 and 52

Number of employees, highlighting
percentage of women in warkforce

Measure of the sca'e and diversty of our
cperations, Refecting all ermployess i the
Group witn a contract of emp oyment, whether
fuil-time, patt-time, contractor or seascral
worker and righighting the proportion of gur
employees that have disclosed ther gender as
fernalefwvoman in I'na weth tne local legislation

~¥ Read more on page 78

Primark Scope 1,2 and 3
GHG emissions**

{000 tonnes of CO,e)

PN

oy

iy Z1
The amount of Primark’s Scope 1, 2
znd 3 greenhouse §a5 €MiIssions

—* Read more on page 53

Proportion of clothing sales (units}
containing recycled or more
sustainably sourced materials

%)

Srirack Cares products are assessen 4gamst
Provatk's protocols regaoirg min mam
conien: levels wineh wiil vary by matenal
These protocols Fave svolved dunng the yvear
wth products assessed aganst orctocols
axisting at the date of producton

2 Read mare on page 53

Number of farmers trained in Primark
Sustainable Cotton Programme (PSCP)

. i
. = EN
~r oy
g E
G 5 . i
1 14 o0 21

This inclades farmers that ave cumrently being
tiainec and those that have conpletea training
Lnider the ocrogramme

—> Read more on pages 56 and 89

Total energy consumed and
proportion from a renewable source

{Gwh)
23,000 .
B2 B 0w
20000 by a oy b
Y & i L
oy ~l =
000
0,002
L300
o w18 20 21 22

Total energy used and the proporton of whien
is froni rerewab'e scurces Renewwabia
energy 1s ‘nanty gergrated on cur sites
fram frcaenic sources.

~% Read more on page 75

Total water ahstracted

(million m}

LER
088
iLv8
a8

Th = rmigasure noludes water suppled by thro
part s o oy loca walter resources

~% Read mote on page 76
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Operating Review

Grocery

(3 OCENY F8VER LRSS
VLA neret g fron
sasas taken du
“he yedr-or-
*he last quarer.,
4

2\ GENT N

s unceraay A‘S \:“

Toy

or r‘r‘.o.‘?l:y oy th ﬁq
Loostr Pation and reveeues rosult
from sLusenasnt proe a

g

ad v ront nued
witrerlard,

Far * Migaria and a reic
1o stronger outof-home consun pton
and fnoos e sa'es. Twinings sales
rﬂf wted g returm t O meore narmal ovels

of demand aiter the COVID Gokidonns of
lost yedr ardv.ere supported by fLrther
new proguct launches in the w’wwess
caiegory. T O\:um' crofit
& -mLfJ sorne f4r of ERP daveoor
sin g OP of the
PO ocland 5T CN SONTILTRTION Of
C.Ra1T0N COSTS WY 3 L\L-ud LML NG
arangomant,

PiTe arn ‘;,\ v

tanat AD ‘uanJ

As Coot f atior outnaced phoing.
YWestnu Jer‘ch:cu frem e cant

mprovenent nresiaurant
away rade SH‘E‘% :n &cetwn‘

Vl:—';ZT-

i ca ity weds foo

Crudn ¢ ney

Revenue growiin gt A0
with the beredit of

f

over mo i
nifset a
velumes fro

=
Baling volumes have rammared highe
than pre-COVID evels Frofit at Stretas,
cur ont venture inile Ll_, weas strenaly
3¢ dhiven [y SUong procLrer &l
znd effective price negotators

i Food‘ i i\ istrabia
< T“ EI\J




QPERATING REVIEW | GROCERY continued

When Associated British argy, ant deve’ H»M rars Aen and
Foods acquired Acctum in S f:ﬂ ‘l‘;l "Ed:’,';:m'e
2017 we proudly added the e a0 o he Mazstt oran
world's leading producer of g e vfore Foav :

certitied Balsamic Vincgar

of Medena PGl to an already e b;mm: .
strong portiolio of grocery cular wm for the soig!
staples. The acquisition of ‘ S proceet, winch corm e
Acetum illustrates perfectly ha‘; o e s ”“{”:
our strategic approach to f agc ng - lequEen A oider %
buildirg our brands as well ' '

as the benefits of ABF's O acnus tun Anetu Aready bad
decentialised vperating g o ”‘l:‘ib
model and the fact that

we celebraie the

independence and distinct

cuitural identitiss of our

individual husinesses,

g ’3 |.\’,:'\e
= of this

ShWLT agenda

and bnild ~o 1he Nazze
qed

3 oey oo e et
med gy

47-"1

=0 Mazzett

rRCogrised

ars 0 e
woard andd

nser. and

only ever b rlL.de fwn ! he
WD ngrs 2. Grepe M

VY e Vinegar,

i At of Diessing '*‘Lh
U\ Austroha and Gernary
to Bo mimiuren in vweood . .3 - B E;n@

The new oak barrels
at Acetum’s new
facility in Cavezzo,
Modena, Haly
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N WARM K AROWATIC | vy

Founded by food enthusiast
Sam Jacobi, the ideas
behind the Al'Fez brand were
heavily influenced by his
childhood growing up in the
Middie East.

Ploture g bustlhing soux in the hea
5 Arab coarte: ) the 1970s.
Az acrdd, bvould expenence zll of the
colourful arermas and lastes of simple
vel amarngly delicous focus. vl
rever forget sittng m one ¢f the many
cadiiural cales cr‘Jf\wg freshly ]
|ru mm :

A

\Gl*

Jorn

=

AdFez nwlveh translates fraom Aratec as
ne Hat peeas crhicie!ly fauncled in 2001
470 veThin 8 $00rt gRace o e vds
din seve -hrowen shops o
Lot ard the surounc o 5
ACLred e brand n 20

OreneTg O

Sonorescont

N che ot
|

nA o
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& Golden brand is
H\/I‘IOHVITICL (5 with crumpets
for Australians, Golden has
been producing crumpest
rounds since 1958 and was
acquired by ABF in 1837.
We quickly began to expand
our product range to include
nikelets, similar to a scotch
pancaks, and pancakes.
Encouraged by our succeass,
wea continued to innovate

in stthgequent decades,
introducing mini pikelets,
flavoured pikelets, sliced
snacking loaves and, most
recently in 2018, watfles.

noday our prodacts are stocked ov
ing rwr..\\ s e are proued o be
cne of Ausirana’s me

Strong ;" e
walf of -
3o ”"r1 wre dl
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About Sugar
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OPERATING REVIEW | SUGAR ¢ «;

British Sugar’s bio-refinery
process at our Wissington
plant

28 Associated British Feeds ple

Our culture of innovation

to improve manufacturing
processes and make the most
of our raw material sits firmly
alongside our belief that there
is no such thing as waste.
Today, we operate highly
efficient bio-refineries that
enable us 1o take our natural
feedstock, sugar beet and
sugar cane, and turn them
into a range of products.
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COPERATING REVIEW | SUGAR cuniinvend
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We run some of the most
sophisticated and efficient
production processes in
the food industry. But that
capabitity counts for little
without a supply of two
agricultural crops: sugar beet | Catacs pr
and sugar cane. And the 10 QU ‘
viability of these crops each E;*ﬁCi‘ﬂ‘“:;T:”ﬁ“H“l“‘éf:df“
year depends in turn on our ATANIEE 10 PrO-ECt MIBHMES ag
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At lllovo we believe there is
a significant opportunity for
growth as we increase our
domestic and regional sales.
Accordingly we aim to make
our branded sugar pre-packs
accessible and affordable for
all consumers, in both urbhan
and deep rurat markets.
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Primark was founded with
the aim of making great
quality clothing aftordahle to
everyone, We have stayed
true to that core principle as
we have extended our offer
beyaond clothing into new
product areas over the years,
inciuding beauty, accessories
and homeware.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

o

Financing of the Group has
been strengthened over the
last financial year.

Group performance
Group revenue was weil ahiead of last
~,-'ear on 8 reporied basis at £1760 In

ur Fooc busingsses, higher revenueas
fp.‘@ctm price actons and, in somie
businesses, volumes increases, in
parlicu \dr ADr- Ingred e“‘S i Primask,

rues weia si antly hglhes
‘emed the emiergence frems the
mie dunng thig fast finencial yvear
in o markats Adusted crparating profit
T ine Group of £1,435ny was 427
ghead of 251 financial vear on a reporec
L‘FISH The adiu”t d operating profit s
terved by ad Lsting the foilowr g iterms
c -J staiuiony o')erat
v 1Isaten charg
s, profitg less

of non-current aseets, i COSLS,
amortisation of acgaired v fair
value adjustraents and exce twona‘ Hems

income statement this year included
P Dp-' ral charge of £206m
p SIng Ron cash wertedoy
assets in Primsrk Germany, £77m
agamnst property plant and eguipmen
and £13dm agamnst right-of-use qesets,
\f‘je. Tirst entered the Germar maket
ZOU and ach'avad very hugh sales
€50 our early slores. We then
qoened ziores i many cily centres wvith
1ail selling spa chargs than
the average “or the sest of the Prirmart
CHoweovar, saes densities geclirad
ater years up 1o the 2018 tirancial
B ﬂ.ller weaker than expectsd trading
i ine secend haif of this financial year
we consider that & atrohc; recOvery
r‘f"ﬂ 1hese SG\pS densities is uniit ey,

SEs N

fv' relaisrs. Aad LO"SGQUGF‘C& the
d sccunied caghflow of our revised
forecast far cur German stores reguires
the recognition of an mpairment w
has been charged i these financia!
statemants, We remain commitied to
ourl loyal custorne s in this impaoriant
Furcpean market and we are nowvy
reviewsng opt:ons 1o 1eturn our busiress
ir Gaermany 1o long-ierm profilabil vy
These options inciude the poteruzl to
ot m'wre t7e retal seiling space by sture
as wa'l as reviewwna the footprnt of the
ove al store pontfoln, The Group's total
tax chargs \'r-c‘uo‘ £53m exgepticnal

sz
charge of which tJO yreates 1o the
cogmtncn ufz ¢
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future,

Earnings and shareholder
returns
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FINANCIAL REVIEW =

aTie

Alt%*mug” cireta g pohit inoeased “‘-'5
TiraneEl v S the et cash oflowe fron
ooeratinng aoine 5 Lm"‘\ rler e
hy £260r

0 £1,153m this year. The
nagest contributar 1o this reguct on
thie £770m e ease in workig capitai
merzase N awcrking capitai show'd
be expecied 0 an nflationary economy
but the sca e of the .norease —his yoar
Was Lnus £10 0 of this increzse
related Lo the wving of rgcept of Prinar
autumpfvanter inveritory at bath finar oal
year ends. £200m of imventory arrived
ater than the end of last firancia! year
as a result of suppiy chain disreptions
and £220m related o the planred
Ler receIpt s year end to ave e
higher freignt costs Cenral expenditus
Erur\'éa“mj by £142m compared to the
w@irly driven by our Feord
2 ifsre ara a nombar
soavhich are aer (i\\'d\,
p:to\ exp encn eflectad
= 1 e nend 1ec!‘- noogy
and the aLtorration of TOUSES.
s trarcal year "r mart has focused
on puld’ g s pipskne of new stores
Incresse  new slore capial
nznd ure will pe evident in the nevy
ancal year Cash spent on acquisiors
mereesed by £97m 11 ivs Tihanc’ar year
4% ACYU S 10N CoLoTunities retumed vath
tre urg of COVID-related restrictions,

and sc an

Acquisitions and disposals

=hcl o0 acquisitions th's finzrcial
50,

T2 sn
27 veas £

aril ¢f these was the
Ms” soquisition of Fytawn
cialty ingredients

ance and I1av Rrosd m,lng

ingradiers
industey, Fyt

o Q=elar, wpp:emems
a broadens the producs
pardono and bt es of ABF

: ients o serve the phermacentocs,

nuttiticeai and focd market sectors
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2 UK-based amima' suppiement 2

care business which inciuded thg
wadsly recoanised equing supiHament
brand, NAF, 10 suppaert its expans:on

i ntermaticinal armezl cutnbion
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tha noreal seasonakity of (e Growp’

aah-llcws, netl cazn reduce

hali of our fnarcial year, rairy drven by

srory build i our ‘;uoe" s ness
X M.nef:*’ mrd, As a

The Group's
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deciease nnat cash. Return o4 aveage
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: oy thaz year to 1A.0% eompared

=)

Wit § 85 iast year and weas mainly
driven by the gvprovament at Primark,
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The Group's committed Revoiving Credit
Facility, due to expire in 2023, was
renewed in June. The new facility is
for £1.5bn, up lrom £1.1n previously,
is now free of pertermance covenants
and runs for five years with two 1-ycar
extension options. Our inaugura! public
bond of £400m, 2.6 per cent due 2034
was launched in February, During the
year £221m of private placement notes
were repaid with the remaining £87m
due March 2024,

Al the year end, the Group had total
committed borrowing facilities of £1.7bn,
comprising £1.5bn provided under the
RCF, £0.1bn of US private placement
notes and £0.1bn of locat committed
facilities in Africa.

Cash and cash equivalants totalled
£2.1bn 8t the year end. Total liquidity
increased during the year and is
now £3.4bn.

Pensions

The surplus ol the Group's defined
benefit pension schermies increased
materially at the financial vear end to
£1,314m compared 1o last year's £433m.
The UK scheme, which accounts for 90%
of the Group’s gross pension assets, was
in surplus by £1,366m (?0721 - £633m}.
The increase in the UK pension surplus
was driven by ¢ siyodficenl nreass in
hand yiclds, placing a lower valug on the
definad benefit obligations, marginally
offset by higher inflatlon expectations.
The pension surplus for the Group at the
end cf the previcus financial year resulied
in an increase in other financial income
this linabwial year and the increose in this
financial year end wili reault in a further
increase In the next financial year.

The iast triennial vaiuation of the UK
scheme was underlaken at 5 Aprii 2020
and deterrmined a defich of £3020:.

The date of this valuation was just after
the introduction of the first COVID-19
restrictions and the adverse reaction

of the financial markets. We agreed

a recovery plan with the trustees, but
no deficit recovery payments were
made given the recovery in the financial
rmarkets over the next year. The next
trignnial valuation 15 duc at 5 April 2023
and is currently expected to reveal a
surplus. The Campany is consulting with
ihet hiuniees on both new investmerdt
anrid funding strategies and will alsc agree
the Company contribution as part of this
valuation procass.

It is currently envisaged the Company
will be able to reduce a very significant
proportion of the employer contributions
required for both the defined hensfit
and defined contripution sections of the
scheme.

The charge for the year for the Group's
defined contribution schemes, which
was equal to the contributions made,
amounted to £87m {2021 —~ £81m). This
cornparad with the cash contribution to
the defined banefit schemes of £38m
(2021 - £42m).

Non-financial metrics and TCFD

We have now carried out a
comprehensive review of the climate
risks and cpportunities most material
to the Group and this led to a focus on
Primark, AB Sugar and Twinings. Key
risks were assessed using scenario
analyses. In ¢ur Annual Report we have
set out our progress in accordance with
the reguirements of TCFD. We do not

see TCFD as simply a disclosure exercise

and our businesses have been actively

angagad in the analysis which has helped

them confirm the actions they need

to take to either adapt to or mitigate
the impacts of climate change, and
consider opportunities where value can
b created. e

Wa algo regegnize the impartafica nt
arrurate nan-financial metrigs 1o enable
stakeholders to understand oyr £5G
performarice. We continue to ov
the role of Finance in non-financial data
bringing skills historically applied to
ensure the accuracy of financial data

to non-finannial data This year we also
increased the niimber of metncs subject
1y axternal imited atsurdice.

BEIS

In redatian ta the Government's
response to the BEIS White Paper:
Restoring Trust in Audit and Corporate
Governance, which was published in
May 2022, we are nearing completion
of a Group wide programme, supported
by external coensultants, to formalise our
approach and to provide a2 documenied
trail 1o support our assessment of the
effectiveness of key controls.

New accounting policies

The following accounting standards and

amendments were adopted during the

year end had no significant impact on tha

Group: .

= Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts — Extension of the Temporary
Exemption frem Applying IFRS 9

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases
{COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions
heyond 30 June 2021}

Amendments to IFRS 9, [AS 39, [FRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 - Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2. Financial
authorities have announced the

timing of key interest rate benchmark
replacements such as LIBOR in the UK,
the US and the EU and other territories,
with remaining USD tenors expected to
cease in 2023

John Bason
Finance Director
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Employees

The Group employs 132,000
people. Qur people are central 1o
our success.

= Heal: sarety
+ Deversity and oclus oo
« Erngagenernt and developmen

» Dradl = Notee boards
* intranst « ~calth

s MNesssictters and Safet

« Sarvays

 TrE71any .

of Man
gement
Horcein gecordance with
s e Governancs Code,

d s ek onogrsunng viat

: voe' of gach workforee s ! eard
ar Soard lovel - pease see Riclhand’s
teron thos onpzges 10 and 111
Ag wa\l as Richard Reid mecting
wath empio sction of
busiressas, sach busiress division
also spetifically ~eports to the Soara
o wu.hn ce Cng L—':m Bl
thi=t anvister. Tre Board also receives
weo specfic updates each yvear on
rogress o werkfornce engage nent.

Richard Rewd, as desigra
Ewacutioe Dractor for e
e i 'l e e

wwes trom g sel

The Group Safety and Environiment
Faragar provides ing Zeard vt
updates on safety trerds ard

eSS aganst key per'ormance
nanted oy pdates

f TEsecitve anc Finance
D\rau;t(‘l contrved o engage waith
Company enmw'oyres at the corccate
centre through vriusl town ba
covering ssues ruclh as busmess
cnddates aro ESG opics.

_:..,, e E'i‘ [S S S : - v 05
which include details of some of the
ouicomes from workforce engagement.

See also pages 77 1o BO.

Suppliers

As a diversified international
Group, we have many complex
supply chains.

SIDE SOLICNa
N qustainzhibiny

oface orvituad

g

from vt
requlan y report Te T
bay relztonshipes ard
sunuiers ether as pae
TUs ness updates o H\., Board or
1rouah repors o the
Finance Di”"(‘TuI’

=5 of key mattars or projects o
eferd include:

F><L.r1 u'e
el o the Board veas |

the Primark sugsy chan, mcluthing
ahLpdate on the Pnmare Sustaable
Cotton araimire (P5CY),
= cig tzl srategy ard the UL T

Collect tralin Fromark, ard
= nrodarn slavery aoo hums an
rgh reluding approval of the
P.f"‘r')-_ n 3Idve|y and Hurren
Traif cling Statemant.

Sick ard

-¥ See further details on the PSCP on
page b6. See page 54 for details on
working with suppliers on the Primark
digital strategy. See pages 72 to 73 for
details on other work with suppliers in
our supply chains.

Associated British Foods plc &

el Evocutive

Customers/Consumers

The buyers of our safe, nutritious and

affordable food, and clothing that is
great value for money.

rd 2ale progLals
for money

brlity of oroducts
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mgluaing tre UK Click &

> See further details on the decision to
launch the UK Click and Collect trial an
pages 67 to 68.

v Codect trial
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Communities and
the envirnnment

Supporting society and respecting
the environment are two of the key
ways we live our values and make
a difference.

* Clrrate change mitigauon
and adantaton

Natural resoorcss and

Cezch ng and training programimes
Comrrilr ty grogiammaeas

and schemas
« D s with NGGs and other expert
nrogrannes and schemnes

'e;_o" m rm f-ll: Bm d on

u

. RS nsk as
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VEAr, v Q, consider ¢l'mrate
anacts and rsks
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dir2ct manufagtirng Qperators

tne Director of Legal Senvices and
Compary Se cla.y and the Group
Cerparate RF“ ns'hb wTy Director ai's
piesent to the Bo 3rd on the breadar
Cer; sponsbinty isgaes hat
il l‘s\,(‘ﬁd 0. rd ert Man gls!

coemanors eq, o the s

o}

~¥ See pages 72 to 76 for further details of
our work in respect of communities and
the environment and pages 83 to 93

for our Ciimate-refated Financial
Disclosures (TCFD).
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Shareholders and
institutional investors

The Company has a mix of individual
and institutional shareholders,
including bondhalders, whase

views are valued.

. R Tient

raced, perforntance

turn o
ingss anag f,
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.
ED
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- See further details on page 112, which
includes details on this year's annual
general meeting

ghts

Governments

The Group is impacted by changes in
laws and public policy.

.
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Principal decisions

neﬂd ' ensure that the

there was a
conseqlences of decis’'ons were “he
rignt thing for promoing the long-
term success of the Corrpany, as
veil as havirg regatd 10 maintaining
a reputation for hgh stardards of
Susness conduct

Some examples are provided . this
section of priecipal decisions that
wale taken duning the year and
how stakenolosr views were taken
rto account ard impacted on

thase decisions

Decision to pay a final dividend
and a specizal dividend in
January 2022 and an interim
dividend in July 2022.

Which stakeholders most affected?
Jnstitutongl Invesions

» Sharaeholde;

Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact

on decision-making

As at Movember 2021, aif of cur Primar<
SlOres w OpET aURIN, WETR sy
free of irading restrictions and the Food
bueingsses were tradimg:
ur cetanty arcund fuiare cash flowes vwas
erably cwwer ther the VLS year
although the possio ity of furti-er traong
Engle cou'd not be ruled out. We
proposed a firal divedend of 20,50

shara whiclh, together wath the 1nte
dpad in Jay 2021 of 6 Z2p ne
stare, made asotal of 26 71 par share
‘or tho year, which was three t mes
coverea Dy the adjusied earmnings ner
shara of 80 1p for the vear, in line wit
plesoL s practice,

COnst

ThaGen

Ve PECISSTY N
tracing acrass ik activit 2a gnd

ily efle LT
aned 'educuon n

o

o{ 13,89 Der sk re.
ameaunt of th s special dividend sue

that, taken wath the Lrel dividend, LhP
agc'recaie eqguated o the finat dovidenc

cf 34 39 per share paid o respect of the
2019 fimancial yaar wihich had been our
higlhast ever fing! div-dend r_:-\*d was based

on tre Groun's pre-COVID profitantity.

in Apcil 2072 soiered an
ntenm doy derd of 13 8p per snare,
Comsiderations ledd ng 1 105G
decigions, ncluding the anrount of thesa

dmviderds, L(\o\ HT(! ARC0 older
and imvestor * 0
Phely lomg-
decisicns & CeCSIoN 1o de ese
d\u dends factored 1 e et cash

csiior before lzase nabii ol ke
Lmup of £1 @hn at the 2021 yvear end and
of £1.5bn at the 2022 haf year

Decision to launch an inaugural
public bond.

Which stakeholders most affected?
¢ Sharcholdors/inettutiorat invesicrs

= Sipphers

Consideration of stakehaolder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making

The events of 2020 and 2021
demcrstrated the |mptur"-ic= of
suffcient finarca’ Lrees and cradit
ath to et op al'onal chalierges
wmwr uﬂ[j ro fO( us o .m?-.lv

i T S
22 0 anr ouloed aal

[ EAGE:n pLblc bend, 2,50

VN
funding base.

ccessful 'zunch of the puly'c
sif ed the Group's scurce

of funding ano 2xtendad the duration

of our poiroveings, runing alongside

the Revorving Credit Facihiy which weas

aanced dunng the course of the

cial year. This enhanced our aguidity

and supported e continued mvestmers

fcr growvesh in e businesses

£
I

As part of the process and deces wn-
Mmak g r respect of the bono issue,
work g weth heokrurnesns, roadsr'-ow 3
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Nvesions e hielp nelormne H‘U;cat ve
nnemng hasea on live mnvestor feedhacs
aamecately before dzoiding ard
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g,

Decision to launch a Primark
Click and Collect trial.

Which stakeholders most affected?
+ CrLetomers/Corsumers

Employsas

« Commanitias/Envirarimant
Supplers

+

Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making
FaollowIng 17e Gecision fo mvest
ading di g ia L,HI\O Iy T
S0k JL. w2021, SEVS A LG Tve
werreachon 1o llle launc™ of
eve website inthe UKk Aprn
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1o the wensite, The rew Uk weaosite
shiov cased many more products than
previousy and, in rasponso to cear
customer demand, offered the ability 1o
check sleck avallability Dy stere s that

a marks
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Decision to expand Primark’s
presence in the United States,
France, Italy and iberia,

Which stakeholders most affected?
Customers/Consimears

» Emn'oyees

« Sunclhers

Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making

Onre of the davers of sales qro\mh in
F-mrarz .= sellng spacs eaparson. We

announced In ch“m ser 4021 & planto

'Jd'd net 0.5 7
e 20231/22 fmg
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Decision to set up a Primark
Strategic Advisory Board.

Which stakeholders most affected?
» Customears/Consumers

« Employess
» Sharenoidersfingtiiut oral

rwestors

Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making

o Juiy 2022, wee announced the
to actebnsi a Primiark Stratey ¢ Advisory
wehovail! pross de exters
"o Paul Ma'cnn 't P
cand to
e busine

Taam as

Rogartz

e

clwa'recn
ying dosvn &8 F nance Dires
pany alire erd of Apnl 2023,
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SV A goyermss
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repert ng refaticnship with the Company
wlrerman uretiangad,
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el
inreportant aregs such
chain, and proviong

Decision to hold ESG Day 3.

Which stakeholders most affected?
nstitutonal ¢

Consideration of stakeholder
views/interests and impact on
decision-making

Folowing on from the seres of ESC
rwveston events started in 20217 to Letter
art.oulate oor values and actions in ne
SQ space N nge to fe@d from
=370r8, 8 Tord v

S

18 .’.”:dy’ 20 sed on
he most natenal er

fzrlors 2oross 3 r
1 the Group.

(el

i person and

rthe e,

The event was
Was aso hroadeast
Presematisy

m:jar:v SIE ‘rmﬁr'y,

h QLW, )
nsita- ity Director

Group Coporale
and Director of 5 stainabil ly and
Extorna Affa s for UK Greasry, The
wpes covered ncuded guvetnance
znd strategy, GHG emiss.oens ard

iert, ard b odiversity ard
fon.

¥
SCOSYSIEM Droies

Eelnrs ban e vity 10 ashk
tons riur g the event on 18 May
hizn 400 emiployezs

5 and acress the Groun
tedtoatiend A sshsaquent
cedforemp’

?c.re’: ht( [



RESPONSIBILITY

Invested In
our future

2022 has been another
challenging year, but one
thing has remained constant:
our commitment to operating
responsibly at all times.

Our purpose s to provide sate, ratnious
and affordable ‘oed, and clothing that s
great value for moray. n doing these
thags wveell, e knesw we me do ng good,

heiping 0 mzke nulions of peonie’s

Ve hve and breathe cur values

Ti-ey guide ou behaviour end help s
delrver 'orgeterm banefits ‘or our people,
menunitees, cuslomaors and

the envircrimeant.

These do not replace 2ach business’s
o valuss, hut rather cotisoligats and
S el e the st comnron themes

‘ound dcross the Gioup.

Uur values are:

Respecting everyoane’s dignity

We strive 1o protect the dignity of
everynnae within and beyond cur
operanans, sothat the peopie who
ma-e our products {eei sale, respected
anc included

Delivering with

rigour o
From the producis £ /,;,
- o
we make 10 the G S
» . ]
S %,

resources we tely an
and support the people
W WOTK WITh, we are &veays
learning and ncorporatirg better
practices. ACross our Lusinesses,
we are partnerng with industry

I 3 . -

lhe higrest standards.

Acting with integrity

Wie proudly sromaote and protect

acultuie of trust, feirmess and

accauntability that puts athics fast

Frowm farms and lzctores nght through
to oir hoararaom, we are commtied

to eimibedding Irtegrity into
K gvery aclion.

< Associated
Britich Foods

Progressing
through
collaboration
s We work with cthers
. -“f‘:% to leverage our glohal

expertise for ocal uood.,
Threugh coilaborat-on
. L o
including ron-covernmental
arganisations (NGOs), we are working

anlon 1 address

sart oeires i the -

T o

value chain valle chains

-

pronused actions - nour supply chan asc operat
and threugh our products — fone the basis of “ne foli
perfarmance reporing sections.

Our operations

* Focusing on climate
change

* Making finite
resources go further
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RESPONSIBILITY condinued

Our suppliers

together weth our suppl
from *arge businessss 1o
smaliholder farmens, we
are worting nare 1o
mere equitabie, &th
sustainabie supply

544,000

lives improved through
Twinings’ Sourccd with
Care programme

252,800

farmers trained in the
Primark Sustainable
Collon prosgraneg

(PSCP)?

2,400

Primark supplier factory
audits conducted

We are cuttmg carbon
2rm.ss oNs In our operati
igking them more erergy-

T S0uCes
uch as water vnimere Har
ways 1o reducs the noact of
SEMVING GUT CUSTOME’S

¢

bl

54%

of ihe energy we uscd
came from renewables!

929GWh

of energy generated
and exported from our
operations; equivalent

b the glectiicity used
' by 300,000 UK houses

84%

of operational waste
was sent for recycling,
reuse or other bereficial

use

QOur businesses aim to make
a lasting contribution to
society and the environment.

Our people:

" Our reople dirve CUr success,

and in a woild thatc changing
fast, they vall nced
10 help us shaspe h
We contnue to
deepenina thair undorstancimg
of sus i they can
act to drive our business
forward. We benctit trom their
doceroo talont ane are ahway s
weork ng 1o ensure therr
safety, nealth and wcllbeing
rSimains aur griorty ard that
they can come to wor every

cwy seiliz
L chenge.
n

they fect ircludan

132,000

pecople employed

36%

of senior management
are women

84%

of all employees
across the Group have
access to an employee
assistance programme
(EAP)

Our products:

We are united by our purpose
to provide sale, nuniticus and
s ordable foed, and cotnng
that is greel value Tor money

500,000
tonnes

. of COLe avnided

through the use of
E10 potrol containing
biocethanol from
Vivergo

45%

of clothing sales {units)
containing recycled

or more sustainably
sourced materials.

89 million

Kingsmill 50/50 range
‘healthier white” loaves
baked and distributed
by Allied Bakeries
across the UK



Nen-financial reporting
requirements
The Compares At 2006 requies

the Connany 1o di
fnanoai reparing

Anrual Report and ,L{c(‘c_mﬂ!s_

Accordingly, the disciosies requund in
the Company's ¢ on-fingncial mformanc
S‘a:emer‘l can be found on the fol owirg
ceges N the Strategic Report (o are
reorporatad into ive Stratagic Renort oy
ftfufef ceior th?GP pUTpDses rom

formiation on oy
pages 77 to 8O

emiployces

< iformetion un divelesy
pages 7 sno T,

FBroery and
01,
.3k

up Palicy

. raticn 07 Cur seoroach o qumar
ghts ipages 72 an

v atermiation L0 socal mattsrs ipages
72,73 and 81} andg

. Lo SN olr
envorommental Maragement
mages 73w uo, 820

=2 Further information on these can also be
found in our 2022 Responsibility Report and
our series of ESG Insights.

Further Environmental,
Social and Governance (ESG)
disclosures

Thes yezdr, 10 hetter support our
stakehols seding of eur
Dproach 1o

G

t\*f‘ nost

QOur ESG
onl'reines

fer more detaled

cerformance data
Cur ESC s

s10hts pro\zide z
informat

ke ccmrwtmer
approach, .J"rf(,m an

o tonal

e ardi ctof

c
ABF and cur bhus resso

YWe encagea Ernst & Young tEY) 1o
prov de indeperdent nited assur
ovel the 24 envirerme: t and sa?t
b2l for the year ended 21 Ju'

ar
s,

Trere 15 ase further inforvauc™ on
weebsita al waenw abl oo ufreapars
winch neLdes our currce
responsilty reports, our Viodern Sla
Statement and our climate, water 2rd
orests repoits to CDH

Engaging with stakeholders
We snpsioy 132,000 0 ;J 2 ACr0ss
sperations - 83 LOLI’\U\ s, and cur =oaiy
sans that cur acivilies rmatter (o, o7

MINEct N, Many peco.e
~et OQurreperiirg s roer
de &l stakehalders with an

overy.avy of our 3o; Jr@f‘(_.h to address:

goLEITdnea 138Ues

sLt our approach
emant and soecifi
:r cen be fouend on pages
ninial Repot.

velwe enasge
ehoder gooup
L SOVEIIMIE
eastors Also as pait of daly

andd threugh

s

2 gRallT
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the Workioree D\LE"
The WD ams fo imnrove ¢ porate
tansnzrency and accooniabilty on
ssues Ve are mtne p u:c %5
G TESDOMSE T 18 S1ai0

Society and supply chains
The Grr_m,-p : 'Wd our busmn
with a ~ur-ler of crgan
ssues gound hums
e Corpoerate Hunan
ICRHREL Fical Trading Iniliatve (ET1:
%:‘.d KrowTheChain, Cur ren-Retal

;s w‘ aleo co:laboiate win

wrengh Sedex (Suoaolier Ethis
o AINM-PROGRESS.

. flaas ness-evel engagenient
with M(JDS cnloca!t and su

spzoihe ratters _ch o our 2022
Rezpons ity Roport

ara shars

Environment

Through COP reportrg, we shae our
annual carformance m mitiganng the nisks
assotiaed wih
and ¢

chmate change, water

lefc ’eptatmﬂ as wel a8 mann usihg

are puclicy avar'eble at

W SO0 ret sadd on o WiED

bodies znd others n
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N0 Vater
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rn frens eann ot
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e walh cthars, wee can ail

ESG assessments
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;_-haS\s is placed un vatumg
Vo 01 Compan 2
Sutiun 10 SOCIEts cr' the
—“1 znd on rchus rd
L gOvErrance,

fJ]

31 throughaout
the year and we 2ngace with ndvidal
ryastors and invest

Soelnoies

“O”2 we held cur third ESG
‘or rvesior s avehich lonusen on
envirgrmental factars

it May

Mater E|
LB




Together with our suppliers,
from large businesses to
smallholder farmers, we

are waorking hard to build
more equitable, ethical and
sustainable supply chains.

We are locusad enwhbat rea 'y matt

< proteclng hurman ngnts and

Protecting human rights and

labour rights

Human rights due diligence
across our Group

mfc(‘tmj enghis ard condi
who \';Frk inour m'my supply
e Of SCHOLS COTMCEN 10 Us

ACress our DLsnesses, e 'c’\:g-’:'. of
jmrues ibat anse arevata ra

even N the sames eqion o country Ve

wegrthownth many different s Eekeh ers T
oy cur approach to human nghls due
dihgerce, ncluding NGOs, Lra'jb unions,

QOVEN NENTS, Diher husiness
w all re'avart compeatition ar
awsl, and rdustry boues,

In-trest

For ntore than 10 years
wdt‘O\"S Gu dm a Princy
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na antacan
vary from one faciory or “arm o aniother,

2 {aubject

of our busir
& se»:k i

Suppler Code of Conduct
Iy 10 ke Qup; |y caains. This
sl pol cies 1t

way chouse 1o folow

z 'i ohen of reemnatioral
mq ika UMGFs,

s on Fundaments

atWwork or the
arisatore, such

e iLO's Dr;.
Princinles ana By
of men
A-R=EN

perof our busiesses hisve
numian nghts
Davimings Owvaltine
..mch u[,d 2d s hurar rghts polioy
i Jure 20227 o0d Pririark teebich has a
Human Rights Supp'y Chan Poloyy, Cur
Sugar diviaon
con human nghis pol oy,

Sone of eur DL sineszes
set numan mg\ 15-rel
exempie, Prarmary has

CIVENY SO

tments.

vernance — ‘=500
nuntabh vy for - sk e
LUg Sarnan nants
executives of 2ach AL.B:
Croup Beard provides
and susport o them

Transparency — \who ana whese o
DLSInEsEes source from can enbienee our
uraerstandinmg hun‘an rgl‘-ts rsks ana
nive them bath
Eut.ustnes

Loong Frimat,
g2, pubhsh g \dl-u\
"d owje ‘ormation
p*ogress and

S renots,

o IN] map

S
aghout ther proccess
L

cral enges throue h [oTeN [ Orat

\“ﬂbs tes stakehc'der en a; rent
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Hlsk analy51s -

Y Edient henian
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B
1ne rect caliees
es:,al cns of kay numan rghts
sbuch is wart of
|\F,,Vﬁ factory ataff and
din Scutlher dH

RrGG AN
rranagemant

to urderstand and sddress the nsks
roddern stavary in recrutinient and

SNIOICress

U‘l

CHEICNS,

Frimark was a founding sighasony o
the Accord on Fire 2od Burcing \_‘,ifx,l\-'
and is also a M,\Cr glony 10 .78 NEyv a8t
teration, the Intemational Accord far
Fioarc Buld\r'wg Safety fie Textile
Garment industy. Pronerk laurched
rentural integnty progiaEmime
= 2013, wnth eapertise proviae d by
the enginesing firm Mott MacDona'a,
Teday, the Prrrars programie covers
340, ristan, Myarirmer
and Carrbed 3

JE—

=1

TS oW S

Delivering social impacts

nesses have adaptad il e

dsin the G.ol-p Suppher Coce
of Cordict and reou e ther sappliers
toimplement these throughont that
3 'y cha ns. Our busingsses’ abiliny
0 riuerce suopher
rof the

sifer
Coneaniently, cur

[EL ceT-and rhiar

ae

S uppuews c‘f ih2 nenefig oha
nnng to them.

ngs Sourced wit h Carc

= weH esta

COMIMUMITCS
1dong SO, T a s w address salient
Firnan rights -ssLes 0 as suppy chams

N 2022, Ty nimg recogrised vedh a
Hohly Commenried award for the "Bes:
sustainahlz tea brand’ inthe Mane Claire
Sasta nail 1y Awerds and alse Heogivy
Commendeid i the Big Inpact Avard

at the 2021 Third Sector Awvwards forizs
‘Graer Seginn ngs, Briglht Futures’ wroject
wilh Save the Coildrer

Prirark is lock g Tor vaye to beller
measure and undersiand lhe rrpact of s
18t oport e socis and Tinancal
woelbeing of workers miits supply

craing. Threugh ar & Fits it
caralade

Atk CD [;r,

rement CCnipany, o
[cul ofa proareTme
velh o nens fac

Improving the environmental
performance of our suppliers’
farms and factories

The environmental impacts of farming
Alrost all of oo Dosinesses depend
drectly orindirect'y or agnowture and
natural ecozysters Ther reverues zre
derved from what wee o our supy
grove ard Parvest “rant the sol, :m,‘ucj ne
cotton — the prinary fiore Lsed 0
Frimare garments - ard cerea’s,
mared ent In 50 Mat y arocery pro
ro'uting braad and breakfast coreais.

1 inakes senses {or these usresses

10 support the use of new technicues
s irnovative techno’'caies that can

cnhance soil quanty, promote polinathon
and miprove yields — ways that 2lso
“t lovvar GHG 2russons and nore

Gy and water.

LEINESEES TUN
i 1ed to protect
sCosyetems and risintaim or el
soil guaTty. Friontis ne local b
ot ties ways inweih oh agne
can work with -ather than age
~ately, fararers ard our bue’r
pereld because t' niving bodiver
untepins key re ces such ez s
WELE 4ua iy 85 \\c“ zs the poil

wf crops.

ahnce

oodveraty
ulture

“Aany of our ous
S'use 1o their fa
ST

o

MIETY years, Tois provices a siie

o corcerted colzooratve a

Jordars Cerea's was cne of e first
brands i the UKo o fferentiaie on the
besis of ns values ang nas supported
vontife nts Uk fany supply chem

SE] if D wds sat
LD S yRars ago N iis current form.
imwolves col ab_ ravons with Veldlife

I \mg Envirenmiert and
¢ Prirce’s Countrys de
Fung. Co wrfact-@d farmy .;..hl.l lhe
Joidans Farre Parinership are paid 4
preniwm for ther gram m return, they
agree to manage at 'esst 10% of 1rar
land for the berefit of walcife That
PICROTHCN 1S Novw an aver
tre totzl farmcland manage
P~|t".':|sh 1ot aroand If: OOO |
That's @ wis! farm area ﬂcw Wt
75 of the teral UK farm

fooarow oats

ERRV

The environmental impacts of
suppliers’ factorles

18
hy using r‘aturm FESOUICES, ENtTRY G
chericas effectively This year, 1 has
focused s longstandirg work 1o improve
SN IoNMENLal periGryPance s sepply

Rz by makng public commy tmients sad
settrg targets through s Pnmiart Caies
«irategy. As many of Spliers alzo
wark for othgr brands, colaboration is

nal to arve lorg-term systenic charce.

Cne examiels of this colfzborative
approach s Famark's commutrment
10 WOTR WY
sieen 2015 0
we de gunroanh 1o managirg r‘hrzm‘c &
effec u\'l\,f threwghout the gloha
ang cortrbuted o 7UHC )
threct o el for many years, Frimark
uses Inqustry rouls 1o resinct the sse of
over 300 bazardous chercals during the
5. ts Chemical
Fregramme s shgnaed to
rractice

th the ZDHC Fourdation

srengthen the mdust y-
is

3 suDporl mprovernerts in both energy
water use of textile manufactuning
Primar worked with the Ap‘mre‘vs e
Instute 14 and & supplier’s dveing

el lecated = Anl o crovics, China

Together, theyar g niot workshcp 1o
famiianze the mi b rarsgenant eam
with 1me O .Pam by Des.qm CbD;

Cli g, AR f)q'—“-h
a-:t:ors seauited 1 the m il sasing arourd
7624 terness of ceal, whohg equivalent
10 19,262 onres of CO e, and delvenng

operating oost savings of Rmib 4m




RESPONSIBILITY cornt

Our operations

ncussd ony

rate change, and

= focueing on

qgo TLrth

s rrak.sg e esources

Ferbal tiosions carhon reutial oy

. R S

Scope 1 (000 1onnes o T ST X!

Scope 2 _ocaticn-based: (GO0 tonnes of CO 2l 8
Scope 2 IMawet-bassa (000 tornes of CO, e 157
Total Scopes 1 and 2 location-based: {000 tonnes of CO,e) 1,136

Scope 3 n
1000 1o of CO et
Scope 3 Prvark's scope 3

Biogenic carbon emissions. {000 ionres

:iemq s from: use

3 ermissiony
Total Scope 3: (000 tonnes of CO &)

Al

vhat ~ealy maiars:

Climate change unses a mater
ol businessey ang i supply chains.

al ris« 10

estrotayn with e
C: IIIH*—‘ Agreerent.

WWe support poict
oats Of e Panis

Our businesseas are cominittad to cuttrg
Qcorﬂ 1 and Scene 2 GHG enngsiens
‘rom thes operati I addition, they
are curiently calou'ating their Scope

Ly on ther
corrpleted
‘I s p OCess aﬁd Ao TEports ls full

oy cham Scope 3 emissions

Me do rot ser a croupwide chimate-

ated zarget; indlead, our bus resses
approuniae o wer

\‘upp.y crams. A qurmibd

= A5 Sugaris tageung a 207, redacuon
in Scope 1 ard Scope 2 emissions by
2030, agamnst a 2018 bas

UK Srocery civizion &
redLcton across gl 1h
/ﬂjO aqamnist a Z016

with the Courta.'d Comrr

Frimesk s targerng a 507%
reducton aorass &l inres
2030 agamst a 2018 base ine

= Tuuir ng

'I)
an
=]
(VR

of thrd-party transnor,

1000 tornes of COe)

aof CO e 39

Intensity ratio Scope 1 and 2 location-based emissions per £1m

revenue 1Scopes | and 72 onnes CO &/F

Energy consumed. (GWW
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4169 4,208 14

7,298 21,5890

[ave cOmn™ 8o 10 5281 50 &Ce- La zd
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beyond EOQO znid up 1o 2080, However,
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avalabity of enewehla eneigy and e
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ol pment

Wa carrot s v zll II*D rOnE TS
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woder solLlicns,

_5et year wee set out our appinach io

TCFD and ou” corraspording action

plan, This year the Greup hes conmnliad

W m«: requrrements of Listing Rule
93 6R by ineLaing clim ate wiatert
fnarcal diacl 2017 with

the TCHD reconmn

e Cdr
da

UK only

1,093

NonUK _Totet
1,315 AOHL

g0 609 A@.‘jm

124 586 FEGS

1,184 1,923 3,707

6521 B37A
4608 Gahtd
5227 FAETA
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Our people

Our people drive our succtess,
and in a world that is
changing fast, they will need
new skills to help us shape
that change. We continue

to invest in deepening

their understanding of
sustainability, so they can act
to drive our business forward.
We benefit from their diverse
talents and are always
working to ensure their
safety, health and wellbeing
remains our priority and that
they can come to work every
day in an environment where
they feel included.

Whe fouls onvenat reelly mattars.

.

Lrcctising safoly, hea ith and wellbe'ng,

¢ chan oioning dovarsily, aquity and
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RESPONSIBILITY ¢

Championing diversity, equity
and inclusion
Qe Jnsmessas ™arve or the oversity of
Fair people and the mclusne o
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RESPONSIBILITY cons

Engaging and supporting

our people
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Notveorks ¢

Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy
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We are united by our purpose
to provide safe, nutritious and
affordable feod, and clothing
that is great value for maney.

. ng oFers o out e
catben emiss ons, ard
s increazirg the duran ity of clothing

Providing safe, nutritious and
affordable food

We have always tacen
Lo sCCounl across
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Food and nutrition
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RESPONSIBILITY co-

351 maed it has e uved over 600
mitlion units of urn :
plasiic comporerts from its busimess.
LK Giocery, AB Sugar and Geerye

Westcr Fooe alsu made significan
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our 2022 Responsilb ity Report.

Enabiing others to cut their
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I A nere cnergy-efﬂc:em way The
addition of spes alist enryres produced
oy ihe nusiness enabies clothes 10
bowasied at 30°C st as effectively

a5 2t A07C, This reduces elect oty
consumption by arcund 260 kW per
1.000 washies, This could be!lp 1o oravent
several hundrad thowsand tonres of GHG
2SS GNS anually.

&

AB Agn's Intellync bus ness has
ceveloned F;rm Fompm 4
S5

SRtrIse ar "'n‘ber of d\H :
Vyestoch proces=es 1o re i.re carno
impact and neorease vestock y e:ds‘

tT

Vivaryo hias ‘nvested W0 evpand
peranens, creatirg e larg
‘r.alw‘l plant i the UK AL Tl

Livergo wculd preducs an
astirated 220 willion ' tres of Do
annua v, When blended with pstral 1o
E10 sizndards this will redace ~otal U
cle errizgions by arcund BC0,C00

wirres of CO e every ve

iis

<
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES {TCFD}

Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

We recognise that climate change represents a material risk
throughout our supply chains and poses challenges to some
of our businesses worldwide. We wholly support policies
that are aligned with the goals of the 2015 Paris Climate
Agreement to limit the rise in global temperatures to well

heiow 2 C above pre-industrial fevels, an
to Himitthe te 1‘|§"ﬁrtUIn nereaso
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES {TCFD} conrnusd
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (TCFD} con
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Results of the climate-related risks and opportunities assessment
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (TCFD) contin
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Why this potential risk is important:
lilovo is the largest sugar producer
in Africa and a significant business
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Impact of flooding risk
on Primarld's third-party
manufacturers

Impact assessment
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Why this potential risk is important:
Bangladesh and China represent the
top two countries from which Primark
products are sourced. Our analysis
focuses on the proportion of orders
impacted calculated as a percentage
of Primark’s current total global orders
based on estimated retail values.
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CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES {TCFD)

Impact of carbon pricing
mechanisms on AB Sugar ang
Primark

Impact assessment

e

Why this potential risk is important:
carbon prices are likely to increase

as governments take action to
decarbonise. AB Sugar represents
some 65% of ABF's Scope 1 and 2
emissions and Primark has significant
Scope 3 upstream emissions. Impacts
quantified below are based on carbon
prices assumed in IEA’s hypothetical
scenarios. The NZE and SDS scenarios
assume a significant increase in global
carbon prices.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

IMlanaging our risks
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES cwoimuen

External risks

Movement in exchange rates

Context and potential impact
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Operating in global markets

Context and potential impact
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES crifiusd

Operational risks

Workplace health and safety

Context and potential impact
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Breaches of IT and information security

Context and potential impact
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Our use of natural resources and managing our environmental impact
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES ¢
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Our supply chain and ethical business practices

Context and potential impact
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Sure of vur buseresses have develoned
the r oven code of conduct based on the
s outinea in AZF's Coce
datnd te G

conduct and ras
pololes srourd v
codes L3 lorad sreafically 1o some of
z risks in the aupatsl ard t=xtile
Jis a rmembear of e Ethical
Trackrg Inidative anid 15 also
interraticnaily racegnsed fm i1s Btk
: and Environmer:a i
CrogranTmie

[era infarmation s avaab'e at hitns o

COIHOMGNE 2 e o,

igrstand he
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S Ch ther rcsr,wemm El6 ;J.J'\«
Forexampe, Tamngs vses
A comipred ity Meerds
ssnrent Fran ework, .e.-'e\cped I
wsultation vwelh eapart external
slakenoloers noaddiien to “i”‘ut-’ 1 qh 3,

TGO

ngve Coin

Trree of our busiresses, A3 Su

Primark and T\-"\.f|m:7g5, have |'Jub g

due dii'\gence Pmmv These souIcing
ntans cen alse be used w icentfy where
thera s ovarlap with tha s ooly chains of
otlher busimesses
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Changes since 2021

Our Maodern Siavery Statement 2022,
"‘ge”wcr with the steps e take to try o
ans.re ihat any forims of modern slavery
are NG present »witm our o
poerstens om supoy chaing, are reportod
naeslon oo E gnd nthe 2022
ety Beport 2t v Lo.ukd
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VIABILITY STATEMENT ANU GOING CONGCERN

Viability statement and going concern

Viahility statement

The directors have determinad ihat the
most appropnaie pened over which to
assess the Company's viability, n
accordance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Govermence Coge, is thiae years. This s
consistent with the Group’s business
r)cel which devolves operational
oisi0n Makenig 1o the bus nesses Each
D siness sets a sirategic planni~g time
horizon anpropriate to 1ts activit es and
whicn are typically of @ three to five yrar
duration. The direciuts also considered
g dwert‘e nature of the Group s
znd the degres to which the
resses change and evolve n the
tvely short term

Tre dirsciors considerea the Group's
orofiability. cash flows and key f nanc:al
aAtas over this period and e pntential
pact that the Prncipal Pisks and
Uricerainties set cut an pages 24 to 101
couwd nave on future perdformance,
solvercy or hguid'ty of the Group and its
resihunice (o 1thraats 10115 viabihly pused
by severe but plaus: SCenanys.,
Saasitivity analysis wes spplied to these
metnes and the toeutzd cash flows
were siress tested agal st a range

of scenatics.

The dirertors conarderer! the leve! of
performanee that wonld czuse the Growp
tns ava=|3b\e I|qu\d\ty the

tavlors mt hcm jats pote
tcg el o L cttsunne Lash
5ubf~ anunally. The directors consicered
actions which could damage the Group's
regutalios Tun Lie furiy igim, macio-
eLunwne influgnees sgeh as tluctuat org
i commodity markels and cimate-
related busingss nsks Specific

o sidealivn gy Leet given 1o the
po“cfma' orﬁgomg 1'sK3 aaqor.ated Wit

recession, reducing de m.nd n,r gobdq
i hoth the Food businesses and
Primark, and contimi g inflanonary
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The Board's Ireasury poicies are in pace
1o maintain a strong capital base end
manage the Croup s balance sheet and
hguidity to ensure long-ierm financial
atabiity. Thase policies are the basis for
invesior, credior and market confderice
and enable the successiul deveiopment
of the business. The events of the fast
w0 years damonstrated the imgortance
ulsyllican: Nigticie! tesolreés and crecit
strengin to meet any operational
chadenges or busness disrLplion eve
Ihe financian Ioverage policy regures
that, In the vrdinary course of business,
the Boaid prefers 1o sze the Growp's ratio
of nat debt ircloding lease lahilites o
asten EBITDA 10 be I under 1 5w,
Al ibe end of this finaroial year, the
fmancial loverage 1300 was 0.8x and thz
Group had net cash befo:e lease habiltes
of £1,400 arcd oo codiasen cotnn Lol
Ravoling Credit Facility of £1,600m.

W November last year, S&P Global
Ratngs an~ounced they had assighed “he
Croup on A grade [ono-ienme sssu
credit rating. In February this year, the
sup armounced 18 inaugural £400m
e Lond, due s 2034, further
tiversilyire Sal its fundling base. “urthermore
the Group's committed Revolving Creat
Facility, due to copire o 2023, was
reneved i o T\ e v Tailily is "o!
£1 Bion, u from £ 1 previously, is
row lee of parformance covenzants and

The divarsity of 1o Graup o such that
we have some 80 different businesses
operating in different msrkets, sectors,
cuziomer groups, acographic: and
producia, Whilc the prir
considersd all have the potential 1o affsct
future performance, nons of them are
soredoied indraductly or collectvely 1o
threaten the viab ity of the Company for
the per od of the essesament.

LpEl rohs

The Group has a track record of delvening
strorg cash flows, with In excess of £ion
of operating cash being gererated in
each of the 'ast ten years This nas been
mote than sufficient 1o meet not ory

our gngoing financirg cchgations but

2150 to fund the Group's expansanary
capiial investment.

Evenin = worst-case sceraric, w il risks
nroadel ed o maEter ailse simultaneously
ard for a suslaired perod, 1the possihiity
of the Groun baving insufficient
resoLsces e neet s financial oniigstions
is congidered ramote. Based on this
assessment, the directors confirm that
Fey have a reasonable exneciaton that
e Company will be able 1o continua in
cpel ‘ahion and meet its dahil i‘ 3 as lhay

alf due over the threg-year nd to 13
SJ ptember 2025,

—+

Going concern

ftar maring enauires, the directors
hav-, a reasonable evpectation that the
Group has adeguate resources o
winue iy oparational existerce for the
seeabla future. For this reasan, Yl\&:y
continue w0 adopt ithe going concern
basis in prepanng the consolidsled
lrancial statements.

The Torecast for the qoing concern
assesswem par od io? Mamh 4‘024 has
AL 1
frad'ng in Octo!)(—; and is 1h¢ est
estimate of cashflow in the veriod,

Hav no rev ewed this forecast and having
appied a dovnside sensitivity anaysis
ard performisd a reverse stress test,
the direciors corsider it a remcte
rosskilivy that the Snanciat headrocr
wowd be exhaustad.

The Board's treasuy nolicias are in place
1o matntain @ suong capital base and
manage the Croun's balance sheet and
Louidity to ersure long-tern financial
stability, These policies are the basrs Tor
investor, credtor ard market confidence
ad enanle the successtul cevelooms
of the businass. The evenis of the last
o years demonstrated the importance
of sufficent financial 1esources and cradit
sireroth to mget any cperational
challenges or business disruption evenis
The financial everage policy siates that,
in ~he cramary course of business, the
Board prefers to see the Group's ratio of
ret aebt inciuding lease habilities 1o
adiasted EBITOA to be we l under 1.5x.
At the end of this financsl year, the
‘maroial leverage ratio vvas 0.8« and the
Crown had net cash before leasa tabilities
of £1,188m and an undrawn committed




in Novernber last year, S&P Globai
Rulings arinounced they had assigned the
Group an A’ grade long-term issuer
credit rating. In February this year, the
Group aravuiued iLs inaugural £400m
public bond, due in 2034, further
diversifying its funding base.
Furthermore, the Group's committed
Revolving Credit Facility, due to expire in
2023, was renewed in June. The new
facility is for £1.8bn, up fram £3.1bn
previously, is now free of performance
covenants and runs for five years to
2027, with two 1-year extansion options.

In reviewing the cash flow forecast lor
the period, the directors reviewed the
trading for both Primark and ths Food
businesses in light of the axperience
gained fram events of the Jast twa years

of trading and emerging trading patterns. -

The directors have & thorough
understanding of the risks, sansitivities
and judgemants included in these
elements of the cash flow forecast and
have a high degree of confidence in
these cash flows.

As a downside scenario the directors
considered the adverse scenario in which
inflationary costs are not fully recovered
and in which energy costs are twice the
frrerasted increass and other inflaticnary
cost pressures are 25% higher. It also
includes further adverse foreign
exchange impacts combined with a
global recussiui, reducing dermand

for goods further than the hase levels
forecast. This downside scenaric was
maodelled withaut taking any mitigating
actions within their control, Under

this downside scenario the Group
forecasts liguidity throughaut the

period and compliance with financial
covenants in the remaining $100m of
outstanring private placement notas
{due March 2024). ‘

In addition, the directars alsc considerad
e circumstances which would be
needed to exhaust the Group's total
liquidity over the assessment period - a
reverse stress lest. {his indicates that
increasing infiation {rising energy costs
and other inflationary cost pressures; and
adverse foreign exchange impacts)
combined with a global recession,
reducing demand for goods, would need
to exceed £2.4 billion more than the level
forecasted by the Group, without any
mitigating actions being taken before
total liquidity is exhausted. The jikelihood
of these circumstances is considered
remate for two reasons. Firstly, over
such a long period, management could
take substantial mitigating actions, such
as reviewing pricing, cost cutting
measures and reducing capitai
investment. Secondly, the Group has
significant business and asset

diven sificaiion and would be able 1o, it 1t
were necessary, dispose of assets and/or
businesses 1o raise considerable levels
of funds.

The Strategic Report was approved by

the Board and signed on its behalf [/[
\-)_ /\/ _/\(/L_/\
,\/K/ :
e W

Michael Mclintock
Cliainman

George Weston
Chief Executive

John Bason
Finance Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s introduction

Michael McLintack
Chairman

We cunlinue to operate a
devolved decision-making
model. This is a distinctive
characteristic of ABF, and one
which we believe empowers
management of our
businesses to take decisions
at the level we consider to be
the most effective — in other
words, closest to the markets,
customers and stakeholders
relevant to each business.

104 Associated British Foods ple 2

Dear feHow shareholders

I'2n: pleased 1o present tng
Associated British Foods plc
Culpuigle Sovethidhce Heport tor the
yeot ohided 17 Seprember 2027,

Your Cornpany's clear sense of social
purpose, (o provice safe, nutrivous and
affordable food, and clothing that 1s great
velue for money, fes's more relevant than
aver. As | stated 'ast vear, the belief that
busingsses do well when they act well

18 mgraimed throughout the Group and
management ¢conbinug to e encoursged
1o take a fong-term v ew and 1o continue
invesung i the fuiure.

We continug to operate a devolived
decision-maxing moedel. Tnisis a
distinctive characteristic of ABF, ard

one which we beligve empowaers
managarment of our businesses o take
decisions st the level we consider 1o

ne the most effective - in other words,
clueest 1o the markats, customers

and stakeholders re’evant 1o each
busingss. The senior managemert of the
businesses are supporied wilth resources
and experuse frorm throughout the Group
and, as we announcad in July 2022,

e vl ne adding additonal advisory
experise 1@ Primask naxt vear through
tha creation of a2 Prireark Strategic
Advisory Board.

The RBoard cont nues 1o he tept indornred
abuul, and =gaged with, the indiviiual
BUSNCSases throual redular updelss

LY e axcoubve duectors ard thioagh
the anrual updstes and these a
Lrovide ¢ ;
10 prowvi

Tre arnual bus

ness wpdates am
that w Fedin this year's
internal Board evaluation as a subjsct for
gregter focus and improvement.

Succession planning, both at Board level
and executve level, nas continued to be
Armty on the agenda Dunng the summer
we announced that Jonn Zason wouid
ba steppng down as Finance Directar
next ARl after a long and distinquished
period of servica. Johr ook up the

post of Finance Wirector in May 1988
and his tenure has been marked by

clear aralys s, excellent judgament and
tireless commitrnent to ihe ABF cause.
We wi 3 hwm enormmeusly, both as a
coleague ard as a frend, whelst at the
sarne time being delighted that wwe will
continue 1o benelit from his experuse
when ha hesomes Cnar of the Famak
Stiategic Adwsory Board from May 2023

We wera very pleased 10 be gble w0
arecunce i July et Jonn would be
succeedad by Eoin Torge, currenty
Criaf Finarcial O*ficer and Chief Strategy
Officar a1 Marvg and Spencer Group Ple,
ard we ook forward to welcoming Eoin
by rno la pi

~ar than Fehruary 2023,

{211 alzo hzppy 10 "encrt that the Boeid
continues 1o meet the reconmendations
ot the Pzrxer Rev ow and plans 10 mast
n-ore receaty annodnced targets set by
the FTSE Women Leaders Rev ew and
e Fla gowg roneard,

During the summer we
announced that John
Bason would be stepping
down as Finance Director
next April after a tong

and distinguished period
of service. We were very
pleased to be able to
anngunce in July that John
would be succeeded by Eoin
Tonge and we look forward
to welcoming Ecin by no
later than February 2023,

The Company waxes its complance with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
{the 2018 Code’) senousy. 0 respaect
of the 2018 Code provision relating 10
aiigrmart of executive direcior penson
contrbulions with the workfores, an
ewpianaton of our progress 1o date and
our plenz to bring the Company inle ne
with the 2018 Code 15 set oul ON pages
127,123, 13110 133 and 147 of the
Dreciors’ Rermuneralon Report.




Thic year we hetd our third LS6
lenvironmaentat, social and governance)
investar day in response to increasing
requests from investors to understand
more ahout what we do a5 a Group

in respect of ESG matters. This third
avent focused on tha most material
environmental {actors across 2 broad
range of companies in the Group. As
was the case with the previcus two ESG
investar days, the feedback received has
been vary positive.

Richard Reid is our Non-Executive
Dirgctor whao is designated for
engagement with the warkfarce. Further
details on progress on workforce
engagement are provided in Richard's
letter on pages 110 1w 111 and 107.
Directors’ visits 10 sites, business
divisions' updates tc the Board on
workforce engagement, input from our
Speak Up programime and Richard's
activities arg key ways that we cantinue
10 assess and monitor culture.

We will hold a physical AGM in

Decernber 2022 but, as was the approach

taken last year, will also stream the event
online for those shareholders who are
net able to attend in person. Should you
nul be qlle tu ellend tie 2022 AGM in
person, with your proxy form you wilf
have received details of how to register
to follow proceadings at the 2022 AGM
through an internet stream on the AGM
wibsite and how 10 vote by groay in
arvanre af the meating Natgils are

also provided of how you can put any
questions to the Board in advance of the
meeting (or during the meeting if you join
via the AGM website). Please note that
you will not be able to vote on the day if
you do not attend in person, so please
vote in advance by proxy if you cannot
attend in person.

Our four values, namely respecting
averyone's dignity, acting with integrity,
progressing through collaboration, and
delivering with nigour, are llustrated
through the various case studies in this
Annual Report, through our Section 172
Statement on pages 64 to 68 and through
the Responsibility section on pages 69

1o 82. Further examples can he found in
our 2022 Responsibility Report and in our
ESG Insights, which are available on the
Company's website at: www.abf.co.uk/
responsibiiity.

Michael McLintock
Chalrman

y/f//\\ A //\\: \_,/V . v’\

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

As a prermium listed company on the
tondon Stock Exchange, the Company
is reporting in accordance with the
2018 Code. The 2018 Code sets out
standards of good practice in relation
io: {i) board leadership and company
purpose; (11} division ot responsibilities;
(i) board compasition, succession and
evaluation; {ivl audit, risk and internal
cantral; and {v) remuneration. The 2018
Code is published by the UK financial
Reporting Council {'FRC'} and a copy is
available from the FRC website:
wwwe.fre.org.uk.

The Board considers that the Company
has, throughout the year ended 17
September 2022, applied the principles
ang complied with the provisions set
out in the 2018 Code except provision
38 in relation to alignment of executive
director pension contributions with the
workforce. In this regard, please see
the explanation on pages 127, 129,

137 to 133 and 141 of the Dirsctars’ «
Remuneration Report, which explains
our plans to bring the Company into line
with the 2018 Code. ’

The Company's disclosures on its application of the principles cof the 2078 Code

can be found on the following pages:

Board leadership
and Company purpose
~> See pages 104 to 112

Chairman’s introduction

- See pages 104 to 105
Leadership, values, culture

and purpoze

-2 See pages 8to 11; 6910 71;
108to 112

Strategy

> See pages 8to 11; 108
Stakeholder and shareholder
engagement

2 See pages 64 to 68; 69 to B2;
108w 112; 114

Division of responsibilities
~> See pages 11310 114
Commitment, development and
information flow

~> Soe pages 110to 111
and 11310 114

Composition, succession
and evaluation

~ See pages 115 1o 118

Board evaluation

2 See pages 11510 118
Nomination Committee Report
= See pages117to 118

Audit, risk and internal control
- See pages 11910 125

Risks, viability and going eontern
> See pages 94 to 103; 120

Audit Committee Report

- See pages 12110 125

Remuneration

Directors’ Remuneration Report
-2 See pages 126 to 153

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

“» See pages 129 to 130; 133 to 140
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1. Michael McLintock N,
Chairman

fael was zopmnted a CIrsciorn in
Hoversber 2017 and Chaimay in Aprl
2018 He was fcr’ner\v Chef Exenutive

g 0 2015, having e
n 19592 and been appcintou
z 111 1937, In 1999 he
e of ME&G to Pruder
v-*m-' e served as an Execut
or from 2000 unul 2018, Pireviously
31N mvefl nent m w'agem&m
tNorgar Gren'el rrj T Oy

ot NMARG reunng
L

1:al

Oiher appointments:

s Trustee of the C'@Q\ faletal =
+ Mon-Exect
Srovp Lirmited

Chainnen of The Investor F
tlentber of the Advisary Beard of
grstpert Prvate Eooity Linnted
“Mantber of tre Teheover |
= rember of the MOC Comnntiee
2. George Westion

Chief Executive

George was as r;mtec 0 the Eoard in
1289 and tool u cure cntrent
ae Chief t\':Lul vc i Aprl 2005 In his
fermer icles at Aszoc ated Britsh Foodds,
Te 48 Ma el e D\r"C“'o* VWestn |l
Fcud o Bal e s and Geo
Nastor | uuc‘s Lin ted {Aastrs

(ther appointments:
n-Lvecan

ve Dorector of Wit ngton
0y
of the Carfle d Weaston
Fa. rdation
« Trustee of the Brtsn Museum

3. John Bason

Finance Director

c.nled es Financs

D.|~ 1oren Mov 1999, Fe bas extensive
L businees experierce and an

I

iv-repth kncw e of hoth e food and
retzll industnes, Hc‘ ously the

firance Director of 2o as S=nior
independent Birector at Cm Tpess Group
ALC anm s e memher of the nstituis

of Charteied Accountants m Englend

and Wales.

Qther appointments:

Mo Ex tve Direcior of Bloomsbury
Q F‘lc

» Noo-bxecuuve Director of SSE plo
 Crarman of FareShare

4. Ruth Cairmie @& 2 R
Independent Non-Executive Director
apponied a director in May
o has bean Sauier ecopandant
2 ‘rmér 2013 Fmth

VedS
Sir mn:\

‘ormer
v & Planning 21 Poy
ple. This rele followed a numner of senor
rterratioral reles within Shell mcludin
Vice Presidert of its Global Commercial
Flels business. Ruth has aiso held a

rumber of non-excoutive directorst
imciuding on the boards of Kel'er Group
p'e. ConteurGlaba’ ole and Ral s-Royce
Holdings ple.

Other appointmpnm'

+ Directer and Chair of Batc
rrgrnat.orzl Gruk.g PLC
Trustee of Wingsor Leadarsrp
Tristee of the VWhite Enzign

De‘ence Cha

5. Emma Adamo
Non-Executive Director

Eivma was apnpe ,'m~ a directer in

Cecember 2011, scducaren at
Stanford U ve’sm, and has zn M3A 7
IMSEAD. She has served as a dir
rysten an e nuntoes of ner-protts
Fournation boasds . the UK and Canads

Cther appointments:

« cr of Wiiinglon imeestmar s

« Blrecter of WWotingion in
L rries (Cenadal
e Charof he Weston Fa

6. Graham Allan G} L3
!ndependent Non-Executive Director

VESTMRNLS,

nuty Fourdstien

raham v
14 "-erz 18 Graham

appoInted & drectorin
[Ty

12 Groun Chief Erecutive (': Dary
me |"u,r=\dw ~al Holdings :
retzlarn Prios tOJ-’J.r‘ I

L be Fresdant zrd Chiaf

Excoutia Officer at Yun! Bastaurarts
Incernational. Graham nas previcusly Feld
VANOus Senicr LoS Et:Gruo mmuitinatenal

Other appointments:
s Serior Imaenend
Group .o
Seni ndepercent Drecior of
rierCont nertasl Hote!'s L:fu 1 P
» Mor-Executive Char man of
Bate ‘niamnatons!
e of Arrencara
i ted

Ciecior of Intertax

-

ooatatirarts L

Nesociated Britich Foods ple ~rinucl B

7. Wolfhart Hauser &
Independent Non-Executive Director

cponied a ¢rector n

Starurg bis career vaih
went on
ae of

Woithart was
Januvary 70715,
varnLs resesrch actvities, he
10 establich and lead a4 Lneced rang
succsssolhm: cnal service industry
busmnesses. Me was Chief Executive
of Interek Group ple o 10 yeais until
eured fron that mlsg and the board
N May 2015, He was previous'y Chief
Evecutive Officer ard President of TUY
Suddeutsehland AG for four years and
Crigf Executree Oft.cer of TU\J Prc,uuu
Serycesfor 10 vears He has
directorship rles, mr‘l :‘ ng 35 a
Slon-Exscutive Director of

gcapc fom
2007 10 2012 ard Chai- of l'\rat;.'cup alle
for four ys

fromy 201 h to July 20719

Other appointments:
« Senur lrdepandert Directer of RELX 2LC

8. Dame Heather Rabbatts (0 ©¥
Independent Non-Executive Director

arng Heather Rabbatis vwas apr
adrecicron 1 NMareh 2021, e
as nedanr: ecuire and
oSS ncludng inioca
govement, infrasiruciuce, meda and
sports Ste has croviously been g Non-
ot rector of Grosvenor Britaan 2
“he fretwoman cn the
voiball Associaion n oot
s COPTNLES WD

re'and anrd
Baard of the
Tal ‘yi."dl':} S

At Spatis

rioarr Y

Other appointments:

« Non-Executive Director of Kier Group e
« Chair of Scho Thaatre

» Charr of Four Comniun-cations

9. Richard Reid &3 4

Independent Non-Executive Director
R chard was coooiited a crector in
Apnt 2016, He weas former'y a gar
ot KPMG LLP "<PNG, having jcined
the frmin 1980, From 2008, Richard

as Lendon Chairman gt <PRMG

tl fa retiven fromy that rale and KPRG
in Septemiber 2015, Previcusiy, Richard
was KPMG's UK Chairman of the High
Growveth Narkets grourn and Chairma:

of the firm’s Corsuimsr a0 ,\mdu;trw\
hNarkes group,

rare]
TCY

Other appointments:

» Crzirman of Nanenal Heart and
L.ung Foundasr
Deputy C nan of Berry Bios & Rudd
Semor Adviser to Bank of China Uk
Chacman of Themis nter
Serv.ces Ln.ated
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Board leadership and
company purpose

The Board
The Beard s cole

dhrection ard oversioh:
10 ensura its long-lerm succaes, This
rr“ ades satlting the Compar s surnose,
winchos descnibed in the Stiatecie
Fegcit. Tre Boaid met regula-ly
“hrongacut the vear, sametmes with
et viniudlly,
oo

L a e ey o
E -[Jrow U"D rolp’s

n e 61 the L-[“vC'I\ﬁs set

Trere are a rumhbar of matters wlch

zarg selouinac \car:y
deflred et i hicit s 3 ;
0 IEW ON TNE COMporate CoOVernancs
zector of the Company's

il v ST Lk

alproval, T

mehilimirs ar
delegated 1o the Board Cornmate
g Tha Normineton, A dit angd
Hem ameration Comrmttee&;, wahch
'“Cl’i tor
and el O" ‘quu’i' P ]
Seard. henm - of these Committess
15 reviean et gy Mites of
Lomniites rw:etu e I age avalable
10 ail girectors on ely Dasis. Far
mn see the Reports o
ttees Dilow,

Ceain snea g resps

Purpuse, business imudel and straregy
The nuipcee of the Carrnary = 1o
wrev de sale, nuintious ana afornabie
2ud Clething that s creat valug “or
ey, A descrnpton of the Company's
lm, noss modal for sustarabla growth
in suppert of this purg 1S ssteut n
the Graup business model and siratesy
section on pagas 8 1o 1. These secuons
provide zn explanauor of the bas s on
sohoebthe Grous gonoraton waiuo ard
preserves it over the org term ang ita
strategy for de ivernirg its objectives
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The work of the Board during the year

Uring ¥

Strategy

« corducting regular strategy upcale

2s530n3 wiin the drvisons o Board
meaiings; and

= rgoaiving a strategy update from 1ne
hirector ot Business uevelopment.

Acquisitions/disposals/projects

¢ CONSEerNng/ARDroving varous
acgJeitions Inrluding the

acqu sitions of: Fytexia Group, which

develops sceentficaty supported

actve nutnents for hurnan health,

the Greercoat an mal supplement

arnd vare bysitess, Dad's Ples,

& ch'rwu i ple producer o Neww

ler v and a small agnicelture

bLJS‘. e

corsidering and approving various

capital Investment projects including

nrelai-on i ew stares, gutomancn

21 depots and LED figh-ing upurades

for Prirnark; and

eLaivid teguizl uodelss on

opreposed acguisitions and disposals.

Financial and operationatl

performance

= reCEIANG régular Teponts
ey the Chief Fesgute
FECEIVING, 00 a8 Iorinyg Dass
maragerrant G ertations
irom each of the Group
Ljusm'r'ss 5\:‘L‘5HE'115,

to the Board

,senor

. Co e Group budget for the
202 23 Unancial year;

. a;’m’ovin P Company's fuil year
3 terems results;

» Jewidity w recomimend payment o
a 021 final dividend ard a soecial

vidend (both pand in Jandary 2022}
and deciding to recommend payrrent
ol a 2022 ntanim dividend, paid in
July 2022,

approving the issue of an inaugural
public bord; and

approving banks. g mangate
updates and vonous other treasury-
ralztod matters,

Governance and risk

« revewing of the maternal financial

ang nen-financial risks facing the

Griaup's budiressses,

receiving regular updates or

corporate governance &

requlatory mealers,

particigation in, as well &s review
and discussian ¢f recommenda

fram, the nterral Board evaastio

.

he trancial vear, key activities of the Board inciuded:

+ recaiving rencrls frorm the Board
Committee Chairs as appropnata,
confiriming diectors’ independence
and confiicts of interest;

raviewing and amsmvaﬂg gender pay
reporting ard the Modern Slavery
and Human Trafficking StaTen‘.ert;
and

undertak Ny eporopnale oepara
forthe hoiung of the AGKM
ncthud ng corsidenng and approving
an ‘outlook” statement ard,
subsequanily, discussing any issues
anoirg from e ACK.

»

ations

Corporate responsibility
< continuing "o support the enhia
aclvity 69 ES!g matiers,

co
jul

» receiving reqular managemen:
renot el ag annual
presentations on heaith ard safety

and on erverenirental 135645, and
-eceving ar update on ESG matiars
Acluding pror ,commitments,
risks and cpportanities, and on

the task Forca on Climate-related
tinancial Uisclosares

Investor relations and other
stalicholder cngagcmcnt

ohe of more of the Chairman, Chair
cfihe R marauon Committee,
Chief Executive end Finance Director
attendang meetings with mstitubonal
iﬂ‘u’QSTGFS 1o hear treir VIeWS, ar ~d
rece ving reports on investoer
relations acivities and reqular
feedhack o dueciors’ meatirgs b
wrhanstitubional mvesiors.

People

+ deaiding 10 appoinit Ecin Torge as
the new Fnance Director of the
Compary to commense n 2023,
Richard Reid, Nan-Executive Directar
Lor engageimant with the workiorce,
centinuirg 1o work with the
husinesses 10 ensure that the voice
of the workiorcs is Peard and acted
upen — sae further details on pages
11040 117,

recerving updates froim senior
manragement of the Dusinesses on
haw they have ergagad with their
workforces and the outcomnes of
such engagsment, and

recelving ard considering
presentalions on SUCCessIcT
nlarming and talent manaagsnment
frone the Chisf Peop e and
Parformance Otficer.




Culture and values
Our culture 2nd our m\ms irespe
evelycne G 1) |qr‘ ] thnt
Lrogressirg mru-dcw callaboraton
ann celiv weitor rgour] essertialy
centre around dong the night thing
Our devoved decisior-mating model
empiwers the people closast to risks o
make the nght judgements to milgate
wse nsks and 10 Lnd opportunt es
nutrnportantly with encourage
engagement and support frem the
cartie. That sugport can take the form
of resgurces and exnertise or 11 can he
provides threugh ches enge. Wa believe
the routs to endurirg value crestion
hes in el focus on bulorg obje
fromi the wattom up rather ther fram

1y,
v,

=t

Culture s morstores by the Boarg
throvgh a numrser of different

:pﬂ'o:(hei Rehard Reid's
ork force engagene
re detan on pagas
oot of 1

i
with the s
znd Perforn:

Hicer, 5@

B Oenn, S5 SUppCrTed
oresenTtal.ons fronr SENr Manags

of 2ach business div <.on 1o the 2card
engch i'n;l Lge informaton on sufety
cerformrance ard health and wellbeing

r*‘*-’atwes aswell as the individual

WS ress workforee engzgenrent
1 1|r_1t:‘.fes, roluding e SL!L. ard artars
eys and o her

i

angng fros
I stenng and eng

In zadison, thers are soe s “t.wr
eng ag et QVQIIT\ attenced by the
¢ Ca

The intraduction ‘f the new Speak Un
Fohicy ard processes - Septons 2021
ras Felpedto e hat s oriproe

) g5 and i a'e Lonsistent
with Corpany's vaues and ihat
“hey sunport the lerng-term success of
she Company by provid ng an sasy way
for the workforce to rase any matters

Whistleblowing
The Groun's Spazk Up Policy cortains

arranaaiments for ar in :
exiernal service rrovider o reneve

in
corfiderce wihare legally permitterd,
reports of ary irapnrcgriate, mpropar,
d'ehonest 1wl or dangerous bohayvour

251,
for reporting to the Audit Comrm, ttee
a5 ﬂpump nate. The Audit Comnuitlee
reviewws e

orts fronyirie e audit and
the actans ansiag florn these

and regoris
cn 1eese to the Board.

The Audit Comrritlee 'eporrs i€
Ll Bo ard onior all Baarg

i miembers
s ot the Audt
mmitteze meeting Iu ot H ~ detal
e znaye.s of epcrted allegatons
wihneh ‘s compiled by the Direclor of

il Contr U Arranysments &re in

Conflicts of interest pracedure
The Company ~as procecures m place 1o
with the siruation wheie a direcior
fas acontict of interest As part of this
tre Board:

UTOess,

consders 2ach coaf ot etusten
sepatately onits pait wcu!ar feooa,

confuct situabion
rent uf ke
ncler the

v corsigerns

Lomram_ 5 Ar;t 20056,

+ Fecops reconds erd Besrd monutes 2s 1o
authcnsat ons granted by dreciors anc
the scope of ary goorovals given; omd

« reguiarly revienve conilict euthorisaen
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Engagement with stakeholders

Our scale, @rw*p‘ ~01 132,000 weople
wiih operetions - LotIEs anroes
the warld, means "wm our aclivities
matier 1o, or have aén impact on, imany
people. As a rest't, the Campary
ergagas regularly with s slakehoders at
Group anc/or bus.ness lovel, deoerdn g
e the perlicular 1ssue

Ata Gro

J\) [Me

gve! we engags with 3

vanety of stakeholder groups irciuding
slarebolders, goverrmerts, meda and
nvestors trreugh a range of metrods.

"FQ"Q
5t s yEar can bs—, o Jj fm
oG8 twh.eh contam our
/Zbd eTent On ergEging
veeth our \,Amr‘r‘r“’ie’c)‘ jul
lon respoisiblityt and in the

E-ecutve Drector for er gagemeant wein

iba worsforce

We believe the route to
enduring value creation lies
in our focus on building
objectives from the bottom
up rather than from the

top dow .




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conmnved

Board leadership and company purpose coniinucd

Non-Executive Director for engagement

with the workforce

QOuir devolved nperating
rmodecl has people at its corc.

| am passionate about our
respnnsihility, at a Board tavel
and through the leadership
teams, 1o ensure the voices of
our employees are heard and
present in Board discussicons
and business decisions.

110 Associated British Foods plc

The complaxity, size znd scale o our
Group reguire our leadership teams 1o
connect wth ther pecpie r a variety of
ways depending on focanon workplace
and style of operation, ensunng they
sieninn o views end responding
accordingly My role as Non-Excecuiive
Director for engagemant with he
wolkluloe 1n Lu inicke Leoan lbigae
nroCe3sed are in o'sce and thet (he
culture of the businessas is ona

where erno’oyees are listened (o

and feedback acted wpan. This ro's
contnues 1o evolve dus 1o the Worlioree
Engagerent intative overall, ard as cur
Lusinesses uevelup.

are o

I belieye this yezr we hawe made
significart prog-ess In ensuring 2ngaging
with our workforoe is at the heart of
leaders” activities and that we hava
enhanced the processes i place both ¢
get feeqback and to act on it

in oy ‘a3t letter | spoke of strengirening
the divisional updates to the Board and
enhancing the flow of conversation
between the Beard and leadership
teams | have spent more time this year
with the divisional People/HR directors
as a group o unde stand ther views
zrd 1o ensure that the conversations we
Fave are valdalls ang dive walllloce
shiygdyerenlin oun busiiesses. |have
veyuled distussiars vl e divisional
chief executives and Feople/HR directers
o undarsiand then actions on workforce
engagsement and 1o she:e feedback znd
& from my own nteractions with
ple across the Group.

i

I S
Shaal Sesnrt JULT

In adoion 10 the inforrnation shared
with the Board, this vesr we bave askeo
ders 16 explore and unaerstand not
just our cunient workfuree engagement,

bt alen pey atlentinon to the insights
from those that have chosen to cantinue
:heir career elsewliere. This ng'ghs end
perspective 1s novy part of the Board's
conversations with the businesses

We conunue 10 erxpact our leaders 1o
fing ways o expand the rem-t of their
engagement surveys, explonng how best
to overcone cultwal and technotogcai
barmers they face in getling the views
and opevions & our emplovees. Ihe
Board filly supports ieaders’ focus on
ensJiing all emp'ovees are reached ang
that the veires of minornity groups In

ABE are heard. 1 amn pleased for exemole
at our ‘eacaiship tears i Mozambiogue
s found @ way tc get feedback from

ali 5,000 emyoyees, e they wor-ing n
sLgar cane feds, factory or ofice.

Since my lasi update in 2021 | have
vigited ans Wy of our businesses
across our Group, sBear.ng with our
seople 1o ersure they know how 1o,
and Teel thay Can, share they vigws and
cp nons and haves Inem hsiened to and
addrezsed appropiately. This year it has
been il 1o retam to tace-to-face
canversarons with aur pecple atthar
place of waork Ry v its have inciuced:

Hants, new sTora eadershin
@ tearms N Frimark

« retsi as
teams and aead o
in ltaty and reland,

cperatans and customer services
teams fron AB Neo in cur AB Agn
division,

operations, "echnical, and sarly career
employees i Aceturn, our balzamic
vinegar business,

ararge of emgioyges warking within
the ABTF Cantre;

employees at the Inteliync Technical
Lerntre i freland, part ot our Ad /Agn
CivISION; ars

agrnculture antd operatrons empioyges in
cur Plovo sugar businessas in Malawi,
FMorambigues and Eswating.

During all my wisits | have generally
found a pos tive, supportive and inclusive
culture where we discussed an extensive
range of issues and, 'n the main, our
employees were aware of where, when
ard haw 10 g ve opinions. Where speoific
ingal 155ues have emerged, « heve
thscussed thess with, the relevant chiet
executive and Peorpie/HR director and

local leadershio i@ams.



Cther Board directors also interact
directly with our businesses and
employees, detalls of which can be tound
on page 114.

\Wnrlfaree angagamant is discuzsed in
depth at two of the Board meetings, with
the Chief People and Performance Officer
presanting a group visw of progroes

on workforce engagement, including
metrics, precess enhancements, and
stories from across the Group that
highlight the "we asked, you said, we
listened, we did’ feedback loop. There

is also an annual Board session focused
on talent, succession and progress an
inclusion. |n addition, at every Board
meeting there are chief executive
presentations or papers submitted
covering workforce engagement to
ensure all areas of the business are
reviewed in depth durning the year. lhe
Chief Executive and Chief People and
Parformance Officer also mest twice a
vear with each divisional chief executive
and Peopla/HR director for in-depth
discussions on organisation and talent
that include workforce engagement.

The divisianal People/HR directors,
facilitated hy the Chief People and
Performance Officer, alsoc come together
regularly to learn and share with each
other across s variety of topics, inciuding
workforce engagement.

As a result of the ongoing focus and
expactations of myseit and the Hoard,
and the commniment ot business
teadership, 1 have been pleased to see a
range ot examples trom across the Group
where nur penple have vnired ideas,
suggestions, 1ssues and concerns, and
thsa bheing aoted on praraptly, Such as.

AB World Foods has introduced
support and training on Effective
Meetings;

ACH US & Canada has run a series

of webinars for all its people covering
mentai heaith, stress management,
healthy eating, emotional intelligence,
personal investing and esiate planning;

GWF's Mauri business has

developed and introduced a range ot
communications, including podcasts
and briefings, to help people feel more
connectad to the business strategy;

GWF's Tip Top business has
adopted wellbeing checks and
support, as well as workload and
resourcing adjustments;

GWF's Tip Top business also launched
an e-bock and videos to explain the
strategy for its employees, enabling
digital engagement with the purpose,
key initiatives and outcomes;

-

.

.

Silver Spoon has used the feedback in
its engagement survey to implement
changes at a team level targeting

the needs of that group, for example
improving recognition in the sales
team, which 13 now an area ol focus at
each team meaeting;

Twinings in Auctralia, SEADM (South
East Asia Developing Markets), Tea
Supply Chain and Central Europe have
enhanced their communal and informal
breakout spaces in the office;

Twinings Tea Supply Chain teams have
held workshops to explain the pay
process to employees;

Westmull continues to use its "Westmill
Says’ engagement survey to listen to
and respond to feedback in its business
in 3 variety of ways, such as its
monthly 'Westmaill' magazine keeping
empioyees up 10 date on initiatives in
the business;

Azucargra has increased internal
communication with regular updates
from its Board and Managing Director,

lllove has implemented the Lumina
Leadership Development & Team
Effactiveness Training to drive line
manager effectiveness — 65% of
leaders have completed the training so
far with excelient feedback;

AB Agri has formed a project team of
employees to create an engagement

plan and toolkit, with the aim ot more
consistent communication of strategy
and goals across the business;

AHFl has staried a techrical careers
project in response to feedback on
career development;

ABFI is working to develop an approach
to recognition 1o address the needs of
its ermmployees;

cur European AB Mauri businesses
have implemented line management
training on performance management
and return to work discussions;

AB Mauri in the Netharlands has
introduced a consistent employee
Welibeing Prograrmme;

AB Mauri in Sri Lanka has a new
process for allocating duties with
its employees;

AB Mauri in Brazil is making
improvements to publication of internal
vacancies to increase the likelihood of
internal applicants;

Primark has set up priority champion
groups for themes identified in its
engagement survey,

« Primark has launched Zing, an internal
social media platform, providing
infermation to all colleagues,
including articles and messages
fram senior leaders. In addition, it is
developing plans to increase
the focus on recognition through
internal communication,

-

Primark is developing the new Fwd
Th!nk platform to encourage innovation
and to allow employees to share their
ideas; and

ABF Centre is supporting line managers
1o work with their teams to drive their
chosen actions to address Wellbeing
and DEL

Despite the energy and effort from the
Board and all our leaders to give our
people a voice, there may be occasions
when employees do not feel comtfortable
to raise issues directly. Our new Speak
Up Policy launched last year is now
embedded in our businesses and
provides an alternative route for our
employees to raise concerns. You can
read more on page 80 about how Speak
Up has been used since it was launched.

In the year ahead we continue to
expect our businesses ta widen

their machanisms fer understanding
workforce engagerent wherever they
can, and 10 understand this information
through 3 variety of lernses, such as
under-represented groups or frontline
workers, so they can target ther
actions t¢ enhance workforce
engagement overall.

1he Board and | will continue to approach
the area of workforce engagement with
tocus and ngour, tinding opportunities

to further deepen and enhance our
understanding of our people’s experience
of ABF, and in turn ensuring that our
leaders are acting on their feedback.

Richard Reid
Non-Executive Director

\y, W
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ccriirued

Board leadership and company purpose <o

Engagement with
shareholders

!ndwlduai shareholders
Fave a sunber of indiv-diel
hare~clders, Al sharehelders &
aed 10 c‘mrih_i e AGM i pers
nd T

<
11

—

L .1u'|ﬂg Sure we

LJ“\H"‘, la Ay 11

OF OO MLINICE

at of pd“u B USE,

[=IEA O

‘:5te

SrEVET POSS]
and encourage srareholders (o 5w
W0 E-COMMLnIcatens in arder 16

reduce further our epsr Jch‘d. Ve
courags
wodends nto bu""\ o b ading

1=h

Institutional investors
Dur ng the year, the Beard nas
mmaintaired an active prograrm e of
engagerrent Witk nstilutions nvesters
e nurpase of whieh s both 1o develop
Jaretolders’ understarding of the
Cormpany's strategqy, operatans a
verfommance and 10 previde the Boar
Veiner dv{J“Gﬁbbw of tne vews of
aigrificant s° i ers. Thare has been
ngspEment with institut ara
mvestors or the Romuneration Poloy,
further detads of v b s included o the
Direciors’ Remunerstior Repott starting
oh page 126, At ezch Beard meeting,
the dll’r:LTO_g are hinefed oy shereholder
reetings that have tabken place and
a0 feedbeck receved, inclidng ary
sigr ficant concerng rased

112
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reifiruect

AGM
I'he AGM provides an epportunity fo
directors to engage vath sharzholders,
snswer ther guesticns ard (o mest
trene o migtly. The AGR will be Feld
on Fréay 9 DPCN-“ber 2022 a1 11.00
g st ihe Conaress Centre, 28 Graat
RusseH Strest, Londm\"ClB 2LS
that sharetalnars vl be zbie o
M S3ETSOI, Jill gleo e ine
e-ed shareholriers o
throughi a -
Ao el Loy age
17 RENS0T ON
i

s anes o

silnity forre

folow urotees:

e AGR welisile, Ve il
Fargholders not allendin
he day
e msetng or e lresolatons pat fore
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o the nav i they ar

1o vele By proxy
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able “ovaote
Aot attena rgn

h alsrarenooers

‘|t"‘r‘

ave Ju ,ur- | y Eut iheir
neeting EH alized’ng n persos or Ingo

:hisie) or in advance
% 66 S

on via tha AL v

of 1he mesting. Reg ztered shaeho
who o

o "c:“(\'cu proceedirgs if
mon the AGM wehs:
ST guestons durng the
details a2 incuded in
M “':L,e of D\Gf Jand documentaunn
ACCOMINERYIT Ly Yo At vcies
are laven oy 2021, vot g
ovore weer 0% of e

evels at t
pary's

Cons

Annual Report
We pub'isha ‘(L.‘ i Arr" 4l Fesert ard
s &a WICH Con

MDCOUNG &
S1CNSIDE

Strategic hp \cn Te5

2511t and 00 our website:
WA rjuf COLLK.

Responsibifity/ESG
We pubish a Resporsimlity Beport
ard ESG Insights on 17e 1ssues mest
materal o e businesses withim our
Group. The Company Secretary acts
afocel po I CornmuUnications
on reatters of corporate responsibiny.
Curng the yvear, the Comnany respondsd
o =e“1ueqs for mastres, teleplcre
Aanformation from
3 (,‘[" anistirg ﬁnri potential sharehcle dare
5 dles ona bro:d EIMeTs

L MaTd

Nadirid o

Meetings

The Chalrmean meets with the Company's
arehclzoers o

hear ther vicaws gand distuss ary ssue

or cance s, durng the ver” tre
Charmean he d mestings with a ~samber
of .nst it oral shareho'ders (eiier in

G0 0 vIrt |y} and digcusead 2

ng ihe Cc-rr K,m‘\/ s

e snrouncer ert of the
ress'ts, the Company's
ders, 1ogetier win
nvited 0 a
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MVESTors THCE VIBWS
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5 oargest checiders

Website (www .abf.co.uk)
Curwebhsite s regularly dpee=ted 21d
conta ns :halve range of
o f“:CH G GGr CF mpﬁr‘. roThers

a comipne

C&LAG, prasartations,

MEnc =l
rileases and nontact r*‘e‘[ ils T) HSE
e

A
oz
cldars 1=

NEws,
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Division of
responsibilities
Board composition

At the date of this repurt, the Be
anprisas the “ollevarg directors:

Chairman
Michgel WMeLintock

)
I

Executive directors
Ceorgs Weslon iChisf Eve-"u'vel
John Eagaon JFinenne Direcing

Non-executive directors
Rath Camie 1Senicr ‘ndepends
Eivema Acam o

Graram Adlan

Weltrart Hauser
Darre Heather Ra
R:chard Reid

-¥ Biographical and related information

about the directors is set out on pages
106 to 107.

T OHrECtorn

YWe cansider the sze of the doard *o
ke large enough w0 ensure diversity and
=n appropriate vanety of skiis whist
st being sall encugh to ersore
‘-_Je.\lt\,« f dehate T 5 Viewy
1 by the externat Boa '

a3 o "Cd

o

Chairman and Chief Executive
Tre roles of tha Charman and the Chee?
Esxeculive are sgparatey hel C ard h?
dwisien of their responsibe i
slished, set nut i wmting, an
syresd oy the Boa-d to ensu’e gt ro
e nas unfe Fltered powers of dagision.
Couves £ O oL

a rman s responsibic for e
operation and le ship of the Bo
ensuning 18 afteciveness and setung its
agenda. The Cnairman works with the
Camnpany Secretary 1o set the zganda for
Board meatngs The Cha’ premotes
re of openress end debate,
a Lm@ 2| <» v fasior in sesxing

e of the Beard re'auvely
_Ii.ales construci-ve Soard
s and cortnbution ‘rant a1 non-
as wel gs er
ve accarale, tmoty
e Tre Charmen was
oirtmrert.

arg,

man

bheen

Attendance of directors at Board and Comm:ttee meetmgs

Michze! MoLiniock 29
George Weston
Johin Bason
Emma Adamo
Uraiham Allan
Rutl: Cairnie
Vo'fhart Haaser 9,'9
Dante Heather Habbatts 8/9

Richard Rad R

delegated to the Crief Exen
inr execution of iurther delegat ur by
Fimn for the effective day-to-day 1unnirg
and maragement of the Group e chicf
sutive of esch buginess waithoan the

w0 has autho 1ty 1or that Dusingss and
2ctly o the el Exec.ive.

f

(3
TEUCRS dre

Senior Independent Director
The nurpese of s 1o 215 10 ACT as &
g board for the Charman and

ciractors wlere necessary Iirg benor
‘nrlenendent Drector 1s also avatlable

corvey concerns to the Board wernich
they have oeen urable 1o cenvey throwgh
she Chawman o throl ‘oh tire executive
aractors. The role of the Senic
vendent Drector s st out i

anda copy s @

IRES

salalle onrequest.

N 200 U001 MEsTRy WA NOT-eEcUt ve
SIGTS v -1" sut the Chan

e Chainmaen's per 12nca
e further de o pag-’—:
1161, <he Ser o indeperdent Drec
mects with the non-executive n'ur—r ars
OGN OThar CcasionNs 85 “eCersary

MY Dieser

tier

The non-executive directors
Ihe non-executive directors, i edait.n
-0 ther rezporshiliies for suatagy
and busness resuits, pigy a key rmien
prov'ong a sehd fourdaton for geed
norporaie govarnance and ensure that ro
irdvidual of group denunates the Board's
on-making. They each cooupy,
or have ocouple c 5 nior pestions n
mdustry wlhech, taven together, cover
read range of junsdictions, brmoirg
SDCLT ves tothe
sard’s deboerations thraugs thas
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Division of responsibilities
continued

Board meetings

The Board he'd nine mee I"El‘» during
the finarcia: year, Peniort . Boaid

mectings are held away fforn e
cerporste centren Lorcon.

g of the diractors at Board
1g the

he etlendarc
~d Commttes meetings dur
s s showen o the tab

a director 1s unanle 1o wate na
21TNEr 1 pEYSCn of remotely,
man wnl solicit the’r vigves on
Py itense of tus.nees in advance of the
rewevart meeting and stare th
the rrestry so that they are sble to
contribiate 1o he debate.

partcs

those

Al of e cirecicis alterderd
m:ﬁe‘?rr's that they were elieile

2ve for wo excepuons Graham
and Dame Feather F’.ml:ans Vars
unable to zrrend a non-reat 1re Board
reeetng scheduen in December 2021,
zithiough were teken throwgh the papers

i)

rf

in aaverce ad therr views solicited. Also,
Graham Allan was unable to attend one
~

Ramureranor Commitise nrestirg during
she year that was screduad at short
notice. The Bemur ion Comm'tiee

i od vt him e advance of the

reet f(; D ensdie hit S eves Wers
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Information flow

The Camparny Seci
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apon

V.
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Teet
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Board induction

Trhe Company proviges ail non-evecutive
dircctais vath o talorad and thorouah
nrogramime of induction, which
faciitated oy the Charrmran and the
Canrnany Seuewy and vohich takes
account of prlor EXpEnence and husine
DETS p(—w ves zrd the Comrnivitees an
witich he or she seives. This typically
includes traneg, as well 8s s'te vis 18 and
ITEerngs with man Ment 1o got 1
Lrow the busimesses hetter.

o

4

Dame Heather Rabpatis 1he nevwest
non-exscutive cirector aopoinied 1o the
continued Ferductcn wih 2
e AR Werld Foods faciory in

choin February 2022, v May 2022,
Canme Heather Rabhatts and Ermma
Adamo together wisided the Acctum
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k up team as well
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At
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nd hesith and safely adviser
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NMansozment Contererce . South Africa
i Coptombar 2022

Grc-."am Alan attended the Conrpany
ESG Imvesior Day in perscn in May 20?q

For derails o visi
varety of bus

pease see page 110



Composition, succession and evaluation

Board succession

There 1s a formal ard transperent proc
Nommatc Committee Heport on pac

e on Sy [ ',»~,

-
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i

of Soand and serior migragement

Re-election of directors

Board evaluation

2021 external Rnard evaluation
As reporie
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g frorm ¢

Actmns from 2021 external evaluaticn
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nevelod o set "f rek a;,.pems:a amlh con
.

artculsire the 3oard’s wolerance for risk

Engscirg the Direcicr of Busness
mforneation and pre

better maet the n=eds of the Board.

I TOr e provie or

ru ])

rrang!
card

fo‘ oveing re

2022 internal Board evaluation
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tor the appomtmrent of mas

SLOCERE ON p‘ar‘us and diversy

the 2021 exterral Soard evaluat

Deveiopment to wrdertzke
sentancns provided by 102 n
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011 8 which ais of tire

Outcome

©r buter
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How the Board evaluation was
conducted
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Composition, succession and evaluation

Key recomimendations and actin

Recommendation
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Nomination Committee Report

Members

At the date of this report, the
following are members of the
Committes:

+ Michael McLintock (Chair)
* Graham Allan

* Ruth Cairnie

« Wolfhart Hauser

« Dame Heather Rabbatts

+ Richard Reid

All members served on the
Comrmittee throughout the year,
with the exception of Dame Hsathet
Habbatts who was appointed on 2
November 2022,

Meetings
The Committee met once during the
year undear review,

Primary responsibilities

in accordance with its terms of
reference, the Nomination Committee’s
ity responsibilities meluded:

Governance

Members of the Nominaticn

Committee are appointed by the

Board from amongst the directors of

the Company, in consultation with the
Chairman. The Nomination Committea
comprises 8 minimum of three members
at any time, a majority of whom are
independent non-executive directors, A
quorum consists of two members, being
either two independent non-exacutive
directors or one independent non-
executive director and the Chairman.

Only members of the Nomination
Committee have the right to attend
Nnminatinn Committee meetings. Othor
individuals such as the Chief Executive,
members of senior management,

the Chief People and Performance
Officer and external advisers may

be invited to attend meetings as and
when appropriate.

Michael Mclintock
Nomination Committee Chair

leading the process for Board
appointments and making
racommendations 1o the Board;

reviewing regularly the Board
strugture, size and composition
{including skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) and
recommeanding any necessary or
desirable changes;

considering plans for orderly
succession for appointments to the
Board and to senior manegement,
with regard to skilis, know'edge,
oxporianca and diversity;

keeping under review the leadership
needs of the Group, {0 ensure

its continued ability to compete
effectively in the markeiplace; and

being responsible for identifying
and nominating, for the approval of
the Board, candidates to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise.

The Nomination Committea may take
independent professional advice on any
matters covered by its terms of reference
at the Company’'s expense.

The Nomination Committee Chair
reports the outcome of meetings to
the Board to the extent that any Board
members are not in attendance at the
relevant meeting.

The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committea are available on the Corporats
Governance section of the Company’s
website: www.abf.co.uk.

Committee activities during
thec year

Succession planning

The Board continues to emphasise
generalist skills in Board recruitment as
well as continuing 1o factor in all forms of
diversity, including gender and
athnic diversity.

As it is the practice that all directors of
the Board attend Nomination Comrmittee
meetings, activities that would normally
be carried out by a separate Nomination
Committee are often dealt with by the
Hoard as a whole, A detaiied review of
succession planning in raspect of senior
management was presented to the Board
by the Chief People and Performance
Officer at the Beard meeting in July
2022. This included a focus on the
approach to succession planning, the
development of talent and careers acrpss
the Group, the status of diversity and *
inclusion reporting requirements and
netwaorking across the Group.

Board appointments process

The process for making new
appointments s led by the Chairman.
Where appropriate, external, independent
consultants are engaged to conduct a
search for potential candidates, who are
considered on the basis of their skills,
experience and fit with the exsting
members of the Board. The Nominaticn
Committee has procedures for appointing
directors and these are set outin its
terms of reference.

Process for appointment of a new
executive director

During the year, the Chairman led the
process for conducting a search for a
new hnance director,

Spencer Stuart, an external executive
search consulting rm, was engaged to
help identify potential candidates. The
firm is & signatory to the "Voluntary Code
of Conduct for Executive Search Firms’
on gendar diversity and best practice

as well as being a member of the CBl's
Change the Race Ratic. The Chairman
has previously been a member of

the advisory board of Spencer Stuart but
that role had terminated prior to

this engagement.

Potential candidates were considered on
the basis of their skills and experience,
including looking outside the FISE

250, Fellowing a rigorous progess of
interviews with various members of

the Nomination Committee, the Board
approved in July 2022 the appointment
of Ecin Tonge as a director at a date

t0 be determined but no later than
February 2023.

Re-election of directors

The Nomination Committee members
considered the composition of the Board
and the time needead to fulfil the roles of
Chairman, Senior independent Director
and non-executive directar. They also
censidered the re-election of directors
prior ta ther recommended approval by
shareholders at the AGM.

Michael McLintock
MNomination Committee Chair

AL /N L Veors
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Graham Allan
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Richard Reid

t18 Associated British Foods ple 2 iz Ropor 202



Audit, risk and
internal control

Financial and husiness reporting
Plazee see the Audit Cammuttes Beport

srarting o0 pege 2|

T’*e Boait recognises that 1ts
esmengshiity 1o e t g fair, halanced
EFd unuerstandaols sssassmert extends
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are farr, reea and anders andabe 4
provide the aformation necessary or

sharehclders to as
' aranse, bhusiness mode
and 51 1ategy The Cempany pracucad
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of the risk managemeant ard internal
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Standards

Tre e are gLide!’ the e
roupwvide recuniements for hiealth and
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L.rum DNy, lhe c3en position at G and
business evel 15 mhonitored consia 'mv
and variances fromm ex peu teil lavels sre
nvest gated theroush

C.ear. ¥ ce fired guidelings have been
nd for capital expenditure and
nt decisions. Trese inciude
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acomprebersyve setof inancizl repors
ard ney performance ndicator s covenng
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corfrmatior that ther busmess has

+ith Tve Group Accountng
reparaion of consondated

=nis and Sped

[s u‘*‘f“ LI e adequnry ad aoi

ical'y 1o
curacy of

Associated British Foods ple Ann:

Internal audit

Tra Croup's Lusinasscs amp d
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lerngt 2udht resanIces s o qndertake
audits 1o onsurs comphar v-\mlhe

o f‘cjm \'\(_fk o make
onimendat s for imorevement in
s venerE appropnate, niernat
audit ¢lso conduets regular reve
ish management proccdures
ire observed. Tire Audt
ecenes [egU'er tepornts on
mtarmnal esdit's wark ang
status of reuorn'l.tnuatlo 5
Crm-:w HEe revieves ar nug’ y
the adesuscy, qw.hﬁcatcm and
swperieres ¢f the Growp's risnal avdi
rgzourcss and fhe nalue and scope
tactivity -1 the nver
condowiof the Group's st rranag
syste. The G-oup's Directo- nf Frna~cia
Cartrol nreets with tne Char o the

it Comminiea as appropnate mul ER
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Audit, risk and internal
control coniinuad

Assessment of principal risks
ters confim trEt ounng the
‘\.r‘r‘-, ine Bosgtd has o \ed cut a rebust
1ent of tho ;jr:r‘(;wpai EINS
,!U(ng it
SNEss Mo
-ure performance, & \d sulvency or
\qu'u‘\ty A e a(,l'p on of these pring’
and emerging r'eks and how they a
¢ og managed and Tingsted s set out
O GEGES 3-1 0101,

=

Annual review of the
effectiveness of the systems
DUHPr

@ year the Pnam rw:ewed
e:‘eﬂ“ﬂfl‘*: Gre wslﬁ-:nc
and internal control

alfetalie] q ail rater al
sysie Narcle’, operation
and com *"al.uc-ml rols, 10 ensure

they reman rebost. The revieny coveled
i I year w0 17 Septerber 2022
“hio [Jer‘cu 1o the nate of approval of

1zl Report, The rev ew ir

s N place to 'rm\gale e,
of v mh

+ tl e arnual assessment o
centrod, which, “ellcwing co
by the Audii C
zssutance o the Bomd around

cruTtTee, Drov

ut oG nternal

hose

otled

szted tro orfocivoraes of
T Ppredestes forn IR )
Caqement anrc

a8

1=

1c\|T
sndd reviewaing nige n
mterral contio: No significant fa 0
or weabnesses were -Centif.eu by
review and e Soard 18 satshed that
wehigra oreas of |'r|[:‘r0\v-emem
identfied, processcs are i place to
ensure that remedial action s taken and
proerass maorntered

The Board corfrrned that 1Twas satisfied
H at ‘\ 18 Sy5ems and processes
furcticning effectively ar '1 com
wer aremenis of the 2018 Coos,

Please also see the Audn Committes
Fepart o pages 1271 1w 125,

ovela .
gl [y statsmiant ar‘:d
(ﬁl(fc‘r“ "g CoNCern 15 A2t Gut

s EIT
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Members

Duning e vear and as at the date of
this report, members and Char of ths
Comrimittes Fave beon as foilows:

Richard Reid iChaimn
Grahan Allan
Auih Carme

Wo tnart Havser
Dame Heather Ha

Meetings
Tre Fr\h’rr ttee niet ‘our IMes i e

rence, the .:\«‘n(_]IL Cunire i
orimary responsibilites el

Financtal repomng
~g the nteg 'ty of the
fnarcial statoments ard any formal
ar~ouncermeants relating 1o the
Crimp=ny's perform :
sgnficant inancia repotting
judgements contained in them belore
thelr s ibrission 1w the Board,
informing te Board of tha cuiccime
of the Groun's external audit and
explainmo Fow i contrnibuted 17
miegrty oF fnancigl reporting,
reviewitg and challenging, whers
rocessary, the consstency of, and
charges 10 accounting and treasury
polwmeq, witgther the Grous has
cllewed appiognals sccountng
polmes and rnade appronnata
estimates r»r“uj.,dqem "1, 1
clanty and compieteness of
disclosurae, sioriicart adinsiments
restlung Pornhe audit; the goirg
umphen, the vabl iy
= =ci comphance werl

LA atali]

I~a

stancaids,

Narrative reporting
s atile Board's recusst, teviever g
the cont e Anrna P Dort

and adhy w‘q {he Boa ci o whathar,
tar, baanced
d provides
‘-«ry for

teken as a v
and unders
the mfcrmaucn ¢

shareholdars to
CQJ.[ aly'S Dos :
busiress model and 5Ud*“f1y,
wirers requesied by the Boar
assistiig nore'ation o tbe Boara's
rolust ascessment of the orincipai
and e erg\‘ g reks facing e

RSG5

e Contpany for the pL rHOsEs
of disciosures rega ed in tha

DRIOVING Sialemants
'1"-1‘.e Arrual B ;
QG-HG concers

S inTernsEt
wierral control anorish
systens inciuding the y‘*ten
Lo ideaufy, marnags and men tor
fniarcsl :'is"sﬂ including ‘
and overail procass for a“ﬂSQ"rwg
astablished systemrs of interral
frarcial conticl a Gt 5 and
-Hemw:m;c,q cof corrective action
‘aven by manageient,

Whistleblowing and fraud

o rEVIEVET BNG renomwg
Boara an the Group's a
for its employees gnd CO!'T
1013 58 {ONoerns, N Cor

about posaitle nmprosrie
furam,: al renoring, fnancel
manageinert acs

t The on

el arargentants are 0
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Richard Reid
Audit Committee Chair

'HD;.)‘(‘Dw' ate fu Sl action,
g the Growp's pot
picceuures and controls for
preventng b bory, dentifying
mecney lzandenng, end the Group's
arrangements 16

s,

whigtleblow ng;

Internal audit

)

moritoring and reveewvng the
aetiectveress ard ndsperdence of
the Group's rerial audim furction
the contest of the urcup s overall 7 sk
e TUNT EVSIET

CoNS denng ard approv.ng the renst of
irie ! aucht tuncton, ensumg
NAas AGE0UETG TesouIces ard appropn
access o nTorraton to ernabie Lo

nerfarm 15 fonctio ectively: ard

External audit

.

oversesing tneg relatio
Grous's extarsal 2udito oLy
regort ot thc Board ¢ ?;c:\\ year

Fer .t considers the audit contract
shou'd be put oot o lender, aghermg
to any egal reguiements for werderrg
vzuon of the audit services

Camiract s appropnsats, f»ﬂ'newmg

and morconng the externa’ audior's
oheciaty end irgependeance, agreeirg
the scove of ther work and fees

pand 1o then for zudiz, assessing the
effeciveress of the 2 wtpro\esq aiid
agiee ng the y-wr~ Tt tothe
arovison of non-audit

B veith the

R

ool
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continued

Governance
Aucht Cunmnes
woLn of thiee nomm
whc N are irdepencent nor-evecutive

arentors of the Company. Two ne
constituts a quoram

mibers

scooLntng or audirTg !or L‘JT W dmne
; . | \rldult" n, the FO’TIHNIAI'—‘E‘ as

s arg exped
“u‘f:hu and g hav
g of the follow!

. s of, and developirests
clal rencr g noluding the
ourt’ r‘-g srandards end

_J“‘ \‘mﬁruls of recorrmand
aspects of the Cimpeny's
ratiohs INcluding corporats pohices
2 Group's interrsl control

ay n \Jem, e

B e p'c% of, ard dave cpments
NpEny lavy, ‘fector— specd ¢ lgws and
olrer re evant cor;;cwatu i 'ql Lo

the \JL, Cf inle

»

al auditing

‘Lg)u er y tre

Creup's bus

The Comnmuiles naies the ather non-
executyve directors, [ Execuive,
firarce O recter, CI'JL,J Friancia’
Contio er, Director oF F rancai Cortral
and 2enar res tves of 1he ederne
auditor 1o atterdls mestngs 0 full,
glthough 1 reserves the nght tu raguest
any of these dwvidua.s o W.Ilwirm
Crher serior managers are mvited ta
present such reparts as are required “or
the Comrittee to discharge its dut es

Dunrg the year, tie Comnutiee beid
four mectngs with 1he exierral j'\i(ilf'&f
watheut any execut ve membears of 1ie
Jeardd haing prasent

cenia

Tittes has unfestnciad alcess
cy documents and informeat or
as te emiployges of the Compa
ard the external auditor

122 Associated British Foods ple 211 1e

The Committes
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G uy 1t
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Tre Comnutles Charr
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pv:, Laation 1 2027, which fouird that
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reuardér a5 hairg storg ard effe
It was notea that rmerbers came 1o
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“ohust da
ot mee ' .q e
structured end covered a ith yiatier s 0
she Audit Commitiee's renut Tros viowy
redin the 2022 inter
Board evatuatcr,

WES e

AN De H\\ed an
secltan ol the Company's

W ELS:{E‘ ey ebfoo vk

Meetings

The Audit Committee met four
ciur ng *ht vear. The Committee
agendaigiinied to evants in He
Group's firarcial calenca

Activities during the year

In arder 1o “aifil 15 terrs of refereqce
Audit Commiittge recaives and
roviews presentations and reports
remthe Grcup BB O FIANECe

v the

Monitoring the integrity of reported
financial information

Frisur.ng the integnity of -

fina~cial staterments ard associated
APNOUNCENENTS 1S ndan
respensibity of the Aud't Committee.

al

g yaer it formally ievisesed the
tc INY &N aneJa- reports,
f

Durrg
Group's

Trese reviews considarad:

£

sscripuos of performance in the
1al Report 10 ersure 1t was far,
wced ang understandsble,
. ‘me acccunt‘ng princai'es, policies
and practces adopted in the Group's
ancial statemerts, ary proposed
cherges o them, ard the sdequecy of
ther diaclosure,
ImMpEoitant ace
complexiy, The achons, &s1ma4
Juctgements of marsgement -
to finannal renerting and in porll

NQ EEUES Of
tes and

Culz
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ralzy on
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.
reDO“N" FaAnsing from the sudit
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on of the potert al

5 of the BEIS Wihite Poper:
: Trustin Audit o Corporate
Governan:

Hing in ine with tee
recunrrerdat.ons and recon mrended
aaclosures of the Task Force an
Climate-relsted bnanogl Disclosares
TTCRD, which the Comipany is regui-ed
to do for tis financial year crvards;

&5, dhid
“m furd

treasury poic
Group long-:

03,

g ng op
Significant accounting issues
considered by the Audit

Committee in relation to the

Group's financial statements

A ey recponsi Ty o the Corannttes

s 1o congder the s fleant areas of
camlenty, manage: tyudgerrent and
.snmataum “at have been ax i

led 1 e
ne financial stazements.

{'EY"
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ard judgemenis
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reascnabienzsys of casi: flow grojectinns
Ldget approven by (he Board
ted fv“anmen‘n\“‘ s expec[at cns of gg'es growth, cparsting
cos‘xs and n*arqm based on past expenence and exter al sources of
pEirTant nvclves companng the - S Co T P o

twith its recoverable amount, 554 terdans Dc,rset Pyvita

Impairment of goodwill, intangible,
property, plant and equipment and right- ‘+heh wwere taseq on :

of-use assets

Assesament for

oo« value of an ¢

be rg the hugher of valve- n-use ana fair value
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re-’er; (e oo ected future rasn fowvu dmrour*ad S ETS ‘ d o ensure nat they we e appropriate for the preduc:s,
‘a Jath the cast and Adustries ard countiies nowhich the re'svent cash-yeneiaung unins
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expaciad changes cri
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disclosures in respect of e bey
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cof "hese assumptions
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fihe key assum
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i Primnars Germiany, £72m aga s 3nL and equipment and
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nties, 1t oo
8 9 and 10 were
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550N

challer

Impact of inflationary pressures and The Committee has revigvead and challeged
COVID-related matters on the viability masagerert end corcladsd that these, ana the
statement and going concern al'd A5sUPIDINNG, WELR oIeRrate and nd(qw late
The Group 3s ~roncen 'aosues challenges,
COVID-e wour gliserces and a\qz"rmrt
it ationaty DIESSUres N ravy mater
arid energy These ntlationdry pre :
fortmer with the Russian rvasion of Usrare e The Comimittos nas hear
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As ravicwed the detaled cast flow “\'ﬁca':tﬂ which

D1 gaung actans proposes by managerent. The

3’30 reviewed and chalenged the revarse atress ASSUNTETGNS
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B ; Lept intarned of e impacts of inflaniosary
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Post-retirement henefits
Valustion of the Group's pers

507 schenmes ard
nefit sehemes reguile
o ba mada inciuding

post-retremant medical
various subiective judyen gris

ot assumphons, dscount rates, gereral and
calary Mitiaucn, and tha :a1e of ergase for pensions

in payTent and ihose in defermeny,

Taxation
Currert ard u:fu ed tax recoynised 11 the firancia

stzrements s ceuendent on suliject ve uogenents
a3 o the cutcome of decis'ons by ta. autrorines

varous jpnsdictions arcend the waoold and the anitty
ot the Grodn 1o Use 18X I0SSE3 Wit n the Lme hrmits

srposed by vanols tax authontes,
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NGO

SRR

shigations are
p%l’deﬂt quabfied
the assun

Actianal valvauors 07 the Qroua’'s pension 9
urdertaken every three years i the UK by an
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valuations in atier jurisdictions sre parformed as required Detads of the
assurptions made  the currenst and previcus year are Adisclosea in -
12 of the financial stelenients togetner vath the bases or which thase

et
ave bheen made,

The Commuttes revigwant The assimsnnns by Qi 0N WWITH D%
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L
k
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1re fin

@y
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cot ducted during the cluding how ibeir sac’t proceduras vwere
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The Commmee 3 SCUSSSn It Lo anagerent and the ewienral
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management
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Hhirg itz resporsis hties
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fraud pope b aled sydinst the Group
and the action taken by management
both to pursue the perpetrators and to
prevent r1coceurences.

External audit

Auditor independence

The Audit Committee is responsible for
the deveiopment, implementation and
manitoring of policies and provedthues
on the use of the external auditar for
non-audit services, in accordance with

professioral and regulatory requirements.

These policies are kept under review

10 meet the objective of ensuring that
the Group benefits in a cost-effective
manner from the cumulative knowiadge
and experience of its auditor, whilst also
ensuring that the auditor maintains the
necessary degree of independence and
objectivity. The Committee’s palicy on
the use uf the external auditor to provide
non-audit services is in accordance with
applicable laws and takes into account
the relevant ethical guidance for auditors.
Any non-audit work to be undertaken

by the auditor requires authorisation by
the Finance Director and above & cerlain
threshald, by the Audit Committee, prior
te its commencement. The Conimilles
also ensures that fees incurred, or to

be incurred, for non-audit services, both
individually and in aggregate, do not
exceed any limits in applicable fuw and
taxe into account the relevant ethical
guidance for auditors.

The Committee is required to approve
the nse nf the external auditor to
provide: accounting advice and training,
corporate responsibility and other
assurance services; financial due
diligence in respect of acquisitions

and dispnsals; and will consider other
services when it is in the best interests
of the Company to do so, provided they
can be undertaken without jeopardising
auditar independence. Tax services
including tax compliance, tax pianning
and related implementation advice may
not be undertakaen by the external auditor
axcept in very exceptional circurnstances
where specialist knowledge is required.
The aggregate expenditure with the
Group auditor is reviewed by the Audil
Committee. No individually significant
non-zudit assignments that would require
disclosure were undertaken in the
financial year.

The Company has a poiicy that any
partners, directors or senior managers
hired directly from the external auditor
must be pre-approved by the Chief
Fuople und Petformance Uthoer, and
the Finance Diractor or Group Financial
Controlar with the Char of the

Audit Commitiee being consulted

As appropriate,

The Audit Committee has formally
reviowed tho independcnece of the
external auditor. EY has reported to the
Committee confirming that it believes it

remained independent throughout
the year, within the meaning of
the regulations on this rnattar

and i deeurdance with its
professional standards.

To fulfil its responsibility to ensure the
indepandence of the external auditer, the
Audit Committee reviewed:

- A report from the external auditor
desrrihing arrangements to idontify,
report and manage any conflicts of
interest, and policies and procaedures
for maintaining independence and
manitoring compliance with relevant
requirements; and

= tha axtent of non-audit services
pravided by the external auditor.

The total fees paid to EY for the 52
weeks ended 17 September 2022
ware £10.1m, of which £0.9m
related to non-audit work. Further
details are provided in note 2 to the
financial statements.

Auditor effectiveness

To assess the effectiveness of the
external auditor, the Committee
reviawed.

the external auditor’s fulfilment of the
agreed audit plan and variations from it;
reports highlighting the major issues
that arose during the course of

the audit;

feedback from the businesses

via questionnaires evaluating the
performarnice of each assigned

audlt team, planning, chatlenge and
interaction with the business; and
areport on EY, as a firm, from the Audit
Quality Review Team {{ACRT') of the
Financial Heporting Council (FRC).

The Audit Committee holds private
meatings with the external auditor after
each Committee meeting to review key
issues within their sphere of interest
and responsibility.

To 1ulfil its responsibility for oversight
of tha external audit process, the Audit
Committee reviewed:

the terms, areas of responsibility,
associated duties and scope of the
auclit as set out in the external auditor’s
engagement fetter;

the overall work plan and fee proposal;
the major issues that arose during tha
course of the audit and their resolution;
key accounting and audit judgements,
the level of errors identified during the
audit; and

recommendations made hy the syternal
auditor in their management letters

and the adequacy of management's
{ESDUNSE.

*

Auditar appointment

The Audit Committee reviews annually
the appointment of the anditar,

taking into account the auditor's
effectiveness and independence, and

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022

makes a recommendation {o the Board
accordingly. Any decision to open

the extarnal audit to tender is taken

on the recommendation of the

Audit Committee.

Tha Company's current external auditor,
EY, was first appointed at the annual
general meeting in Cecember 2015,
with effect from 2016, following the
conclusion of a competitive tender
process. The Audit Committee is satisfied
with the auditor’s effectiveness and
independence and has recommended to
the Board that EY be reappointed as the
Company's external auditor for 2022/23.
In accordance with applicable law and
regulation, the Company 15 required 1o
conduct a competitive audit tender
during 2025,

The Audit Committee has discussed

the most appropriate time to carry

out the external sudit tender process,
tzking into account the independence,
objectivity and quality of EY's external
audit and has concluded that, based on
current performance, it is anticipated
that a competitive tender process

will commence in 2025. The Audit
Committee considers that a cornpetitive
tender is in the best interests of the
Company's shareholdars as it will allow
the Company to appoint the audit firm
that will provide the highest guality, meost
effective and etticient audit.

Compliance with the CMA Order

The Company contirms that, during the
period under review, it has complied
with the provisicns of The Statutory
Audit Services for Large Campanies
Market lnvestigation {(Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit
Committee Responsibilities) Crder 2014,

o
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Annual statement by the Remuneration Committee Chair

Ruth Catrnie
Remuneration Committee Chair
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Remuneration in 2021/22

STiP 2021/22

The calculated outturn on the STIP
financial performance measures for thig
year is 48.43%. The Comimitiee believes
that this is an appropriate sutcome,
reflecting the stretching budget set, the
resilient performance ot the business

in the face of exceptional inflationary
headwinds and the progress against
strategic objectives.

LTIP 2019-22

in 2020, our pay outcomes reflected the
immediate impact of COVID-19 with no
STIP being paid, no LTIP vesting, and
cuts of 50% of salary for a substantial
part of the year for the executive
directors. Given the widespread socieia!
impacts on multiple stakeholder groups,
this was appropriate.

Vasting targets for the 2018-21 and
2019-22 LTIPs were no longer expected
to be achievable and addressing this
required careful judgement and an
exceptional approach. We wanted to align
executives’ pay with the critical actions
required to develop and strengthen the
business, preserving and creating value
for shareholders. As | set out last year,
having the 2018-21 and 2019-22 | TIP
awards pre-destined not to vest did not
align to our remuneration principles,

nor would it support the recruitment
and retention of senior leaders in a very
competitive talent market.

In 2021, and as disclosed last year, we
established a performance framework
to support the Committee in applying
discretion in a fair and transparent way.
This considered performance across the
portfolio, as well as ESG achievements
and the experience of omployees,
shareholders, and wider society. Last
vear the Committee decided that 40%
of the original 2018-21 LTIP award
should vest.

This year, with the 2019-22 LTIP targets
made similarly unattainable due to the
impacts of COVID-19, particularly through
the halting of progress on delivering the
pipeling of new stores, we again adopted
a performance framework to support our
considerations of potantial discretion.

Group revenues, profit and EPS were all
much stronger this year as the business
recoverad from the impacts of COVID-19.
The Primark digital strategy and pipeline
of store openings showed significant
progress. We saw good trading,
efficient operational performanceas and
pricing actions 10 recover significant
input inflation in our Food businesses.
Excellent work was done in progressing
our approach to ESG. However, there
have been additional headwinds with
Primark margins impacted by both the
consumer and inflaticnary environment
in summer 2022, Therefore, although
pregress on our strategic KPis has been
good, this has not been reflected by a
recovery in our share price. Considering
the experiance of wider stakeholders
and the decline in share price over the
three-year period, the Committee has
decided not to apply positive discretion
10 2019-22 LTIP awards, and these will
lapse in full.

Remuneration decisions for 2022/23

Salary and fees

When determining salary increases

for our most senior executives the
Committee was mindful of the

external environment and our wider
waorkforce. Inflation is unusually high
and the increase in the cost of living

15 impacting all of our employees. We
have been plegsed that our businesses
have fncussed an ensuring that our
lowest paid colleagues receive higher
pay increases than our most senior
colleagues. Our lowest paid employees
in the UK will be receiving an increase
in ine with the increase in the National
Living Wage, currenily expected to be
around 8%, with ocur wider average
budgeted UK increases in a range of
4% - 8% across the businesses for those
deliversing an acceptable performance in
role. Examples of other actions taken to
support our wider employee population,
including additicnal one-off payments in
some of our businesses, are set out on
page 148. For the executive directors,
we have decided 10 apply an increase
of 3.5% of salary, which is significantly
below the average increases being made
Tur uur wider UK wuorkiotee.
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The fees of the Chairman and NEDs will
also he increased by 3.5%. See page 148
for details.

Board changes - appaintment of

Eoin Tonge

During the vear it was announced that

John Bason will retire as Finance Director

at the end of April 2023 In fine with the ‘
2019 and proposed 2022 Remuneration ;
Policies, John will be treated as a "good

leaver’ for the purposes of outstanding

share awards and will be subject to post-

employment shareholding requirements.

Full details of the treatment of his

remuneration on retirement is provided

on page 147.

We are dalighied that Eoin Tonge will

be joining us as Finance Director. The
ramunaration arrangements that will
apply to him on joining are sst out in
detall on page 146. His salary has been
set below that for John Bason and, as
discussed above, his STIP opportunity

of 200% of salary and RSP opportunity
of 126% of salary (basad on a notional
LTIP awerd of 250% of salary} are in line
with our existing recruitmeant policies. To
support his recruitrment we also intend to
grant awards 10 compensate for incentive
awards frorn M&S that he will forge. in
determining these we followed a set of
guideline principles, ensuring awards
were of the sarne valug, had the same
time horizons and, where applicable, had
similar performance conditions, as those
awards forgone.

As a Committee this year we have

been keen to ensure that simplicity

and alignment with performance and
value creation remain at the heart of our
approach. | hope that you wil] feel able to
support our prepesals.

Ruth Cairnie
Remuneration Committee Chair
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Remuneration outcomes in 2021/22
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!mplementat:on of Remunerqtmn Pohcy in 2022/23
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e wider ABF U< &

STIP For 2022/23 the STIP cont 10 he 2000 of saiary with 7570
aocated al t of the parformaree penod and are sul
vest ng 1'| neial elemert ol the awarc is based on ow\t

medifiern & avent 1‘“1[ |‘~m‘ CUTS resLIT N 510 CUutagas, ay g adpusio

“E fcrman(e slenent hes hewn replaced Jy ESGa Td s rates :; rmeasuras énd the \.\'HN tng for this

enent fias hean | as(;d from 102 of the tota: Woven o the b e betove,

The perconat

Maxirmum
On-arget
TI reshield

=iy ‘-\r‘__.c‘-\-) J

STIP shat be granted n Gecember 2[122 s il lapss at the ernd
Wat perfor ce conntions naee et be ol i ares vy bor
deferred for g further two years, Malus s epply 1o STiP -

after beny paid

wear 10 e ex
corditional and i

lor up e bwo yea's

led it December 2022 cubect to lbe 2022 Poicy heng anproved. Al

may he reduced f tre o o rg undermins are rot ned

Restricted Share Resmicted sharg awards woll b
Plan (RSP) the Coirnitiea's disnrenon,

ROCE above the weigited ave
CVIGET S MaIntan
nsideration ot whetker the naht aciors have been taken o

2 advan wEges

amd pos tion for long-terny susiainah 2 growth, Parfortar 3 . TIL undermn
wi'l b2 deemed wo not be met in the event that 1here s an certs i = seciic managemeant

fai ure, and
satisfzctory governarce performance noluding no ESG issues that result in mate
darage {as deternined by the Board).

NMaxmurm aveard opportun.ties (% of salary

George Wesion 1009 - ma rtamed at 10056 ztire Chiet Executive’s reguest
otn Bason WOO i3
Ecin Tonge 1265 - market tested op recrutment, sze peges 1360 147

forirore detai's

Atwoycar Rost-vesuryg halding penod applies to net of tax shetes Malus and ©swback piovis’ons angly

Tar two years post-vesting.
Shareholding Regarement to own Cot oavelue of at loast 200% of sa.ary Corditiors
requirement awards mat heve 10t ves [l res that have vested and ere subyect 1o a holding pencd
do coLnt At le EO%% of net sna : 2 Lncer the STIF and 357 st ke Wf—d Ll the sharelolding

requternent s niet

"y
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

ATICH i b, subiect to epproval, for =2
=) shars 205 Oty e proe's ons of the

awards granted vader that pobey "ave vesied or ig

This report s€

AGR 013 Dau;

Remuneration Policy review process
IFe ooricy rev.awy has ek en place Over e Co
to d senss the ohal enges of operatng the curr@ri :
shzrehclders and cur respense Yot 1s set ocut i the Co nirittee Char's
cireniorns, as representztives of the views of employees across ibe er.o ard 1o ensure 1
zhgned to our busiiess checaves. The feeg Lm l from shis groun was that sivalic ty and a
our aporeach. Parformance-besed incentives w
peroimance measiire pted 1o reflect the co
ITEASLIBS [2Main Gur performance messures, for
Sugar has g suong forus on retuns over the sugar oycle. T

07 TS CREICISE

"‘.1

curce of this year. Ag part
y and aur r-'opcced changes

VES W

ext at alocal 'ave’. For cxann
JSMESELES N AUMAIoUng
s approach wi

irar

Threughodt The process, the Comnrittee took steps to ensure that any oonficts of o

Dt

on Rerr

g of the roie of e Cormmt teo and the approach <o rranzsg rg conflicts of niteres|

LUneranon

The key charges 1o e previcus policy are snown 10 1he table or page 129,

Base Purpase and link to business strategy

Salary Supuorts the racivtiment ang retention of executve directors of the
catibre reguired 1o develop and deliver the Croup's strategic pricr 1 s
Operation
Bace sa'znes are normaty revievesd on an annua base Factor
o account nclude marret [_,c:y movenierts, the level of ner
awardad o UK employees across 1ie Growp and the inpact c)f ary
Inciease on the sl vent wewtow. aclage.

Benefits Purpose and link to business strategy

{excluding Providas a market cammpeitive leve! of henefits 10 enab.e the recruir ert

relocation) of cxecuive diacrore
Operaticn
Benefits ae 'estrlc‘s” 1o typical UK miarket 'aveis for executive dirgciors
and i ciode, but are not mied 1o, ’P,?th N oservice payment, nermanent
health msurance, travel g lowarce, comoany car pius grivate fusl,
famrily hea'thcare and, where relevan:, fees ‘o ramtan profes
nremaerships

Pension Purpose and link to business strategy

Provices a competiive 'svel of retrementincoric o enable the

recruiimert of executee dreciors

Operation

Defined benefit (DB) arrangements - closed to
new members

Tre Chiel Execulive veas a
schemie, desigred 1o n

o final persicnainle ;Jay at eue
Sl 2036 and etamed s
herei’ 21 EFRES desigr :
vl parnt n;[;a% in the EFRE S wﬂ I ‘%e
penson contrbutiens will e

he Compar“'a oe *)encio-*

nember cf

clt uf LhE‘ schere on 5

2. mince Uren ne \ms ec nen
aroadly to o the DP: scneme. He
'?O?.B Thereattei o furtor
SEalv

s of 2R°

of salary 0 I:. ERAUM

reducs 10 10 7
£0 OYES DOp.al

Future sxscLt ve ovauo
Araigemoms at the

ZmEnt,

Y oErrangamentg |V"

Associated British Foods ple &,

‘2 hava cngaued wide

VETY £
ztrer on page 127 We consulied with the Peo
at our sporoach o mcentives was

grmert were rportant features of

=1 1o work weell 3t a busihess and dres
de wvavat profin veork ng captal ard ret
stone-based olans and KPIs are wied and
CORTINUG &1 & div

are st ol i e A

i the close of the

Ay veith shareho.deis
saf the feedback recerved from
JHR

vtk spec ¢ approaches to

urn-based

on leve

1sicn and ousness leve.

0

ENDron: ate

lagt Renont

Maximum opportunity

rereases wi | rormally re aligned
vt he rarge\ of ‘noieases avalable
for otrer UK empioyecs

‘noreases may be above s level
whers it s consicered an pmpua.
.'0‘ enarnis f"were s

T .

ary of rece: uy u; ;_c, nied

xacltives wno ar e sopoied on
|”:|1'a vy ower levels of bass salary 1o
maove (o ldq TieT |’cT rgTms 4s then
expansnce and contnbut on moreaze

Maximum opportunity
The ¢ost of nerafiis s capped at

- o
Y

‘s
5]

Maximum opportunity

For the Chiel Execatve, a -etiement
cenefi arget of erea two-th rds of
persionable pay s payable at

el retirement age

e Finance Director, tne
max min Company contrbution {or
casn eo;iva E:"ﬂ) 15 258% of salary

of Decenber 2022 and
any thersaftar.

il 1I‘»,— e

0%t ofs

FutLio execulves ms: 2ve

Conpary contributions for cash
eovalant] un te a masdT Lm rate

10 that

algreo
Curentn

sinhsech urne
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Short-term
incentive
plan (STIP)

Restricted
Share Plan
{RSP}

134 Assoriated British Foods ple -2 Feno

Purpose and Imk to business strategy

Feentvisss and teconnises sxacution of the strategy ¢nan
rnual bas.s a m ahgns 1he nterest BOLTVE d fgtols wah

='“:nc~'@ff s through the deferrzs i sharas of 25

w

e ob e avarnd,

Operation

Group “imancial perferinance targets can ap
t~e STiP ard z7a assessed agamst [ rarc.al
the Group 1o drive performancs,

—SG ard str tcc

Iy toup to 100
1BasUrss Uss

rerfo Mialce N"eAsLIes Can arplv 0 \,;

of cond:lonal shares vest based on
and a further sa-vice perod of two

Annugl allocations
perfermrance i year on

years Shares vest three years a’l'—“r the start of the relevert
ST'P perfommrance period, & C’*Si‘: rslhares dividend egovelent
payment is made, pro cata to the rumoer of shares ves t i,

st ihe reease date

Discretion, clawback and malus
e notes that fo ow this table.

PurpOSe and link to business strategy
Toncentivise the achrevement of the Comipary's Jong-term
sirate gy ard the craaton of iong-term renoder valua,

Operation
Shares rormaly vast atta thmﬂ yod 5, subjent W reviaw lJy

[ e

Pﬁr‘o"marﬂrp undarpes Ay be Sased arcunt kay Groop fnanoial
rofor strateg:c measures. it zny of the underin criena are ot
met, the Committee wowa consider whethe
tooscale back tre nurmber of shares 1 ot v
Committee rmay use c.fferant uroer pm

e Comimities deermns ths 1o be supio

ragduos o the underpin critena, the Comne
have cerers! Liscreton 10 adiust vesing leve 5
this wiil bette reflect the underlying pert
individug! or the Company cvar the vestng penod or w
ke cutcome 1S ot g priate in the conteat of unfore
unexpected crcumstar

Afrar vestng, sharss are rormaly subjact to a further two-vear
helding nericd on & ne of tax bass.

Discretion, clawback and malus
Pleasa refer to the nctes tat folow this tab'e

Dividend equivalents

Acash or shares divideny equivalent award ve ll e mead
to the nurmber of shzres vesting, at the release date

&, pro r2la

Maximum opportunity
ST-P cash of 160
STF ahares of 50

T exreplional Circerstances, sucli 6a
NITENT OF 3 Newve ereculie
the cverall rmasxmum could
e o 200% of base <alary
rreduced frory 200% under thg 2019
Polioyl 1o correct any shortfali agzinst
rrarket Any ncrease weuld consider
ex Lstiments in other elerrents of the
pacrage ta ensure that he total was
nol excessive

HI reasmiury, 100%. of the aliocated
g5 vost, at targst 50% vest;
'~:d 1008 L VEE st, and below
u_‘mrw‘.‘ anse,

Maximum opportunity
Upto 125% of base salary a1 o ccation,

sten with cur 2012 Policy, In
ces, such as
tofa Newy exXeLuly

d e ‘noreaseon Io

-.1|‘,f ieg 'Lx\volE‘\ NS]
ndor the previols
~uvs\| ail ana st

A notenisily apohy LG &l
Apleneriator ontl the
SVIINC alion Rehoy revice, A 1Y
veol'd cons dar sdjL
l oAI!c,—‘r gereiis of the e
znsuie that the (o1&l was et eacsssive

felz] tﬂ



Shareholding
requirement

Non-executive
directors’ fees

Operation and link to business strategy
Everutives are tequ red 2o build a holdiog of baneficaly ovr ed
Attt O

Linvasted rommincpeal sveards cnder GLEIrcentive plans oo rot
court toweands thic Lonin

5 ithat have vesiad and aro sulksct 1o a hoelding perod

At 'easl 5095 of et sharee vested under STIF ara LTIF must e
held unti the shareboldrg reguremont -5 met.

Purpose and link to husiness strategy
To atract and retaim a ligh calore Chairrman and non-axacative
direciors by offering matkat compettive Tee

Opcration

The Charmen and expcutve direcions ronewy roen-excculve
directore’ fees nhght of fees payaole i conroarable corrzanias
ard by TENLe W the e comite ity and
techince sklis required 1o mave a ontrbution toar
aifactve hoard, Fees are pad i ce XECLIhvE TECiorns

recaive no other benefas.
Vile pay addiiora: fess to rg—ﬂﬂ" exira qunes srd Time
comntmens As e Char of the Momimaton Commiciee is

carrentiy the Ccmpa.\,f Cnam‘m:ﬁr"-, ro fee s pad for s rols

2t presant.

Chairiman
Tre Comnuttes raviziws the Chanman’s fees. Mo other here
are paid 10 the Chamean.

Shareholding
e =g erf‘ [aT81} mor':-'-“ 'f'uhvm dusctars o puild up a

fding ler:::gme q -hat, nos dverse
Forngn th 28 not possibis

=

Expenses
We rerrrliurse tegsonan’s @x
seball of the husiness and, where suphcabl’e, pay avy tas due on

o

nses noutrsdin ravelling ¢n

G

DENSLS O grosaed-up hass, As MR(, rEganis fra
say any lax due on

auch =»
e head offce as a benelit m kand,
EXRENSES 0N a grossed-up is
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Maximurn Reguirement

During employment
of eal iy 10 e bela i tie

Post-employment
'E-EL‘U‘-W drectons ate no nrc:.l‘,t

L’.«J\:u |e:1V.I:g r*\._)F, ano
shaes eougl o the lower o
sha enclding regurem

At or their

aclual shareholdirg on deparire.




DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION REPORT cont.rhert

Notes to the Remuneration policy table

Legacy awards
Tl Corprmiltee rese

2L0m pEYINents and paymeris o loss of off ce tnciuding ex
Z2°

r erghtio nate any emiL
Lo n cornechion wate

(SICIS NG ANy

vaanie sack payierts) notwitsianding thatirey are notn hre st e 2022 Yooy st out
th na\fn‘(—nt u\@f'v agresd bolote the 2022 Pelicy came nto effect, prov.ded that < ~=s of ira naymert were
Hi% 3 _nuro»feri directars eral on pohoy n {olw atthe e mc—y were agresd. Thes nreans 1hat

v, the provisions of the 2019 Policy widl cortnue o apny unlil such trre as ell long-
wrmoencenrt Ve dwerds granted unaer that uo' oy Nave vostod or fansedd

7 the terms of tl‘e payment were agreed 2t a tme whan the relevant ncaadual vess rot 2 directar of the Comoany and, in
apinon of the Comrmittoe, the poyment was not 1y corsidsration for the individual beconang a o rector of the Company

For these puioses ‘payntents’ ncunes the Comnitee R’atl‘%f}sﬂg aviards of vanable remuneduon ard, N reslon o an awars over
shares, 1hs 1@rms of the payment are ‘agreed’ g the e the avears .3 granied

Minor policy amendments
Tre Con miliee r1egerves the nghl o ch iros amendrrents to the 2022 Pol oy, for requlatoy, £
admiristrative punpuses Uf L0 @Re AcTON Tt oT & onange it legislate, wiitout seex ng sherehelder

1Ex O

Ce LunrG
2 provEl

Malus and clawback
“he Coermitiee may, iz ik oy
rlav back shall apply f the Conmittee detenmres that any of the

Fan LTIP or F‘(P vestng or ST:P being na:, determineg that ma'us ardlor
|

qapnly:

1t lesses to s Groon compeny;

+ he Partic pant has paTucipated N orvoas Espo e lor corduct vericn resuited onosignii

» the Particpant has laied 1o mest épprocnate slandards of Tiness and prepriety,

+ the Compary ras 'cg_"dj**af‘\rba vidance of fraud or matenal dishoresty by the Parucipart,
dowrg on the nert

» ‘he Compary has becomie aware of any maiensiwrang of the Pertcimant;
» he P:,wupaﬁt \ a Led nany manecrwhich in the o ,) don of tha Boarc has hrought or is bkely 1o brng any Group company
materaf disrepuie veErSe 1o the ntercsts of any Growb company;
» thaie 's a breac s ernploy nent conirac 1 that is a poter‘-t y far reasen for disvsssl ang/or -5 such that the
Partcipant could he sunrr disrrissed by 1he emp'oyi '*.g Group compan

SIPESTIS N breach of a fiduciary

duty oved 1o ary Group Lumparw
wipant who has ,f?ased e an pm:‘(‘,y"ﬂ wazinh

" Iy of thair encnloyment cantract or

wlac ary dutes ina manrer that

-
wodld ave pravented the grant or Vesing of ithe Award kag tne Comnany buon aware (or fully & pofthat b a~acf
veboh the Company veas "\(‘,-I aware for ot Tully swearel unnl after Doth,

Ty SSUES

andfor clawback colld apoly nrasponse | = Dusness Lt o Con

erimpant, o for wion the Partic part is resoensts e, Fas

rat ernploys or empoyed tha f
natagemsat,
875 3 ‘mle al m sstatement of financial accounts,

g rthe STIR, RSP or legacy LTIP, all paicparis are requrss 10 egree ihat e Comim ilee may causs
d-‘—‘i ST ?CP 0r ‘QGdCV L |r) aveard inwhich they parucoate 1o \dpae iy wvhole or nopend, may onerate 2lewback under any ST,

iwipart io

RSP or legacy LTIP i which they patoipale, may reduce any amounis othenvse pavable 1o therr, may require the pa
mimediste ry ranisfer shares or cash back to the Conpary For the LT!P and STiP share awards vesting v 2022, 2023 and 2024, the
mralis ara cigvedack rules remean those that epphed under tne 2019 Palicy.
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Dlscretlon
Tive Com £ : ‘uJ\/u:ﬂ(“"T
from the operation . :‘ e 202? F‘
She Cunsinler el bug
=xercises of discrets
:.Muu-ﬂ.l HoeLT

or RSP awar

essary ard by except.ar, 1o ensure 1i‘ar *I* fg are o un nlended conseguences
Wtiee appies a robust set of pninay '

goed woth the imerests of sharero Fi'ders, Any matenat
0 1o IJ»- ST P zng BSP wili ke n b o e rules, or oiner appleei)!
g exulamed i the relevant year's anruai imilementation repart. In particular

STIR s Mmiay

s sgnslituied oy ihe Commiitee if the
yupriate and 0ot

EYals

v Tave ATy fmance conalons anc/or el
Comrittes considers that an anended o substluisa performanes cord.uon or und-ﬂ; IRERIEEE
rrateraty less dfficuit to sat.sfy than when it w rqm J‘“f sat;

- Le jJU‘ ted in the event of ary vanzton of the *“rn'ﬁahy 5 snge canital or any dermerger, aghstng, specal drdena or otber
event that may aftect 1ea va'ue of the Company's shares

Approach to recruitment remuneration

Arey Fohey and ooeraton

re fromy s de the UK o fromn con pan eswaih
"2TBS5E

S Yoy T8

Overall As

rort o neentve r,\cl CIZE 10 VU 0w, 118 &t angerrents belowr ale wiendad o orovige the
ity 1o e ke rict

For nusrmal aopomntroents, cwvards in respect of
“he terms of the reievan: Cariusted as
GEHNG [rcr remune 2t on ebloati

RO 10 & Cud c
2oont 1o take k—‘m,cw " .Jf e NS 3RROITITEDNT.
@y Coannue

sdd o o

The le ‘or the package offered wit be capaned nthe subseguert anrual i plemertation
recot.
Base salary Jaze selary vould ba set at an appioprate leve

EWDCINENGE 2NG ourrent raruiraration, iaving o

Relocation farew executive dilector ~eeds to relocate, the Corinany aray pay.
8 slocaticon cos d other reasuraty & esoereas re'ating 1o wosang house, inc’uding temporary
aceommaodzion f required,
< disturberce allowarcs of op g of vlucin ey be tas-Trea for qualivrg
expendiiuie;
» school foes for UG OISRt GG
« medical costs
. Gre huseess
Tdron onoor
UK,
« reasonable fess and lexes for oy ~g and/or se ling 3 iz
v reasonatle feas for consultancy c—dv.cc rela
Fome fiad g advice and support wth taxielin s o8 1eqL
s tax equshzat'on costs for an agreed perog, and
’ cdue, grorsed Lp, on any reiocaucn-reisted payments siod above.
Buy-out awards In edaition to nomiel meentive asards, buy oot s oc nray e rads oretiect vaus
an individugt fegving their cuitent empoyer 1 ired, the Commitiee wond a'm
trrirg 8o valug ut avvards ff GIECGNE (h any repiacen wem aviard. taking i
corciuens and t me hoazons. Awards may be made 1 cash or shares.
‘nestabhshirg the sporoprizte value of ar"y Kuy-cut, the Commities wou'd a8'30 have regard to the
vzlug of the other elements of the new remuneration peckage Comimittee would g 10 min mise
the cest 1o the Campany, hoveever, i:.;\,—‘,ut aywards are not suhiect 10 a iormai megxmutm. &Any aveards
would be broaaly no nore valuabie than those being repiacod. ’\*F.efe possible, wwe wou'd specify that
atleast 50%e of any vested buy-out avards soould be retaned untlire shareho dng recurenentis
met.
Other elements Beneits, verzion, STIP, RSP ard srargholding regquiremnerts wil cperate in ire wilh the 2022 Foey,
Non-executives Fe

eswenuld Ben T re wath the 4022 Du ey e wauld rot l)d\f 10 lv’—\L CATE a Non-axecutive
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT ¢

How pay and conditions of employees were considered when setting the 2022 Directors’
Remuneration Polncy

Tre fGonas g CAs e resdlt, it o L'LJ't tc mare
::ems‘.,-le c:\mp st .\ of o reveal o practe ACTUSS
ting the rem |.r¢=|a'm nolicy ‘Lr Hw EXeCUive r’ecTors We engaged wir our divsienal

fe Group wh
« R airecto
ted emnioyees

coutive remunergtios !_'OY;LV 2Lt rave 1ot

> of cur emiplow views, when revie wvi

i our e

nsistent with <he approach taken for

Tre siructurg 2rd prnciples of short-tanm incentives further dowon the organisaton ¢
the Chet Exacutive ana Finance Director, The Conrmrities 1s provided with dats ¢n the iemureration siructure Tor Lwo lﬂrq of
senicr managanent below the esecutive drectors and uses th\a mtarmation to veork vt the Compary 10 ens.are cons oy of
approach. In sddition, the Committes approves ai shae-bated LTIP awards acrogs the Group and has cvers.ght of &ll ciash-hased
[ TP avards.

Our an
and geo
bius noss, U eu,hy suppolng oroang amaloyn:

S

iest calinre execliivas, as readen 10 lead such a Hrga‘ dhivetze, compes
securg ive long-term Feath ard growsn of the

oroacn 1s designed to atract and reta n tne hug:
eogrepcaly dispersed aroup of businesses We 2 1mi 1o neentivise inea

copportund gs soreas e crganisat.on.

Statement uf consideration of shareholders’ views
e Commiitee Char corsuted with she Comipany's largest shareholdars Neary el of those consulted were supzoitive o
arcposed 2022 Folicy. Tre Comnrllee lisienad caraiuly to the fesdbacy frant niveslors end teos imtc eccount ther fee

ot noech laken, An overview of the Tesanack received and vur 18sporse 11715 s21 out it the Cormttee Chor's |

page 27,

Executive directors serving as non-executive directors

1 slopment and exte
cutive. Executive direct
ed

i the Chanman
CCapacity,

cf bos
SRIATsATITEtE

has determured Uhat, weih the
TS MAY SeIVe 45 NoN-ExeCuive Greclars of other compar

5 Sath

Service contracts and policy on payment for loss of office

Provis.cn ~o.uy ”"d opgrat on

Notice period 12 month S tice by siner the director or the r”m‘ s
Company's citices, Contracis and serece agreein
chanaed.

Exgcutive Resignation

directors — O pEYIIents o depariure, evenf, oy nutual agreerrent, the cotice penod s Lut soort,

contractual

termination Departure not in the case of resignation

payments Service contracts al'ow for the Compary o termunate emptoyment by paying the drector i sy of
some o 21 ot ter net ce nercd. The Company may dc‘mrn..ne that such o payirsnt s made i roribly
rstaMents Or a5 a o sLm. A payient i bew of retice may convprnise the galary that J 2 d r=eior

Ciple

wolld oibenvisa have rece vad duing ina elevart penoed. The Company 's connitted 10 1
of intigat on and wou d reduce morthly msta'ments 1o teke socount of anmoants IE:‘CG.V&'J i
alte native snployment

sutive d rscier owork for s as a contractor o errpioyee
neriod ¢ ersLre an -—MFCI"/S hand-over and/or 10 aliowns

!

By exception, the Compariy may par.t an exe
glter the end of treir notce pariod fr;r faalie=
twie for 8 successor 1o ba appoinied

Settlement agreement
The Cormnmittac may agies reasonahle payments i seitlement of lagal clairns. This gy mociude an
entitlement 1o compensation in respect of ther statutery riam‘s uvnder employment grotection ‘egislation
inthe UK or nother junsdictiors, The Cor tee may also nclude i1 such caymerts reascnab'e
renvburseiont of professional fees in cor

tion awth such agresmrents.

clary or nen-
fLrel Not exCRes ng

ment and/or provid
red ponod after de

The Comrmitise n‘d,z ke ')d,'nwutb inres

matenal bengf rhea with deoerture Gneluding for ¢

der :
£10,000 in aggregate for those feaving the Dus ness wder an agrocment ar for otner reasons exclue rg
resigration
Relocation Good Ieaver*
support It an ceecutive was relocated 1o the UK at the start of hisfhar enrploymiert migdher repat-at on may be
pa .

Leaver due to resignation/misconduct/poor performance
Ro eyt s mare,
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AR

STIP Cash

RSP, STIP
shares and legacy LTIP
awards

Non-executive
directors — contractual
termination payments

Good lcaver*

The Conrmutiae vl consder making a payme.:
year 0w ch the termiinenion/dasth teok place, Ary agreed payinicnt w
foiowdro 1ne veas end, 1 the case of death, payment may rated. This s o
the approach for uther STIP participants.

1o rata or tre erd peformances doribe firancia
A be mada in the December
ten itk

Resignation
If an execuuve direclor ceases ‘o be employed hefore, nris urdar not ce wwhen, full year results are

nablished no STiP s paid

Leaver due to misconduct/poor performance
No payment s made

Good leaver*

STIP shares awards

Winere e weiformeance condiuon on STIP shares has a4
SLOECT 10 @ SErvIC coml:l on, 1Tws I vest 2t tre Lsusl vesting dJ
Comimittee il dacide w12 evient to wich they vest, naving 124G
performance conditon s satished sad, uness the Cononi i
a from the siart m the ;\c rfor 'man"a p“

allocatiors, ©
ATont 1 vAuch any
pro-rating
n.Sach
e deterninegs.
2105 th=t o not vest

10 reflect "'we ner

A thie case of deatly, vesting n‘.ay be »nc.;:!eru‘-ﬁ. A;;arc:s or portees

Lo

RSP awards

Awvards v normzly vest at ne tsual vest ng daie besed on e Cornmitiee’s assessment of any
Ladorping, and, r'ess e Commitiea detern s otheraass, pro-ranng torefient the caroed from
the elart of the vesung perniod unt I the date of cesseton. nthe case of ceath, vesing may be

Legacy LTIP awards
tent o which
Ld ard, urless the Comr rr:\i’ﬁ uro-reling
fonmarce per od s dete of cr—"wawm Such

. at sLeh other date as ¢ MD Comm ties cele
ted, Awards or poruoes of avwarnds veat

The Ccm‘ ittee v docde the exdent to v oh aveards vast,

Ol vs3:

P

Leaver due to resignation/misconduct/poor performance

Al corditioral aovards lapse,

Change of control of the Company
nthe event of a change of cortiol, &

m’esmd avvards under the RS ~culd vest,
sulyact to the Comim'ttes consicsn : et that any performnaroe con wsil OnR or wrdersms
attached to the re'ovanl swards have bean achizved 2-d, tivess the Commuties detzrrines
otheiwise, the pranortion of the nerfermance period worked by the trector pnor 10 the changs of

contral. For STEP shares, ali vl vast on the event of a chiarge of cortiol,

21 party on Six iorths relice
W directors

Appoiniment s ‘o thres years unless terminsted Ly el
Conunuation of appointiment depends on perfarmance anc re-elector. Men-exec:
typicaily serve two or three three-yvear terms.

Aines vear's annual gonersl mesting, all directors are standirg for re-g’
the UK Cornorate Goveirance Code. Vviere en
nat paig m ieu of notice

clion in cornphance w.th
i

ravidual coes o stacd for re-s'scton, they ae
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT

Composition of prospective remuneration 2022/23
George Weston John Bason
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Annual Remuneration Report

Single total figure of remuneration for executive directors (audited)

Fived pay Saiary o ; TUT 1e84 oS 748 794
Be*er.t;’* 17 H 17 15

Pension! 101 387 187 166

To'a\ fived rentuneration 1,202 1,485 952 946

Venalle pay STH: -\m deferred sharesl- 1,084 1,152 745 780
LTF 4] 59N 4] 455

Total vanab'e remurerat on 1,084 1,644 745 1,236

ot 2,7%

Pensions
ir 2021422 Cearge Wesion "ﬂu an overall ')e.wﬁ* sromise of 1/45ith of £ choyvear of pensionabie sarv ce

5f e, subject foa mas i of

el

Lp to 5 Apr 2016 and 1/5Cth of “ins S
2/21ds of Tinal penzionalie pay thasic salary du':r:g -he 531 12 neenths t:e ore rnt.ren.m t, plusf b2, the average of the last
thres years’ fluctuating 2armingsl

He opted cut of tre Associated Br.t sh Foods Persion Scheme on 5 Apnl 2006 and has a ceferred benghitin that schame; the
valarce of the pfcmme \S prf‘wr lod undes an EFRRBS. His parsion oenelits are payable from age 65 Mo afternative detined banetfd
arrarg=ments are avalan's to ey nember who chooses 10 1ahe thair benedis early, His acciued pensicn at 17 Sepieras 2022

was £719.918 per annum,

As we have checlosed in the past, emnleyees who were in cur D3 pension schems vehan it C'osed 2 nevy wemb"“s cantinug 1o

accrue bene:w s under this schame. Georga Weston's EFRBS particpaton 's consistent with this approach. As part of this year's

remuneration policy reviewy, the Commitiee considarad this approach a~d decided to 2l ow George ","fﬂnqlol\ le enntinge i the

CFRES Lanl the end of December 2023 or the date when the EFRBS s fuly accived, whichever is eartier. Theraafter, he wi i

lorger participate 0 the EF RES and vl rot receive a cash alioweance in hau of pensian conmibuters

i the penod to 24 Aodil 2019, Jobn Bason hzd an overall herehit prormise al age 62 of Z/3rds of hnai pay, leas the value of -2tained
efits from his previcus emraloyviment. He opred qut of the Associaied Britsn Foods Ponswn Sr e o 5 April ;\JOU ard
AB0OUPTT y arew his berei's in the scheme; the balance of the prom se w

A

+4]

ve heenr ted. Since then, he has beesninr
Tris cash suppement will reduce to 1074 o

elovy executive level,

&n

from suz B2
21Ch conr kbuions
o eployess notne LK D

ere ._f.yh.

i

L
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT vonbe

2021/22 STIP

Achievement agamst financial targets
‘e beiow detals the fincnoeicl porfrrmarce rarges that appliod 1 202122 and the calcu'dted agconra

i tre STIR.

Adfissted

STIP io ement las e oof satenyd ) 124

Persoral eleirert 135 T of 3 ary) George WWeston 13,27 207 155
John Bason Gy 13.37 20%% 1705

Total ST cash ias *h of saleryt George Weston 785" 150% 27984
John Bason 7230 150+ 749.98"

a'srnent s T of wax onan) 105w S0 b

STIP shares George Wesion 2,760
Jokin Basor 1,860

ce for 20271/22 raf

Tre 5T P target o & ranga of oprortar e; arid FeEnt ui
were 551 Tha mas wiicant cpporiaies were recovery in Pririatk’s miotitabiliny Tcliownrg 1
in 2020;/2 1, and planted pnee ingreases i the Food businesses 1o Pi. 2l the {orecast impactl of
woe set, coraidaral'e urcerainty 1emea red regarding the i sk ithat COVID-19 contreed to present

["2 most s anifica

ation 1o fre-g‘wt cests and ava aiziity, vorh resultant Suﬂ” 01

nsks weers in e and price inflaticn, narticularly n -'c‘a:p--“. )
contned U'es and services, from wreat and cotien to erergy. Laboy r‘“oe: Ve veder market voarg 2lsu g corcern However,

1oy ana orice of certain con nofities was T‘JOT

the Russar ivvasion of U<iz.ne and the resulticg intpacts on enargy, ava
antimpated at the tirne targets ware set,

cuture perfora ed o Ire Wit
‘repurted seles ast year al

rorease Ir- ﬂdj\ sted operating prolit, -0 Foerd, Grocary
i€ yEar N Ii‘f'lecweni:, ir Retal sales v,
SR l racgin improved sha ;

; odel sonwe af the key onlectves are

JeImenls an perserai periormance woere @5 snown be ove Wh cur o
~een tne Chief Execuive and F sare inelvidaal

rance Drector sehie o

oLt

Deitvery of uparaded customer digitel exner roludirg new website and arnourced

el of Click and Coilect,
n
- . d of Primierk's store ex 1o pel ne post COVID-19 e unven, witn 27 n
= Implementation of price Noreases N food SUS Nessss, e o £ b0 add tionai costs -

iaced by the Group over and abowve the budeer
(Y

Key strategic o

vergo star-up delvered.

Development of strong TCRD disclosure v th

ear business intage and re’evance, Incicding
robast chimate scenorno danzlys:.s and matsnalty
235ES5T ent.

oent
ey of [

stenes ach

o
ie!

« Western Australia Feed M-l puild,

» Upgrades o the Ohly site v Fantburg
underaay, D%ve%opm?nt of hinarcrg siretegy and

+ Developrment ;J-Ims ‘or India yeast: end SUCCESS gunci> of maugural gub .o bond,

s Ivestivent in AB Agn dary busines aversdying the Group's sources of funding.

+*

[aleX; TTiEEmEntzlon completed o
under weay of Primar te:wnf\-ﬂuy pINgrammres,
mclug ng O-acle and EPCS

« Successful acquistions i ngiewents, Agncu’ture and George Waston Foods

e, o Loaderstin of the deve'opim

Ty rmaE e Tang tcm acress the Grous

ey progran e forine

EREEINN

Ways of veorbing wath Frimark €t
red craznion of
v Board.

Poople £
orgaEmashian Jeluding ine p!
Strateqs Advsc

« Develouenont of l@sdersmp 1247

MENt arg 5

Sl

1=l CEOs
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LLG e

s Furirer pre 300 LI -yves: Pﬂ El -ri ¢ Stearninered en nent and DE \..II in
work force acaen ourney, clading e Firerce funcuon, nciuding equal gender
increase n femala partc’oston - represantaton on Fires

‘Lewf‘ ".:“_J P {“ e and cres tm"'ﬁ . De tvery cf h\fd [5G invester ooy, wihieh
D‘;_‘Lrh‘:)ln‘l‘;t@\:malg\f?j r'_“;‘:j'ii dshanng prescntens g cledr narraive on eny ranmental
" feoior ci'ng ihe Group end progr

» Oversaw proaress on lecaily ceveloped and led undenvay (o address (Fese
imratves across the Grouo to reduce enarcy
ugas and Mmprove cabon fonipint.

c
éTE‘

W

» Developmnert of e KF ramewwark (o mamior pregiess o0

rnan

=S5,

Takihg nto ecocunt @ detalad assessnrant of ‘Jn'ﬁ,"name aganst chectives, the calculatod cutcame of personal perfornance for

tha CEO vias 15%, ang for the Firarce Drecior veas 179

e fnancisl and perfonmance cuicormas hovs lod to 8 caloulsted STIR cash vutwime of 77 9683 oF s& ary “or the Uhig? Executive
and 78 068 o salary for the France Diractor. As usual, wa considered whether ary oiscrenion should ne enp’ied aﬂd concivded
*hat s outcGitie was a fair ~eflection of performance 38.43% of the STIP shares allecsted for the peand 2021-24 vl be deferred

o vestin 2024, the rema nder vall fapse.

Executive directors’ shareholding and scheme interests

Scheme interests {audited infarmation}
The tan'es be'ow detall te cormmenal share interests Fe'd by the evecutive oreciors ¢ at 17 Septamiear 2022 Tre awvards made
weare ime vy 1 the 20018 Pol'cy

LTIP
Vestng of LTIP awaids ‘s sthrect 1o nesing Derformaics conmilions Geer toe per
he'gimg peacd apples e net of tax share

-1

crimarce pec oo A fuiher wo-year postvestirg

iz Charn
et - .]r“- ;% b

i Co U o 4 L) YRR B o A
01710 200% 2180 23070 17/0922 &6, 9v: 23473 g C~41 21411/22
20411720 200 2980 2000.8p 16/0922 107,873 83,937 10787 Z0/11/23
“9i1 1421 2007 2150 1.9747p 140021 110,327 53,199 1,040 19/11/74
Jobn Bason LTI? 05/12:19 2002 1440 25074dp 1760922 57430 28714 5,743 21/11/22
2011720 200 1040 202090 1R/0%23 71,255 35,578 726 20011723
. 192 300w 1440 1.0747p  140W2Y 0 74381 37081 7438 1907729

1 SR s MR At I N TV = S5 B I o o= O PR Rety RN RE S AETNeN

STIP - shares

The val.z of deferred STIP shar P ooerformance condrions

Era ot
Vel s

Sek LENQs
Gecrge Wesion  Dsferred  09/12/°9  50° 545 25 0 21,736 22
avaards  20/11/20 545 2.0209p 80921 2 6 963 13,481 13,481 20/11/23
19/11/21 545 1,974.7p 70922 7,569 14,333 13366 19/11/24
Jokn Bason Dpxer,ed 0541 2/19 360 2,507y 1,w 19,358 2111722
avards  20/11/20 260 2,020.9; 50921 17814 5,807 8907 20/11/23
19/11/21 380 §,974.7p 17, 00/22 18595 9559 9006 1311/21

W e

Sy E oo dizieiy g
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT ¢ niinued

LTIP 2019-22

The table celow shows details ¢f th 5 et and cerformance achieved

L
,
(f

Toog RN P ora
Groun ad-usied earm'ngs
per share in the nor-Suaar

100" of award busiresses 159 173p 188p 200 Ep
3vr ROACE in the non Suear
businesses downwvard mod e 10%% 124 afa — EPS target neissed
3y Sugar ROACE downward
modifier 5%, R 1fa - EPS target niseed

Vesiung as ¥ of max

targets sot wolld be that no shares vest. However, as ex
edzp p\, irg disgretion 1o allow a part of the

e shiares and cefircd 3 frameweork to infarm our polenia ansh:
ear parfomrance pe-cd T

ad Been zign fcant ac !HEVE'TGFT“ gunng the three-y rave
WEpTart pd Cons deratiar of omt enor Pedormrance agaret a ramewors of stralege onjectives 1s sammansed Lelow.

o oana the decine n
aecards, end mese

k ng o azcount the exporence of wicer slasshc

ret.on o 201822 L

Howesvar, notw’thsteroing the achievernants detalsd,
share oice over Lr- o -penod, the Conrr ee
EVVards ne Tl“e,;;fr,we lapae o full,

Performance against objectives - Food excluding Sugar

The =ocd busineszes have delivered 2veraga annua! _@fow‘h of 5% over the past 15 yeors, fuurdea an
SOUisiIcrs, strecgthenirg market gost.ans end sustan ng hey brands. p"Pf the LTIP performance peod 2

n Food proinen ity exclud g Sugar weas affected by comrmrocty pnce nflaucn, but stll reackcd comipolund enma:

a "esull of Oncing action.

L ENeCulel

W-Im‘.\'w: and v
o shnLel grovvih
orowth of A% =3

Performance agains bjECtIVES Sugar
The oiteal obect fias been o gohieve above cosl-of-car
Cereqn's f helaey 27 i 201319 (o an :FPS 1

;?'e disrup |
{10.3 .45 ras roew beat
255 1N ﬁumge L narnets ard oo

>

aoh e s . g period telects actions LG mar @i

oute o ka =T and ar'ung s gy nAlrca The ret. 1his w:' has bee" ach mipact of beavy rainfails na
namirer of our Al ting precessing of sugar e.

Primark

Primark’s second ral’ [ke-Tar-ike sales were gt 81 2 2O0TE/ 13 verth an exit rate of 927 Pr ( vera 9.8% an
avarage over e yvear, achieved through great ste 1 mraragng e shopping exper ance, the o2 mveriary lsvels

H'::s sirar al vear and cave a strategy mr ro\ th matkaets win

s+ to grow 1o B30 stores by the end of ou

and promg, We soded 0.5 mi \ onagitolrs ¢
asirong pice’ e of storgs. We are on track to de vel

%)

zrn ard sca'ealle ti‘f‘h'VJCG\’ latiorm nowve in place
ANy INMOTE LroGuects &nd provices HLoc availa L\ iy by
e, on rack for

Ve have continued 1o transform Prinark’'s d'gal ca ) mod
a posil ve cusicrmar resction to oLl newy weizs e nthe UK wnich shovecases »
store, Traffic 1o the new st 5 up 83%. Sgnibant veors has been conpleled to gnable a thal Clck ara Celiect s

Y &
faLrch towards the end of this cslendar year.

ESG

arnark Cares was launched n 2021 Thisis a new Iwoli%m posit onitg that comnrunicates Prmark’s ESG amvention related 1o

he products we sgll, reducing our cathon rpact and .miproving e lives of people in our supnly chair. Across the Growup, our
refreshed govsrrance frainework has been enbedded, with the businesses challanged to identify and dewver projecis at the iccal
level that align with strategic moritle This has enabied signdicant progress 1 managy our ESG risks. To suppart this, the role of
e certral CSR Hun has been strengtiened, providing expertise, support and advice 1o the businesses as they set their geals
and obmctives,
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LTIP 2020-23 and 2021-24 performance ranges

T + v

Ts lakle below shows the nerformances ranpes tor the LTIF veards made m 2020 2
i

SPEIOY e shale an

al of the 2022 Pol oy, e ihe form of restig

awvard 105, B30 VDO

W odifiar a0 100

20720-23 LTIP Periormance range “25p 132p 1 85
2021-24 LTIP Performance range t132p 142p 12 SR
i Crtggr L Td O TeLT s Top e FULI 2T s rn s e RS NI et

The Grouws ROACL wermout 3.

LT vE DUTCOMEs.

ol iodilen and the Sugar et mocifier act only as cowmvard modibers o he caloulzed

The Sugar performance for incenive naym

executives from taimng wite dow s,

erts 'l have Impartnients addea hack o ensure that there 15 ro urmintended barefit for
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT covipesned

Executive director departures and appointments

Appointment of Ecin Tonge as Finance Director
Tha mable bo'car sots out he remuneraton anan ge eols thaiw i appiy 10 Eoin Tongs
when deternimimng the agproach Lo buy-out avards, cor ert vty the 2027 ard 2019 2ol ces:

‘olovang pancip es nave been annled

. Ihe

. ,’\i\ Buy-OuLT awalds require eviderce that exigling awards Fave ko en ‘orieled,

. u\“mc she. |u “a1ch e valua of existing arrsngements on a ke-‘or-hike Lasis (voive for valusl,

varce conditons s1celd continue 0 be sulect to performarce conditions perf

i or'mam,e}, m SO g3 e appreach taken to the buyv-out of long-tanm reentive avwesrds needed to reflect thet ABR's 2022

Policy will ba an RS2 rainer 1nan LTIP, and thersiore an arproprmu d scount should be apphed:

+ Tirming of exm rg awarss should e mirrored 35 cosely as cossible vath ary compersslony awarss sulyect o vestrg and
oGt PEN0ds whicn are rno sogeer than the forfeited aweards. Tha prireipla aiso applies w performr z pencds ‘or ABF and
M&S, o h ah do pot cuerlap due o raving diterent financial year ends e for tmel,

o Al oy “ut 3 cards atccatad onjoming vel! be comveried using the average share price of V&S and ASF cver tne rienth
pror to znnowecement of Eon Towge oming the Company In gl cases B0 % of the nost-tax sie eguicd to 2 martared
W omeet the sharshodng reguianent.

Base salary " a'ary cn spocinlinenl of £725 000 par annum weih tirst salary ravew schedulen for 1

o, campany car, hte

Benefits

Vallevance f mpactad oy o

Pension Maxinon dolined coribLicn persicn conil pul,an {or
annLai allewance! of 109 of satary, i ine with the UK workferoe.,

>2d pro-

vt

oty fror 2022/23 wil ge ca'culate
CPerfornarce condiens Tor 20

with effect from date of ‘(J.nlg Eb

STIP Parto paticn in the STIP

200% of base salary 1ata fremi the date of cinfrg o tre cnn of th fn anc’a

maximesm be:

75% in cash 15% nased on the ach evernent of ESG and strategio KPS

25% in shares vesting 357 nasad on ABF financ al performarcs.

:?!Let;:’iiirs from Avoaaswill be subect to malus and ¢ awbaus 0 e vith the 2022 Poaty.

RSP ; :m‘cn N the RE® for 2022-25 S e thee start of the

125% of base salary ‘ e : o rac ‘_ "_ g apphed as e pre o
maximum being >IN iEU O : 18 2 oavwnrd trat B Tomge vl
Shares vesting three Periotngice undsroms vl apply 48 set outin ?

vears from allocation o oo tor the avard will e the average sivr > Tve gaye oreced 1 the alfocation

ate, corsistent wilh cur usuai approach:,

Buyout of forfeited for the franca year 2022/23

incentive schemes

forihz 10 out of 12 mon

"-'; n 'e?pact of “he M&S bonus cutcome for FY 2022/23 piors
LS pr—rfofrrc‘mce ;)H'O(J L‘elﬁq *,-’.'cr'ked at M&S.
I".":&S borus ¢

L'D

ooofthis arou '“1 mII he 1) ! yeashin
sarne A3F average share price used for forie tﬂd Share SVVETGE. TH'J as
anit July 232

RSP from Ma&S resticted share sward

« 263,084 sllocatzd MAS shares will ke convertad to ABF RSP avarcs on ¢ning
No perfarmarce condi pled or wil apily 1o thase shares

Vesting «li take place n Juy 2023

1215 ara ragquired 1o be held ret of tax unul Juy 2025,

ares from 2021/22

Existing ceferred share borus plan s

» 12 263 MAS cefarred nomus shares waill ha con
. Ho performance conditicrs ol aonly (o these s

P ake pace nJuly 2025,
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S3F share auwels on
ance rare p r.ﬁ .arg

v H e convered

L

armartce agamnst e fe

5]

yhe held ret of tmcuntil Juiy 2025

FSPz021-24

922,511 allccated MES shares > 2V aTCE GN CiNing.

Vesting vl be based ¢ vy ork that factors i exist ng maasures
Gt e ApRIepnats and seek.s to re;)ii(,e‘.et 2 3"ur_t 2 of the M&S framawork while slianirg to

AE’-F nerformance:

. "O% based on the ABF EfS targe’s that -IHII, 0 Llu ABF 202724 LTIP.

I’y "D

. o based on 48F sialeg'c KRl ag 2 Chief Execut ve.
@y ASF STIP gverane parfornnarce over Lo yees FY 2022/03 and FY Z025/2.4.
nee sk be measured it ane e at that tin'e.

e are regured 1o be e

d nrespect of the perod

a by the 2022-25 ABF 152

ward will srmiar by be repacea
enteniber 2022 10 Seplember 2025
Foveever, as the S 2022 P57 aveard was

an RSF avearn in cespect of this forfeded fnve moml nerod il g w0
furm of 3 gram .f '-“\EF r';‘SL:.\_,Lbd si'ares M lew of 82 874 uhares. fr
v.as calculated based on 5/3G of the full LTIP d\de r\f 1,181,863 ¢

~¢of a perfo mance perod from Apnn 262

begramed. This ani b»— n the
the M&S 2022—4E i Ths
L v b0 e rellect

(4 &

the ‘act that tha reparerrent oveard is i tha orm o7 2n P§~ AT
- e sLniact —o cerinnnence cond Lons, but the ABF RSP ingeip n fur 2022-

i Novenrier 2025
. - shales ara tequred 1o be nald net of tax urtl Cuy 2027,

e eaTh

Shareholding Stgrehclaing reguire v ants ang oo ding penods |l
requirements

Retirement of John Bason as Finance Director
Joha Sasan wiliretire from e role of Finanos Sitector on 28 Apal 2023 Afer this date ba s
fellovasng sharahalding requrarent,

T oo tmus o be subyec o the

+ ary sharesvestng under the LTIP, 1
A Lﬁ'w"e halding of ABF shar
hicidirg perod postvesting LQUH[

waw, 1 eed 10 he retained Tor a fun
22 e of 2507 of salary must be mra ﬁtm- e d for two ye
ras this 250° shareo'c ng raquirerment

n-j

edas a good lesver for the STIF ard LTIP w th paymsnts made pro-rets for nerformanue and Lime 85 set out belows

Sl . 3 paricaansn vail be pro 1ata nascd on perfenrance and o warkneg 32/52 veeexs nche Tnancal year starunag 17
Seotember 2027
= RSP 2072-25 - allocated in December 2022 and due to vest n Moventner 2025, particnast onwi i be pro etz based o worrirg
756 l‘m“ha e serformarce nenod startirg 17 Septerrber 2022 and urdeipins being met.

. J\“ 202124 - aliocated i Novernber 2021 srd due 1o vast ¢ Novermber 2024 based on EPS a0d ROCE targets, pro-rated for
service (18 out of 36 months of the performance per od wes ked!,

» STIP skares 2021-24 - asllocated n Novermrser 2027 and 9,006 shares due 1o vest in Novermnber 2024 nesed on 2021/22 571
Angacal periormance of 484340 of maamuam.

= LTiP 2020-23 - allecated in Decancber 2020 and dog to vast i Movember 2023 based on EPS and ROCE tzrgets, pro-rated for

szrvige (31 cut of 36 months of the ::er{ormam::, al=HSIeREe]

« 5T.P shaies 20-253: 8,207 &h i Movernber 2023 i
orgral 17,314 shares argimally allocated n December 20200

« Foiowing his retnemert, dohn Basen w il tawe on a nevs rele 83 Chair of the Prin

2l o

O ves ad an ST.F 2020071 faancial ouicome — 50% of maw ap:

v Advisory Board,
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DIRECTCRS' REMUNERATION REPORT contiitod

Payments to past directors and payments for loss of office {audited information}
Mo paymerts were made noihe year,

Exevulive directors' shareholding requirements (audited information)
The inerests bolowe as at 17 Septeminer 2022 rem

requie et

2 Both draciorns Fave met aur shareholaimng

‘cston
wn lrvestimients L ted,
; of 50
Associzred Britsn Fooas nie,
crcirary shates of 5 </ p

Jobn Bason

Assodated Brtsh Fooos ple,
et N e
v s n

Non-executive directors’ remuneration and share interests

slon executive direciors’ fees were revewen dunng 2022 end it vas detenyared wa laes chowd e inoreased uy 2.5% with effect
from 1 Decenther 2022,
Fees effective

1 Dec 2022
Craman ' T £440,000
Aciditiona fee for Sernor Indepandant D rectar respensoiatias £21,000
Addiiena fee for Commities Char (Audi/Rerr ureration only) £23 500
And tizna: fee for respons Dty for workicree engacemrent £23.500
Aadticra fee for ¢hanmg Primark France and Risk Comimiies £19.0C0
Drecter L. r £78.250

Non-executive directors’ remuneration (audited information)

[ toves b
2022 v 2022 2022

o R _ f£ooe £000 _£000 _E0OO0 {000
Michael e YA 42 - 127 217
Futa Carr e 120 120 - - 120 120
Richard Peid 142 142 - - 112 145
Errnnig Adamo 78 75 7€ - - 76 75
Wo thart Hauser 76 75 78 - - 78 70
Cratam Alan 76 75 76 _ B 76 75
Heather Rabbatts’ 78 11 76 - - 76 1

£ debbhone raathe 3oz VIV el 2021

Non-executive directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited information)
Tre ichovang sherehoid rgs are crcnary shares of Assomated British Foords pic un ess stated othenw
the same at 8 Novernber 2022,

N
i
]
fa]
jus]

Iichael Molirtock A,
FLth Cairree 59223
wrard Red 3,347

Ve iigton favestments Linted, Gidinary shares of S0p 1,322 1,322 4

£ roods nic, ordirgry shares of 5% » 51%,234 504,465 2910

7,161 3218 128

10,000 6,600 1/47°%

- _ e,

calp et crto b o o a N TR DS e E ey
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Directors’ service contracts/letters of appointment

T

Executive directars
Georgs Weszion 15/04/49 Q10608 12 months 12 m
John Bason 04,065/99 PSO89 12 momhs 12 mranths
Non-executive directors

Michasl PAcLintock 011117 IRTISRTAYS 8 montl s G months Letler of appomtment
Emma Adamo 012417 g2/ 8 months 5 mantbs Letter of appuirtment
Ruth Canne 01/0514 110418 B ronth 6 monits Letter of appointroent

Foling contact
Roil'ng contract

VWolthar: Hauser TAMDTE 14/07/15 G ronths O mo Letter of appointmert
Rchard = 110:/16 13/0418 B rrorths Letter of appointrient
Graram Alian 050918 05/09/15 6 months Letter of appontment
Heather Rabbatis B 01/03/21 16/02/21 5 noring Letier of sppo ntman:

Comics of service ToNtrac's are ava labie tor nspecion at the Compeny's head office

g chvers fled busiress that curantly upg

Q?ﬂ“ - Qr pesple ere contrel 1o ouw hasine

tes in L3 conrtnes and e ‘ r
erg wride Gursslves on Ling 4 irs-class entplover,

S0 WO R LT GU SIS
Lo al'ow emp u\, s 1o have

¢ oresponsibly and aant to ensare ety

o ersurs thar mninenT wages are suf

tormgt orsl business a duty o op
rlhy Ve suerort the work of gowve
sble sterdard of lving, Our bus resses, =2ach of wivchis responsnle © 2nd mananung s own reEmnureraton
"FJF””W"T cperaie nlng with the princisies set out be ove and in corrplznce with al .ocal iaws

Pay should be appropriate and market~competitive

« Approorate for the employes’'s 1o g, expenence arc skll 5
« Loce! nvairel cordiions tindustry ,)can,, nicost of Iaegl should be corsidered wihen setting pay love's

Pay should be free from discrimination
Pa vid not be impacied 4y an ndi dual’s age, cerder, sexia origrtalion, ethmc ty ar othe charactensics.

Pay should be intuitive and explainable
Freed ey vl meet or caceed all 'egal niirimunm standa

:ufcan‘u 5h

rganing

GienT ate IIT(_J‘l_Jf‘I"‘," b

. & hus.ness should be abyg o (_,\p\a o e N oralcllated so thel i3 &isy 1o wnde stand,
. FI\ [‘lo\,f,e‘:. should alvwavs receive conoesanon 1« i tire,

Employee engagement

We value the opmions of cur people and mmeny of our busincsses Lndertale ~egalar engagenant saivevs, encousagng ther
EMRIOVESS 1O provide honest T'eeutdcx zbout the rjobs, .x-Drkaaces and cverall satsfaction Through this nechanisnt, as well as
oy 1ziking 10 the r AR coileaguas, wors s councis and urions, emu'oy:ses can also fasdiack the v eves o0 executive remuneration

= Committeg

L
v Pictard Fed the NED respong ble forworkforce engsasmert, her

Ths rput 1s also supp

tyean s ended that the Remuneraten Committee Chair wall attend at
ch year to share key messages and hear Teedback directly

or Hnues to -‘f:‘evelo ] Fw'n n

1 Diwvs oral Pecple/HR dusctars

Inflation and wider workforce remuneration

T Wi‘f has seen evceplonzlly huigh intletion r the UK, w
>Ment approach vares fem Lusiness to huw 235 hut &l have targeied 1 gher rates of salary increase to
OUF T OIS (U100 employees Many of our busresses heve also pad remporary allowances or made specitic additioral nayiments to
our igueer paid ¢0.1e3gues G assist thent win the aud:l;u nal costs that they ave facing

the loveest pad disproporterately impacted In our decestraised

R'«

nggses have roviawed ther francizl weallness activitias to make sure we help protec employess from

Clobatly, many of cur hus
firancal snocks, with 88% of cur people hav'ng access to supaort for ther financial wenbeing.

Initiatives intrococed ¢ ready 1o lsurch nc'uds:

moevidrg finaroat ecucatipr
= cost-oflyong allowarce paww nte — an approach takan 1o help lower earning emnployees by Vivergo and 1w nings in the LK and
i

Towo i Malaw,
gurching “nancial veelibeing app;

. ;'~ro‘,-u*|'19 e g h y i0e) ur"w uu“«r* salary thioug™ he month as i is 2an
: B an approach taker Ly oor L<
oyeo b r'nHﬁts - -;] eny oyee disceunt seheme b elp cover

”mg 1ihe ASF Providens Sord - ooeivan g

an waltng urtl she end of e rronth,

oot —

decludirg thaose volio ave

EINERNS!

Cool LS
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT cortinuen

Directors’ pay in the context of the Group’s wider pay practices
me Committze Bas regare 1o workiorce temueration and related Do c.es acoss he Group and

art revwarg v th the Conmsny's cuitpre whan fetarmmring the 2022 Pooy for diresiors,

T

snnmient of incentives

s Al el e e
e tab'e below st weor<fonce

> rerareration structuize for tne

a Board Erecuiive ditectorns

Selow

a T the husinasses for caln Saary inCresses az a nﬁ'ct—"r"ge
country, taking inlg account couniry-spe con "'t'ors such as nflation. aof sdary are noervally ahgned
g5 2re then determinaed by Lne managers based on fectors such wiih or ‘ow rﬂ ari thosa of the
role and ‘ocal market praciice Sa’d’\ 3 are perchmalked
rmarket 1o ereure that we arg shle w recruit and retam

Salary Sa'ary ‘norease budgets are detenmanad by es

Conzistent w.ih the wider
worklorce, salanes are also se:
Ml rore camneliTvely against peeis i

Addinenal deta on ~ow cur busimesses nave tesponded 10 sUD
jur'ar ema oy=es woth the irnact of high inflat’on ars set out 2n pags 149, shppett of the rcc.v!tnien ane
retention of executive dislions

Ve rey ew the atio of the Chisf Executive’s pay Lo that of cor UK empioyses
N the next cocton of this Ner s eeatien Beperi

STIP iour deceriqalised nrads: the a3proach to incantnees vanas Sy dn '5 o Thus The ST’P for execulve directors
15 ConsIslEnt with ou lire of sight anpreac h dnj ensuies 1hal the
1S appropiEte tor tha stratagy of 2ach bus Wl ishes accaunt

1S pr.onansy based onire
=rfcrmarce of tre

fianc a‘ [

mare: practice Comoany.
Therz -5 a comimon goveinance framewaork, with certrai oversight, “or signing
off 2ll cranges To mcer e dasIgn 10 ensuce tnat rishs are mitgated c;nd

cultural consideialions are appropriately taken nto account

. ) , ~ lwoyesrs

Key nerformance measLres of adusied operating profiz, worke g capial, B5G Luw’\ o
GHiC

rargets ard personal performancs are commanly usea a0r0ss the Group.

A5 ene Piovees proqress nd are M(HT:OIGd, ther werget srd o Tiaerum Donas

nicre

LTIP We mase shars-tased LTIP o RSP Aveards 1o zcund 170 of o most Execurve dreciors’ LTP grants
SerOr N7 anagens 29 the Group o suoport tne rantueraton " 210 2021 weere perfurin ance
of ncents sng o oricng-term buziness results and sharehe : s, trat ves:
!.If,u,mpn nf

creation
Tio perfornarce res “or arcLnd A 6 f ; 15 sre 4l corditions. =rom
D8 DTEALUrES Tor grolnd 31070 O ,‘EH'J A0 23] - . -
e s ‘u 3 I : i o [ . na wirg hat the 7022
o partaly ‘-O qose of the axecut ve UreCions. For oiher parucipan: edl, Ihev e hr—
V-

approprate NTeasuies are agre :Wm; ihe ind vidual business o1
strategy and ole in the porticia of the business, [V TES n‘.c!ud
growlth, ':*urns, VOTKING L,d|_ll1o: rraragement ang stralegic objectves e.q.

related to cusness transformet.on or ESG prioritiss.,

an eouva ent Dpr* rran
aveard and wheeh vest provided
!.,ndt’:?p\!wa are 1et. Vested
shares are subiect to g tWwo-yoar
holding e ed.

2 & cash LTIP ©: somie regicns and divisons 1o ensure
von ol seper manage:s axd 1o

We ai
i ncentivisation Tor a weider popiut
performarce mour i

=25, where 1e'evant long-lenn largets can be g2

Al of our LTIZs have a performance penod of at ieasl three years walk some
eirg us 1o fve years. Awards a'e rm,t* a3 a percen age ol nase Sa\ary

Pension A person/providert fund is offered to cur employess N ine vath .ocal market \Jev Iy zppointed executve
f ! GICy Y 20
s Are countries v o pETSIoN directors are eligile 10 receive

requirements and practices. Exceptions 1o th
provision & not prevalent n the iocal markat and/or s proveded oy e state. a Cormzany pension contmbution
of Lo 1o 1026 of =alary in

nthe UK mewly anported enp'oyess and execatvas of all ABF comn pa'“‘es wth tha vader v qu‘OICE i t\ &
ars entitled to reeave & Company pension contribuuca that matches the own | T-h;f 5 elenle (0 1ake
; o LK. They ars elgible axe
contrbution to a max mum of 107% of salary They are eigible to take soma o RN v
" . . . soive or 3 of this as a cash
ali of this as & cash alterratve if subject 1o the ifetre or arcugl allowance

zltermat ve o f aubyect ‘O e
in cerman countres, including the Us and lreland, longer-serving emipioys ees Ietime or annual a'cwance.
CONT e 10 par \C‘FGTC nand ecoree benafits under detined heneht pensi

selhames W h ohare closed o new mambers,

Executive direciors roceive
carelits wrich consisl anmarily

Benefits ImGur fecentiaised
bene flw 370V ded o e

nrarket oy i of the provision of acompar.y
S’m. h Afrca, w ; :' 2 s o { Jolant anoco ailan'e carfaliowsnce a g3l covar

wale provide oy Le

= -~

3 h»: el Hn ErInVCeD,
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CEO Pay Ratio

Wlzaisr

; G =)
Gproen B 1 1040
Oplen B 71 1851
Oth?on B 791 701
Detion B 252.1 2280

van the complaeviiy of our
on for cur cricu’atons, We
aveiags annual salary ard

datz for part-tir e ineviduals o

tion B oot h—‘- Y :J

S UL 10 LEs

Me have onesen to use Op g m=lnodelog es u caculate our CLO Pay Ratio
Croen, this appicsch ensh g gerde pay cata for Great Briain (GBI as a fouwr
determined ihe houtiy "ates &t (‘Er‘h qQuarn m: of oar 5 April 2022 ael wdcr pay data then caiculaten e
toral remureraton for gach guarle as esch po.nt roprasents mulnple ndmiduals, We oro-rated the
retlect full-unte equivalent *e"nuncnm on and excluded leavers f oI {ne £8'Cualicn.

Riverside, Allied Balenes and Cerelonm empoyees, al medias they are roim

ver cuartile data paint ore Friovar,
e troy are fram Adlied Bakerss.

i Leﬂtﬂ' il Foods and ot unper quar

&
rt
[N

~i5 salary o STIP have
©ihie median shown below

year 23 George Weston's TP will not ves
: E REI

5 o1 the wider emp oyvee pooasien

ciein e a,
cling iner skilis

awhole, IWany of our eany career employees are in Prmark 2
resies typoally ‘aierin ther care=rs and with remuners o at tig

sl ihess inthe Foor

Tal reruneraton

: o oLasl BT R
2020 2022 oo

Executive directors

Ceuarge Westen’ 0.15% 2308 123.621% 5.458% G 0.04% 160
Johin Bazon 0.60% 430 121 1910, 4.91% S 1.35% 1005
Non-executive
directors
Average for non-
who d o not char 50914
Comimittees 1.33% 13.358% 121613 n/a n/a n/a nfa
Ficras: Melintook! 0.96% 13.19% {17149 n/a n/a nsa n'a
Futh Carr'a 17.85% i 11 n/a n/a n/a nfa
Fechad Red” A7 16% (G nfa rfa n/a nya n/a
Ayverage UK Assoc:

Bit ey Foods parent
emiployes - 0T7% 4707 070 7.7% 3.90% 2.00%  14.0% ] 167 -4 L

Relative importance of spend on pay

-Qn-year con |_.df' &on C‘ Hﬂg r2lativa imnort
cletal cont

ance of nay vt
ioution, ale

Fhstihutions to sharelolde
cvities data

2022
£m

2,812
345
304
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DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION REPORT coniued

Additional disclosures

Total shareholder return {TSR) performance and Chief Executive's pay
e Belny dlustratas e performarcs of s Cu npdlly wvar a1 yeare from seren er 2012 1o Scaten ber
20ZZ2 mterms of intal sharehelder returt compared wath that ¢f the com g conrnnising tre FTSE (00 mdex, Tnis indes has

Thr Fﬂﬁ.r"{\"f imrre e

bean selacied nelalLse 1rapraseris a cross secuon of leadirg UK cormpanies
N additon, the able be the graph provides a sumn acy of e total remaneration of tre Chied Execuive uver the iast 10 vears,

20
)
2030
00 .
5 ..
s e e e m e T =k
3 T
O e - e - - - - P, - - e e e e e
Yz - 2017 20ig 2080 201 2022
|
BOR10L 100
Savrce, DaiaStream Petw dox
2013 1 e MG 0t Xl 2022
Single tetal figure TEToneation
00 bE32 7,470 3,066 3,133 REEHS ] 2.843 1,204 11338 3,329 2,286
Areual veprh‘o elerment
-Sie uf nraxinant pefore
ahate price mpacis) 23.1%% 5949 41087, 2570, T3 370 004 b2.50% 510
Lorg-terns variahle olement
— LT P ™ of mzwinumi E5.0075 18.51%, 0's 5102 40.007% 0%

About the Remuneration Committee

Role of the Committee

“he Cominties is resgos Cings

» b remuneston pol oy for the execulive direciors and the Charman, co. serds across the Corr
exterrally,

vtz ; ard conditions of employment of cach rowdual executve direco

= 1he ,vera‘l solcy for rernuneracen of 1the Chief Exscative’s direct rooorts,

* the demign and rronitonng of the cperaton of any Company share plans,

+ slietehr gl Jcrfurl“«ncc 215 for executive directors 1 encourage er anced r.erfc,rn ance;

s anap Eons Dy rewards contnbution 1o the Conrpany’ >

* 0 d = cwcutlvc directors’ service agreements and ensunng i O REYIrEnTs mace on
ternTLatic nae fmr 1o the ndnedusl and Compary, and that faiure is not rewarded and \css is natgatec

are corphant

&d "egulany 1o srsarg that th

The Connmtlae’s remit.s set cut i detalin s tarms of reisrence, which are 1eviewy
waith the "atest corporate aovernarce requ remiants and were most recently upcated in Nove mber “[J')TZ Trey are availsile on
ry's

request from the Covpany Sec etary’s office or in ths corporate goverrance section of cUr website at wawwy.anf.co ue.

UK Corporate Governance Code Provision 40
Our principles raflect the faciors that Provision 30 of the UK Cormporate Governance Code ident fIPb as important for remuneraton

COMIME.TEes to cons der and these are taken 1o consideration N all of the Comnrstiee’s detision miaking.
< olanty erd simpiioity g ane of our bey rerrureratl on principles and bas informed ol cedision 1o move e an RSP,
+ precictabilty and & ignme cu lure are }'u, ‘hreacis .Iuou wdH of *I 1S EING D Ades s o improve predictalbity of

S Mase I 1n
N CUr decizicn to ntove

cortexl have informed the decis ¢
21ty Deovr, Gives us confide:

remuretalion guicomes in il e tane
revievy Qur culture, as diccluseed futther Inretaticn Io 1k and orox
to 2n RSP, mrd

rskoard sreperuonzality are particulsry reflected nthe mpm ance tnat ch to deing the rght thing for the tuse ese for the
g term, aur facus on f21 oLicon es 1nat considsar v, ciders and our approach to the cperation of discration.

*
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Members of the Remuneration Cammittee
In the financiat year and as at the date of this report, members and Chair of the Committee have been as follows:

Raole on Committes Independence Year of appointment Meetings atiended
Ruth Cairnie Chair  Senior independent Director 2014 8/8
Wolfhart Hauser Member Independent Director 2015 8/8
Richard Reid Member Independent Directer 2016 g8
Mictiael MeLintock Member Chairman 2017 8/8
Graham Allan Meamber Independent Cirector 2018 7/8
Heather Rabbatts Member Independent Director 2021 B/8

Georgs Weston {Lhiet Executive), Sue Whalley (Chief People and Performance Officer), and Jule Withnall (Group Director of
Reward) attend the meetings of the Committes. No individual is present when their own remuneration is considered.

Graham Allan was unable o attend one meeting during the year that was scheduled at short notice. The Committee Chair engaged
with him in advance of the meeting to ensure that his views were taken into account.

The Chairman was considered independent on appointment and, as such, is a member of the Commitiee.

Statement on shareholder voting

Resolution Data of AGM Votas for Vetes against  Votes withhald
Directors' Remunaration Policy 2018 December 2018 96.23% 3.77% 28,600
Directors’ Remuneration Repert 2021 December 2021 88.64% 11.36% 1,650,382

Wa were pleased last year that 88.64% cof those voting felt able to support our considered epproach to applying discretion.

We have engaged with our largest investors 1o better understand why some investors were unable to vote in favour of the
Remuneration Report in 2021. For some it was a matter of policy to vote against discretion, regardless of how the discretion

had been applied, and for others thare was a concern that, given the timing of COVID-19 and of our year end compared to other
businesses, approving discretion for us might encourage others to apply discretion, potentially in a less careful manner. One
shareholder expressed opsnnass to considering discretion, but had some issues about our assessed outcome, which we took into
account when considering our approach ta discretion this year.

Nemuneration Coinnilles advisers and fees

Following a competitive tender the Committee appointed Deloitte LLP {Deloitte) in March 2020 to provide it with independent
advice. Deloitte are members of the Remuneration Consultants Group and adhere to s code in relation ta executive remuneration
consulting. The Committee is satisfiad that tha advice it received in the year was objective and independent. This advice included
independent meetings with the Committea Chair during the year.

During tha y=ar, the other services that Deloitte provided to the Company were corporate and employment tax advice, advice
related to transactions, and risk and controls-related advisory work. The fees paid to Deloitte for Commitiee assistance over the
past financial yoar totallad £126, 400,

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP and Addleshaw Goddard LLP provide the Company with legal advice. Their advice is made available to
the Cemmittee, where it relates to matters within its remit.

Internal Board evaluation 2022
Reiterating the view from the external Board evaluation in 2021, the finding from the internal Board evzluation in 2022 was that the
Rermuneration Committee was universally considered to operate very well, with the Chair being regarded as doing a very good job.

Compliance

Where information in this report has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP it has been clearly indicated. The report has
been prepared in line with the requirements of The Large and Medium-sized Companias Regulations {as amended), the
recommendatigns of the UK Corporate Governance Code {July 2018) and the requirements of the UKLA Listing Rules.

8 November 2022
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DIRECTQRS' REPORT

Directors’ Report

The directors ot Associated
British Foods plc present
their report for the b2 weeks
ended 17 September 2022,
in accordance with section
416 of the Companies Act
2006. The Financial Conduct
Authority’s Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency
Rules and Listing Rules also
require the Company to
make certain disclosures,
some of which have been
included in other appropriate
sections of the Annual Report
and Accounts.
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rng ioriat on get oot on page 157 and
the Dlowang cross-referencad materal,
& nsorperated inte s Diractors’ Report.

= hkely future deve r\TCMS inthe
Group's bus.ness (wages 1 10 831

s QrESNNICLSe §as eissions and erergy
consurrption (age 7110 76);

. '“e Board of Dreciors (pages 106

1071,

» nformatcn an Gor employe 8s pdages
7710 8

< informanon on row tne cnecto s have
ergaged with emp'cvees (rcludirg
snose i the LK), have bad regeard @
emuloyves interests ard the effect of
“hat regard on the Company’'s prirc pat
dec siens ipages 64 1o 68, 77 10 80,
1100 7171 and 114

= asferncation an howy 2he
fnad regard to the n £-d :
Company’s DUSiNess 1e
SURDTIErS, CUCTGH £rs &0
the effect of that regar
the praciegl decisions i
Company dunrg the year (p
o8 and 68 10 871;

.

Resuits and dividends
Thu cor"s(‘lwcated INCGn

e stotemient

O ERT ‘¢

rat IIDLJT:D:e to equiny sharehclders
urteu to £700m

S ahiel

Tra dreciors recom merd a Tnal dwvisend
of 29.5p ver ot Nate Lo e paid,
subject to shareholdaer appreval, on 13
Jencary 2023 Together with the interm
drndena of 13.8p per share pad on 8 July
2022, this amrocunts 10 42 7o for the yesr
See page 185 for the note on dividends

Directors
The names of 1
dIFBL[era of -.he

parsons whow Pre
mpany duning t

he
C

Epaaar o page 1D

s anns

Appointment of directors

Tihg Artcles ghve directars the power 1o
sppoint eand ioplace direclors, Unider the
terma of reference of the Nomination
Commtiee, ary cnpun Ament must
he recommenced by the MNomuration
Conn fer approval by the Beard
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DIRECTORS' REPORT continued

Autharity fn prirchase own shares

ihe UCompanies Art UL empowers The
Company to purchase its own shares
subject to the necessary shareholder
approval. At the last AGM, authority
was given to the directors to aflow the
Company to purchase its own shares.
This authority expires on the date of this
vear's AGM. The directors propose to
renew this authority at the 2022 AGM for
the forthcoming year.

Amendment to Articles

Any amendments to the Articles may be
made in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 by way of
special resolution of the shareholders.

Significant agreements —

change of control

The Group has contractual arrangements
with many parties including directors,
employees, customers, suppliers

und bunking groups, The following
arrangements are considered to bea
significant in terms of ther potential
impact on the business of the Group as
a whole and rould alter or terminate on a
change of contrel of the Company:

+ the Group has a number of horrowing
facilities provided by various banking
groups. These facility agreements
generally include change of control
provisions which, in the event of a
change of controf of the Company,
could result in their renegotiation or
withdrawal. The most significant of
these is a £1.5bn syndicated loan
facility dated 9 June 2022, maturing
in June 2027, which was undrawn
at the year end. In the event cf a
change in control of the Company, the
lenders may request cancellation of
the commitment and repayment of any
outstanding amounts;

on 16 February 2U22, the Lompany
1ssued £400m 2.5 per cent Netes due
16 June 2034, [n the event of a change
of control of the Company, in certain
circumstances set out in the Tarms
and Conditions of the Notss as

set out in the Prospectus dated

14 February 2022 {which is available
on the Company’'s weabsite at
wiww.abf_co.ukl, noteholders shall have
the option to require the Company

to redeem or repay the notes at their
principal amount together with interost
accrued to (but excluding) the date nf
redemption or purchase;

£87m (approximate sterling equivalent}
of privale placerment notes in issue to

institutional investors. In the event of a
change of control of the Company, the
Company is obliged to make an offer of

156

immediate repayment to the remaining
neve holdeis, and

* cross-currency swaps in place totalling
$100m to swap all of the private
placement debt denominated in US
dollars to sures.

There are no agreements between the
Company and its directors or employees
providing for cornpensation for loss of
othce or employment that occurs as a
result of a takeover bid.

Political donations

During the year, the Group did not make
any political donations or incur any
political expenditure {within the crdinary
meaaning of those words} in the UK.
However, under the wider definition of
thosa tarms in Part 14 of the Companias
Act 2008, the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company did incur political
expenditure to the approximate value of
C12,250 during the year. The Groups did
nat make any contributions to non- UK
political parties during the year.

Financial risk management

Details of the Group’s use of financial
instruments, together with information
an our risk objectives and pulicies,
including the policy for hedging each
major type of forecasted transaction for
which hedge accounting is used, and our
exposure to price, credi, liquidity, cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found
in note 26 starting on page 186.

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging
technologies will continue 10 be crucial
to the successful development of new
products and processes for the Group.

The Company has a technical centre in
the UK at the Allied Technical Centre.
Facilities also exist at ACH Food
Companies in the USA, AB Mauri in
Australia and the Netherlands {(including
the new Global Technology Centre
opened in the Netherands in March
2021, AB Enzymes in Germany and

the new pilot plant in Rajamaéki, Finland
opened in early 2021 by our joint venture,
Roal. These centres support the technical
resources of the trading divisions in

the search for new technology and

in monitoning and rnaintarning high
standards of quality and food safety.

Assaciated British toods ple Annual Report 2022

Branches

The Cornpary, through various
subsidiaries, has established branches in
a number of different countries in which
the Group operates.

Disclosure of information te auditor
Each of the directors who held office at
the date of approval of this Directors’
Report confirms that:

50 far as each director is aware, there is
rio relevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditor is unaware; and

.

each director has taken all the
reasonable steps that they ought

to have taken as a director to make
themself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the
Company's auditor 1s aware of that
information.

For these purposes, relevant audit
information means information needed
by the Company's auditor in connection
with the preparation of its report on
pages 158 10 165b.

Auditor

Resclutions for the reappointment of
Ernst & Young LLP as auditor of the
Company and 1o authorise the Audit
Committes to determine its remuneration
are to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

Annual general meeting

Tha AGM will be held on 9 December
2022 at 11 00 am. Details of the
resolutions to be proposed are set out

in a separate Notice of AGM which
accarnpanies this report for shareholders
receiving hard copy documents and
which is available at www.abf.co.uk for
thase who electad to recelve documents
electronically. All resolutions for which
notice has been given will be decided on
a poll.

Thi Directors’ Report was approved by

tha Beprd Mnd 4gned on its behalf by
Pau T
Com espetary

8 November 2022
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Statemeant of directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the annual report and

the financial statements

The directors aré responsiole tor
preparing the annual report and the
Group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors

to prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law they are required 10
prepare the Group financial statements in
asccordance with Adopted |FRS and have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards, including

FRS 101,

Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and parent company and of
their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and
parent cornpany financial statements, the
directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and
then apply therm consistently;

+ make judyennenls and estindtes thal
are reasonable and prudent;

for the Group financial statements,
state whether they have been prepared
in accordance with Adanted IFRS:

for the parent company financial
staterents, state whether applicabls
UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained
in the parent company financial
statements; and

prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the parent company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsibie for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose
with reasonabie accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent company
and enshie them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the
Curmpanies Act 2006. They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irreguiarities.

Under applicable law and regulations,

the dircctors ara also responsible for
preparing & Stratogic Roport, Dircctors’
Heport, Lhrectors’ Hemuneration Heport
and Corporate (Governance statement
that complies with that law and those
regulations. The directors are responsible
for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website.
Legislation in the UK governing the
praparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of
the directors in respect of
the annual report

We confirm that ta the best of
our knowledge:

+ the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set
of accounting standards, give a true
and tair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit or loss of
the Company and the undertakings
included in the consciidation taken as a
whole; and

the strategié Heport includes a tair
review ot the development and
performance of the business and

the position of the Company and

the undertakings includad in the
consolidation taken as whole, together
with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that they tace,

On hahalf of the Roard

(5
Michael McLintock
Chairman m N
George Woston [
Chief Executive U
(A~

John Bason
Finance Director

8 November 2022

-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of Associated British Foods plc
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement
of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on
page 157, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary 1o enable the
preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing
the Group and parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related 1o going
concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the-
parent company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to

do 50,

Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from
matarial misstatement, whether due 1o
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
raport that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high lovel
of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance
with 15As (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considergd material

if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected

to influnnce tha oconamic docisiona

of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are
instances of non-compliance with laws
and ragulations. We design proceduraes
in line with our responsibilities. sutlined
above, 1o detect irregularities, including
fraud, The risk of not detecting a

material misstatement due 1a fraud is
higher than the risk of not dstecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intantional misrepresentations,
or through collusion. The extent 1o

which our procedures are capable

of detacting irregularities, including

fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibifity for the prevention
and detection of fraud rests with both
those charged with governance of the
Company and management.

Cur approach was as follows:

P

We obtained an understanding of

the fegal and regulatory frameworks
that are applicable to the Group and
determined that the most significant
frameworks which are directly
relevant to specific assertions in the
financial statements are those that
relate to the reporting framework

{UK adopted International Accounting
Standards, United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, the
Companies Act 2006 and the UK
Corperate Governance Cede) and the
relevant tax laws and regulaticns in
the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. In addition. we concluded
that there are ¢ertain significant laws
and regulations which may have an
effect on the determination of the
amounts and disclasures in the financial
statements being the Listing Rules of
the UK Listing Authority, and those
laws and regulations relating to health
and safety, employee matters, food
standards and food safety.

We understood how Associated British
Foods ple is complying with those
frameworks by observing the cversight
of those charged with governance, the
culture of honesty and ethical behaviour
and whether a strong emphasis is
miaced on fraud prevention, which

may reduce opportunities for fraud

to take place, and fraud deterrence,
which could persuade individuals not to
commit fraud because of the fikelihocd
of detection and punishmant.

We assessed the susceptibility of

the Group's financial statements to
material misstatement, including how
traud might accur by mesting with
rmanagement from various parts of

the business to understand where it
considered there was susceptibility to
fraud. We also considered performance
targets and theair influence on efforts
made by management tc manage
garings or influence the perceptions
of analysts. We considered the
programmes and controls that the
Group has established to address nisks
identified, or that otherwise prevent,
deter and detect fraud; and how
senior managament monitors those
programmes and controfs. Where the
risk was considered to be higher, we
performed audit procedures to address
each identified fraud risk. These
procaduras included testing manual
journals and were designed to provide
reasonabie assurance that the financiat
statemants were free from material
fraud or error.
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= Based on this understanding we
designed our audit procedures to
identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures
involved: journal entry testing, with
a fecus on manual consotidation
journals and journals indicating large
or unusual transactions based on
our understanding of the business; ~
enquiries of legal counsel, Group
managament, intarnal audit, divisional
rnanagement and all full and specific
scope management; and focused
testing, as referred to in the key audit
matters section zbove.

A further description of our
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located cn the
Financial Reporting Council's

websiie at https:/Avww fre.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's repert.

Other matters we are required to
address

Following the recommendation from the
Audit Committee, we were appointed by
the shareholders on 4 December 2015 to
audit the financial statements for the 52
weeks ending 17 September 2016 and
subsequent financial periods.

The period of total unintarrupted
engagement including previous renewals
and reappointmants is seven years,
covering the 52 weeks ending 17
Septernber 20186 until the 52 weeks
ending 17 September 2022. The audit
opinion is consistent with the additicnal
report to the Audit Commitiee.

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the
Company's members, as a hody, in
agcecordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Qur audit
work has beer undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s members
those mattars we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose, To the fuliest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept of
assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit work,
for this repart, or for the opinions we

have formed.

Simon O'Neill
{Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young
LLP, Statutory Auditor

Birmingham
8 November 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

orsg o
Revenue
neral g cnste before excepi oret iiems

Exceptongdtems

veni.ires and assce ates

Shzie of profit after e from joon:
Frof s less "gsses o dizposal of nen-cairent assels

Operating profit

Adinsted uozrating proit

:on deposet of nos-euent gsscte

rEtng -

Arnoits
.

HCOUITE

uon cosis

Excepions' nems

Profits 'ess ‘ossas ok 53 e and cleswre of husnessss
Profit betore interest

Finarce maone

Finance experse

Otier fzraal income)exoen el

Profit hefore taxation

shing T hEn

=d mvenlony 1@ valae do L simens

fransacion £0ats

Texat o UK texciudmg tax onesiept ora: ments)
- LK ton exceptcrai 1tansi
~ Ovorsea cluding —ax on ascepunnat iems)

- Overzeas {on ewcentional 'tems!

Profit for the period

Attributable to

Eauity shzrboders
Mor-contrching nierests
Profit for the period

Bzalc ard dluted cars nes per grd.nary share pence)
Divinends par share pand and orocosad for the penod ipencel

Special dvidend per ehare preposed for the penod ipenge)

166 Associated British Foods ple ~i .l R

N RO o

o

A I S ]

(2]

L BN o PR

2022
£fm

16,997
{15,729}
(206}

1,062

109

7

1,178

1,435

7
(47)
(5)
{6)
{208)

{23)
1,155
19

{111)
13
1,076

1,356
7
47
(5)
(6
(206)
{23}
(50}
3
{243}
(66)
{356}
720

700
20
720

88.6
43.7

13,824
13,008)
1151)

775



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated balance sheet
at 17 September 2022

2022 2021

Note £m fm
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 8 1,868 1,681
Property, plant and equipment 9 5,599 5,286
Right-of-use asseis 10 2,456 2,649
Investments in joint ventures A 301 278
Investments in associates 11 85 60
Employee benefits assets 12 1,393 640
Income tax 5 23 23
Doforrod tax assets 13 158 218
Other receivables 14 58 55
Total non-currant assets 11,941 10,790
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale 15 45 13
Inventories 16 3,269 2,151
Biclogical assets 17 105 85
Trade and ather receivahles 14 1,758 1,367
Derivativo assots 28 475 124
Current asset investments 20 4 32
Income tax &7 58
Cash and cash equivalents 18 2,121 2,275
Total current assets 7,834 6,105
Total assets 19,775 16,895
Current liabilities
Liabilities classified as held for sale 15 {14) -
Lease liabilitios 10 {316} {289)
Loans and overdratts 19 {167} (330)
Trada and other payablas 20 {3,114} {2,386}
Derivative liabilities 26 {208) {34}
Income tax {160] (172)
Provisions 21 {87) {71
Total current Kabilities {4,053) {3.282)
Non-current liabilities
| pase lizhilities 10 {2,936) (2,882)
Lozng 19 {480} {78)
Provisions 3 {26} 3H
Deferred tax liabiliies 13 {847} (363}
Employee benefits liabilites 12 {79] {147)
Total non-current liabilities (4,168) {3.609)
Total liabilities (8,221} (6,891}
Net assets 11,554 10,004
Equity
Issued capitai 22 45 45
Cther reserves 22 178 175
Transtation reserve 22 422 {34)
Hedging reserve 22 154 43
Retained earnings 10,649 9,692
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders 11,448 9,921
Non-controlling interests . 106 83
Total equity 11,554 10,004

The financial statements on pages 1686 tc 232 were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 November 2022 and were signed on
its behalf by:

Michael McLintoclk

John Bacon

Chairman Finance Director
A
Y OV A LA N
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

2022 00
L fdry s ~ nErn i f o
Cash flow from operating activities o T o
Srolit before taxator 1,076 725
Dpfits iess kosses on disposal of non-currest assets (7) [}
Protits less losses on ssle end clesurs of husinesses 23 i20)
on cests 2 6 3
< (19) 1S
Jul 111 1
2l {13} 1
~olates 11 {109} 179)
: 68 74
Uenragcaucn uaciudng of 1-ghini-use assers) 802 873
Except.ong’ toms 2 206 51
=¢i rvertery fav value adjust 5 2
Py rinfls IGNEIY BIOMOMH 28 16 7
Met change n ths fair value of curen: : (8} U2
Share-hascd paymient expenss 2 i9 17
FUnsion LSS I8ss ontnootonsg 7 4
Incresge N Ve iUnIES (953) 120
oreaze It receivables (288) 1881
nLTeASE 1N NAYAED CF 512 175
P i ass saies of current bo'ogical assats {4} i
©a45a) I Provis.ons 7 103
d from C,Jt!’fﬂ\bﬁg 1,457 1.711
ncome ‘[a‘x.es ped {304) 1288}
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,163 1.4713
Cash flow from investing activities
Dw'dends received irom o nt vantures ard assaciaies 11 93 &3
Furchaze of property, slant and ggupment {680) 1551}
e of intangibles (89} (75
et vas rensived 46 1mn
5 propetty, plant and equipment 30 23
Purchase of sulsidiar s jwint veriures aro essgoaies {154} 1571
Sele of subsidiar eg, joint ventures and asse 'Lu} -~ 34
Purchase of othar investmants (7 14
interest recawved 4 17 9
Net cash used in investing activities (744) 1267
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends pad 1o non-controiling ineresis (8) 4
Divigends pa'd 1o 2quity shaehelders 5] {380} 149}
Irerest pad {114} {(116;
Repcyrr*em ot lease haoilities 25 {321} (290
25 {12) 110
g-1er i igans 25 178 112
it dsset nvestinen J45) 30 12
: diary cngde-taking from ron-controlling interesis - 123}
Moverrent irc;n‘— d‘abges rown shares held (50} -
Net cash used in financing activities (677} 512}
Net [decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 25 {268) 340

Cash and cash ecuivzlenls st ths beginning of e pencd 2,189 1.929

ovenents o foreign excharge 74 iGy
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period i 25 1885 2189
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

Total comprehensive income

Frof o forios e - - - - i7a 20 4498
SELIIY 2 - - - 528 oE8
- - - - 11:14) - 1134
- - - - 15 - A5
- 1565) - - izBE)
- — 14 — - - 11
- - i8] - - 15} - ig)
- - - 39 - 39 - 39
- - - 14 - (RIS : (]
- - (10 - - 1100 - (10
- - - - ¥e] TE - 18
TUSrly 120 A
- - 13571 25 8 12125 - 121
- - 1357) 25 433 101 1371
Tralsornrerensive noueee - - 1357) 25 93? 579 20 o009
[nventory cash flaw hedge movements
EEIRE ot - - - 25 - 25 - 25
v lanm P he - - - 25 - 25 e)
Transactions with owners
Doderas Pt Y e, by 8 5 - - - 9% 12 - {240
PRt - - - - V7 i7 - 17
- - - — 1 1)
- - - - (s} [sT] (17 (23]
- - - 1381 1381 i21) sl
Saaccaasat b 15 175 134] 13 9592 94621 832 10.004
Total comprehensive income -
ol it are pEnd rennen sod im he T er - - - - 70 700 20 720
1z - - - - 2% 821 - 82
- - - (198 1198} - (ARalsH
- E - - 623 623 - £V
- - 429 - - 429 11 440
25 - - () - - (1} - {1
~ 4 - - - 4 - 4
— - 418 - 415 - 118
- - - {2a) - {284 - [Z8)
- i - - - (n - i
- - 28 - - 28 - 28
- - - - 45 46 - a8
- 3 458 M 46 898 11 07
- 3 458 2 669 1.519 1! 1.E20
Tolcororohens e noure - 3 456 331 1369 2,279 31 2,250
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
sie LY - - (280! - 12500 - (2801
maovemeT s - - - (280} - (280 - 12501
s 0 - - - a0 1280 - 1380
- - - - i3 (314 - {31
[Te s LG Ty e = - - [ 1) - {1
o G R e T - - - - - - i1 e
Troe, tremZ2LH0nE s oot - - . - 1412} 1412 [ty 420

Balance as at 17 September 2022 45 178 422 154 10,649 11448 106 1""],'?5“4‘
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Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Accounting estimates and judgements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Operating segments

Trie Group has five aneraung segmenss, as descr'bﬂ‘j wing drvisiens, kased an the T
dintsinel reporirg structure, which compine busing cormicr chigractlenstios, prmarnty inrespect of e ype of
onucts oifered by each business, but also the produc uon prtjc,ebaes nechved and the manner of tre cismbution and sale of
1cas. The Board s 17e chief operating decis on-maxer,

d cperaving oroly, as shown an the lace of
axcent employes benefits assets, ‘rcome tax
I'% CLiTelit £ nvestmerts and nLome tax

ne PCJ s detgrmimed an an arm's length basis Sscmenl sy
e staternent. Segment assels conmyprise all umfm,lrem a5

assele enft de@lrcd 'd‘ assels and all currer: éssets gxcept cash and cash eqg
seels Segmentl ieblities comarea trade and O\h"::rpd\;bbf‘}, derivaiveg 3 Srovisions and 2ase hab

butahe to s
"Ssr-to ard en

e 1otdl cost roctred d

ng The D OU W0 acaulre Fe

. L. L . . . e
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Bls ~esses disposed are snoven seperately and conpslalves are 1o

OF eIt

resented o

The Group cumarizes the foleearg eperating segments:

Grocery
Tha manufecture ¢ Cmciuding "ot beverages, si 2 ol 82 C vInegars, bread ard
baked goods. ceraa =at piod acts, which are sold 10 reta’l wncesa s anj focdser ce businesses

Sugar
The crowing and processing of
Grocary ssgment.

vaar heet and sugar cane for zale 1o roustnal tse's avn1o Sher Speen, voieh s inciuded i the

7]

Agricuiture
The rranufactare of enngl feeds end the prov s o of ofrer pror

Ingredients
The rranwfa

Jre of pakers yeast, bakery

Retail
Buying erwd mercrandis rg value clotr rg and acoe

ones throngh 102 Pnmark gnd Penneys reta’t chans

Geographical information

addition 1o tre requited osc'esure for aperging segments, dinclosure s :'15-3 gwsn of cenar gecgraphczl ntormet on about the
(‘ cup s ooerations, based o the goographcal groupings: Umwd Kingdom, Ewape & Afnica; The Amvercas; and Asia Jacitc

Jeverues are shown Ly rafererce “o the gecgrenh cal ‘ooaten of customers. 2iots are shoven by reizrence 10 the geograpacal

locztion of the businesses. Segirent assets are based on the geogranhiczl lonat on of the assets,

Fovero A et
2022
£m

Orp'érrating segfnénté
Grocery 3,735
Sagar 2,016
Aghculture 1,722
Irgrodienis 1,827
Fatal 7,697

399 413
162 152
47 4
159 151
756 22
{88]) (70
16,997 13,881 1,435 1,011
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e
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Cantrsl

16,397 138584 1.435 1,011

6,378 1,882 533 sl
6,291 4,944 432 202
7

2,028 1,078 279 754
2,277 141 157
281

2,300 2
16,997 13.28 1,435 RN
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2022

Grocery  Sugar Agriculture  Ingredients Retail  Central Totai
. 7 ‘ . o - Em Ty ~ Lm £ A im _ Em B £m
Revenuez frant contnung B.snassss 3736 2,097 1,728 1,896 7897 {(Z57) 16.997
[Iverns! reven,e (1) =1 L)) {14 - 257 -
Hevenlte from extarral custormers 3,735 2,016 ’ 1,722 1,827 7,697 - 185,897
Sogustzdd aperating prolt oefuns LNl velinres ans associzies ! 154 31 142 756 88 1,323
Share of wrofit after tax from o'ntveniures and asseea s 71 2 16 17 - - 112
Adjusted coerating profit 399 162 47 1658 756 B8 148b
TINAncE INCome 16 12
S rance expenca (i 2] - i1 (76! 371} (111}
Crher fina-oal inccme 13 12
A, 398 160 47 15 680 87 1,356
P:. 3 4 z - - 1 7
Al RIals 5 1327} - 121 {12 - - {47)
Acjune i e MO'\,/ Al value adjustrenis i1 - 121 {2} - - {5}
Transacton costs i - (2) (31 - - i3
Ercepinral tems - - - - 1206} - (206}
'-‘r:\ ts less losses on sa'e and closore of busirasses - {16] - 17 - - {23}
Profit betore 18«at o 285 148 47 123 474 88l 1,076
Taxation 1356) 358)
Profit for the period ARH 198 1 133 474 qaan 720
e 88s&ts leadluding oni venTires and associstiss) 2,876 2,422 597 o7 7570 136 15,618
Investirenis 0o rtventures and associates 67 45 113 136 - - 386
Segment assets 2,938 2,467 740 2183 7,570 126 18,004
Cach ard nank couivelonts 2,121 2,120
[arrcnt acc Gl e aGiments 4 4
[menims 1ax S0 =0
Deferrod 1ax assels 163 163
civpicyes berefits assets 1,383 1.293
Segment liabilities {7030 1616 {196; 1450] {4,646} {188) (5,698!
zog and nverdratis G37) {627
‘ 2 tan 60 {160}
[Geferred tax iabilites 1617} {817
Errcloyes besils Lakihiues 179) {79}
Netassets 2235 1,891 844 _ 1702 3075 2196 11654
Non-current asset add uons 128 223 28 183 1689 3 1,062
Depraciation {including of nght-cf-use asseis) {109 (75) 7 {h7l 1832) (12} 802}
Amenisanan 137) $3 () 114 ity - 165}
Itmpasment of properly, clant 3ad equipment ard
fuseassets o o-oous oo oMo
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Operating segments coiiiouaf
2021

e o continuwng businasses

Tevenae

£rs

Adiusted unerating ool before joint v

Shore of proft atier tzn oo it venures and ssaoc
Adiastad operating prott
Fimznce ircoma

AT
LA XATICN

Prefits leas lesses 00 d'spozal of ~on-currert assets

Amorteaticn of noer-operaeng ntangiles

Acquired invantery fair valus adiustmerts

Tranm on costs

Excertional rems

Profits less 'osses on sals and closure of husnessas
Erofit kefors taxeton

Tardtian

Frofit for the period

Segnent assets lexo Lo ng (oit ventures and aas
TvEsIMents N oint vetaras and arsociates
Segment assets

Cash and cash ecuivalents

Cuzrant 2T INVaSTIne NS

Irceme 1ax

Defer-ed tax assets

Employee benefits assers

Segment liabilities
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‘NooTie iax
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Emptoves herefiis Gahi tes
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Amortsation
Faversa. of 'mp
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2022
United Kingdom

£m
Reverue om extarmal customers 378
Segmer 5,977
Non-current aseet additions 255
Dep-cc igton tmnclad ng of nghtotuse assets) {2/
i 2o

Impe ntof micneny, Llant eno equipment on sale and
umro of © DUMNCIZES -
Vory far value adjustrents {2}
{7}

Fevenve Dam exieinzl cuslomers
-

Sagmant asseis

! CUrre: st aaditens

Demesstion nchid mg of nght-of s essers

Amertisancn

reversal of imparmert of pr
on sale and closu e of bu

Acguired inzentory far vaiue e‘.cusm*(mts -

Transaction cesis 1)

Evceptona iFerrs

Mar Land ec

113

34

The Group's 5o e [Llioveng cotrinss et the oroena for ¢

Europe & Africa The Americes

£m‘ _ £m
G,281 2,028
65,519 1,640
487 177
1292) {eiel)
137} 5]

4,944 16
5,754 1
252
£108)

iZ6 i

iZ0)

S.e

Asin Pacific
£m

2200

1,673

103
155}
15}

Total
£m

10,687

16,004

1.0%2
202
i68)

N
13,884
13,643

715
1823
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 5Z weeks ended 17 September 2022

2. Operating costs

2022 02
. L o o £n_1 . L
Operating costs 7 o R 7
Costof seles Including amcrtsat'on of nitangibles 13.219 10,753
Distrizutan £0s:s 1,465 1603
Adrinistration expe 1,045 G527
Sacentiongl tens 206 151
e . e 18,935 13159
Operating costs are stated after charging/{crediting):
Emiployes bonotds oxpance 3 2,812 2,639
Arrigrigaton o1 non-cperating 1ria a 44 48
Amorusaton of operatng intang o o 24 DE
i) ricry far value adjusimants 5 3

Frofd 565 on dhsposal of noncarrent assels %) {1
Deprecanen of property, clant and B 521 n3b
atien of nohit-o®-use as justnents ) 281 288

TOn Costs 6 3

ct of hypeanflzatorary acoromies 15 7
Other cperating rocome {25) {23)
Fesearch and developmrent exaandiiure 37 3
4 el habil tes held tor {23) 115)

Al asaets ano hablities ne'd “or tradivg 17 12

2 GamnS G Cpealitg antvities [36) 127

an‘ar\ s O QPeraling sctv i as 37 33
" s T LGh and amart egt on ot ealrg ntang 'es of £17m 2021 - £2m e d £h0n 3 UG OETS
reonte rent, nchuce £ and £2m otiealy 12021 — Enband £2m resizect ures, madditon

the arounts s above

Exceptional items

2022
Treing OT‘.‘E‘ ST:J ement t
rty

crneany,

for
spened

oreany st .
fr. -‘ue+ 251

- Sorman mar I'er 120 ‘J‘J al d suhieved very high sales derstes
tha retal 2e'ling snace much bsrger than 1he avere or the rest of the
2T Years up Mot w-:‘ 201 i “"-mh\d\ \,ﬂcrc“"d weske adirgin ihe

Irecover 1o p O' Al s
Le, Ti\% futue a=hfloa

res vy
ties decined in 1ne
Darhewary o Garmany, Fas ma
wgh cost to serve miarket for retalers. As a uomeuuh
financial yvear end requires us 1o recogmise & imips i ent which has Heem tregied as axe
rorman commuiied 1o OLr Oyal SLSto 50N this imporart Mark e U v are Now res
Garmany 1o fong-term prot \lﬂJI' y These optens maluas the po urm al lo optmiise tha retal sellirg space oy store a5 wel as
reviewing the feolpnng of the oveiall siore DOTIF(‘\ 0. Also £49m of “he £63m cxceptioral crargs irciuded in the Group s tomal 1ax
clharge for Urs {rancial year was the de-renognition Cf the aafsrred 1ax asse s relating to Gormany.

cial year,

ReRvN e

g oplhiens T Rturn QuUr DUS eSS

al
C

2021

ancents of £74 170 proparty, ;)‘-m ANg enuepmert &1 Asucarer a and othar s Uar
af21rinveiory chage n Pamark, the reversal of £20in of the 7 ~ P g \k rNEenIory provision raised o

Jgion for excessive giock of COVID-19 elated items in Fromett and a L.“]\ | st serv.ce cost u"u‘..ng E
Hgn Court ruhing mn 20 Novemiber 2023 regerding tre equansation of Cuarariced W :

aliterrs of £197Tm incluead p

Exception
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2022 S

Il R R N T A £m tin
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of the audit
Group aurd't of these inancial statemen:s 1.6

=
) s

Audit of the Comipany's subsidiar es” firarcial stalemes 7.6
Tota zudt renruneration 7 92

s
o

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of non-audit related
services

Aud -related gssurance <ervices 04 2.4
Al ather sery ces 05 03z
07

PAgh- AUt relaten remiuparation B _ ,09,

3. Employees
2022 KA
Average number of employees
Unted Krgdeom 41,526 42,690
Furcpe & &'nica 73,155 67,661
Tre AlTencas 6,102 5,081
11,490 11,454
132,273 127,912

Azia Pacific

2022 RVal
ez Em [

Employee benefits expense
Viages ard salanes 2,350 2,202

Sooal seour ty oo 311 787

Cordribuiicns to d huetion schemes 1.2 87 51
Cnarge for defined henafit s 12 45 50
Equiy-seliiec sharo basaa paymert sorem es 21 19 i

2812 2,639

Derzils of directors’ rerrunetat’'on, snare incartives ard pens.on ertitllemerts are ghowe in 1o Remaneraton “eporl on pages 128

1o 103

4. Interest and other financial income and expense

2022 bloch
e

Finance income
Cash and casn equd valenis end curret asset investin=ris 18 9

19 8

Finance expense

Sanrk 'oans and overdraits (20) (161
Aitather borrowings (8} 1
Lease habiities 10 (81) 154}

Other payakbles {2} i1
e o a1y e
Other financial income/ (expense}
Interest neome on employea benefit scheine assets 12 84 59
iah'les 12 {74} 165
intarast charge on rreccverable surp Ls 12 (1) i
Mat f rancal roomraisxpense) flom emp 9 i
Met foreis
Toral ov'ie

on anchangs gans on inancirg activives

rpersel ) ) ) ) 13 i

Nl incoaTed
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

5. Income tax expense

[ARA=]

2022
U U — . S e - e BT
Current tax expense
LUK = comoration tax al 19% (2021 -1 44 A6
Owverseds - Corporation fax 244 208
UK — foverifunder provided in pnor periods (12} 9
Overseas - over provided in gnor oe.wods 1 12
' 277 754
Deferred tax expense
UK deferred 1ax 18 13
Cwvers & ) tax 72 137}
UK - ovar proaded i oror pencds (3} I3
Crversess - over provided in pror per ods o (8}
' 79 27
Total income tax expense in the income statement ) 356 227
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Proiit before taxation 1,076 725
Less share of Lioft aliar tax from jo nt ventures and asscoiEes {109) i79)
Protit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax fromt joint ventures and associates 967 B8
Mortra tax charge at UK corperation tax rate of 1954 12021 - 19500 184 123
] hig and ;ower tax rates 61 oversces Carniv gr 4 33
Effect of changas 'n tax "ates on the ncorre stateniant 2 17
Expenses not deducun's for tax purpos 63 S
frzposal of as ovarss by iloEses 6 1
d tav Nt rocogn 20 120 a
JustTErs nrespec of pror pet {23) 13}
356 227
Incaome tax recognised directly in equity
Deferred tax aszociated vath defned berefnt schermes 198 taa
Daterred tax assoceted vath sharo-based payments 1
Deferred tax assoc ated veith movement in cash fiow hedaimg uosror 28 14
Ceferred tax aszoc.ated wih movemsrt in other nvestmants 1
ol o e o 28
The UK corparat on tax cf 1945018 set to increass to 25% from 1 Apnl 2023, The legisation to effect hese changes was
eraciec se‘ore the haiance sheel dote and UK deterren ~ax has Leen caiculated accordingly
Py Apnl 2019 e Furopean Commassion published ts decis on oo the Group Financ ng Exentpl on n e UK s contred'ed foreign
cempany legisiaron The Commussion found that the UK lawe Gid not cormply with EU State Ad ri’es nocertain circumstances, The
s Ce

Graup has arengerments that may ke mpacied 'wy “hi :cision as nuight ciher Uk-based m womal groups that had Tina:
sirangements in ing with the UK's leqislat an in ‘orce at the vrre. The UK Goverrment, the Group and a rumber of other UK
cormipanies appealed agairst this decision 1o the Gereral Court of he Evrcpezn Urnan VGCEUY On 8 dure 2022, the GCEU Tound
i favolr o the Commission 5 origing: decsion. As 5 1esuii of this, ' Aucust 2022, e UK Government,
other UK compa pealed GCEU's decis.an o the Court of J of the Erropean Unico, We e calculated aur max mum
potert 3l habihty 10 be 226 12021 £26m). Paveever we do not congider that any provison § sequired iniespact of this aroun:
ad on our current essesament of the 1gste. Fol owang receipt of charging rotices from HM Pevenue & Custems CHMRC

e paymiente 1o HMRE intha pror yeer, Dur @ssessment rerramns that ne mrovy sion 1s reqglired In res *iis arrount

cartnue to considar the impact of the Commussion’s decision oh e Group ane the polental reguire ment o record

G Groeup end var cus

Ceferred taxation balances are anzlysed innote 13,
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6. Dividends

2022
pence per share

G0 a9
S0 S| 34.30 - 2N -
13.80 - 109
48.10 620 380 B3
The 2022 ptenm di derd vas Jec'ared on 26 Aprl 2022 and vwas pak j NG culy 2022 The 2022 -zl dvidend of 20 9p, tcial vanie

ot £226m, w 0alt en 13 Jaruesry 2023 to sranzhoiders on 'Iie reguster on i€ Denemper 2022

o e pp ad vears 43 7o par shate totaling £395m (2027 — 40.5p par share totailing £320v e Ldng ine speca

7. Earnings per share
The caculaticn of as ¢ eanings per shareat 17 SL[ b.ht"e 2022 vweas based on -Tw—*- rie
£700m 12021 - £178rm), and a weighte :
The ca'culaticn of the viegnteo av
AN he gwderds gre

siriazable o eouty 8
of :."39 milhon (ZU 1- ."-'O I

T prof

crage .

falve
Walved,

32INg
ron-cuirent assets and the sale
1=, =rmart on of ren-

. o the urderiying performance

Agjusted earmings per ordinary share, which esciuce the impact of pr
S d closure of bus resses, amoinsaton ot acou ed nventory ‘o valus afhu:*n* TS,
sneratng intarg bles, exceptional nems and any associgied tax credits, s shavn
of the Group

o
€11

)

Trarsacton costs of £8m and amortsaven of ren-ouereting nt; ) showen 25 adjustirg ders

belew include £ and £3m e ctively (2021 — £l ere £2m resped

RTENN .tr—c 2ATNINGS L2 share caloL 2o 13hes Into acoount e d of share roertves Tne oduted, ve ghted evarsge
e 59 mdhor (2021 — 730 mdhor). There s ng Y oasic ang dlated ezmings
2022
- [ P - = - - N £_m -
Adjusted profit for the period T T ' 1,034
Disposa: of non-curiert assats 7
e and c'csure of Dusin {23)
Acguaed inveriory f2ir wa strerts {5)
Trarsacton costs (6)
{206) |
{63) 23
Ao rt\s,c-mn of ron-t. LJb atn ngibles {47) o)
Tax crediz on ron-cperating ': hles anortisst or and geodvall 9 5
Profit for the period attr!butable to equity shareholders 700 478
2022
. pence
Adjusted earnings per share ' 131.1
Dig poﬁd‘ of non-rur-ent asssts 0.9
sae ad cosure of businesees {2.9)
. wwd inveritory fair value sdjustvents {0.6)
Tr 10N Costs (0.8}
E\C’:;Jhlﬂ”a‘ ems {26.1}
Tax efect on above ad:ustments (8.0
AMcriisation o non-ongrating v mangibies (6.0}
Tex credit 2n non-cperating intangzles amortisat or and gocdwoll 1.0
Earnings per ordinary share 8386

185
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

8. intangible assets

3 A Ten Saras o] G Toial
fin - i B fin rm rm
Cost
At 12 September 2020 i.281 210 ERN 281 102 5 z47 2,808
istiors — externa'ly purchased - - - - - - 26 el
A f tirougl bus ress comn'natons - 16 - 3 - 1 20
] disposals - - - - - - 1201 1204
zct of Pypennflationary econcmies 34 - - - - - d
erents in foreign exvchange Vigh (12} {121 13 8 - 132 Lzt
er 2021 1,228 214 i29 24 108 o £5t
Azguis I'C"° —exiernaly purchased - - - - - 138 135
& H‘ro o nLsness combinstors 515} a4 23 g - - - 173
- - - 19 19)
~assited g5 Feld for sale - . - - - - {16} [16)
i onary ecnnomies 3 - - - . - - G
Lifect of movenents in foreinn exchanae 841 22 26 13 1 33 179
At 17 September 2022 ) o 1.414 285 438 290 o1 5 897 3,289
Amortisation and impairment
At 12 Septermrber 2020 ih 20< 363 182 103 5 26/ 1,238
Arnurngaton for the year - 2 20 26 - 26 71
froaitment — - - - - - 2 7
Effect of mmovements in foragn exch ange 134 (1 RN 18 G - 11415 311
,-“«I 18 Sep r 2021 112 195 377 152 5 231 1,274
lmey ear - 7 27 15 - - 24 63
s - - - - 1 i
rsier 1o as<ets 0iass” s heid for saie - - - - - - 3 iy
Ctﬂfr IOVENTEIS 1 foieign excharce 0 19 21 11 | - 22 34
At 17 September 2022 122 221 415 226 116 ] 322 1,421
Net book value
At 12 Seplenber 2020 1,766 5 /8 ES] - - 280 1,629
A1 08 Septerber 2021 1,721 19 57 71 - - 310 1,881
At 17 September 2022 B 1,292 64 3 64 R - 375 1.868

s batd for sele

Im additior to the amowris 0 solosen anove, there are £12m (2021 — el nitangile assets clasaified as
neie *hy

Amortization of nor-operating mangibles of £47m012021 - tern 1 the incone statement noludes
£3n1 12027 — £2n°) incarred by jormt ventures n addition Jt

Impairment

As at 17 September 2022, the congol datad be snce sheel neluded goodvad of £1,292m 12021 - £1,124m). Gooowall g @lecated to
he Growp's cash-genarating urnits ({CGUs), o1 groups of CGUs, that & d o benefitfrom the syre-gies of the hisiness
combimnat oo that gave rse to the goodw \ as fo'lovs:

S 2022 iy

e e — = e . Emotmy

93 a0

Grocery 208 174

Irgredients 289 287

Crocery 119 119

Sugar 105 164

2B VWorlo Foods arocery 79 73
Dther inat nd widiary sagnfcant] Varons 392 292
1,292 1,124
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vl Bas been silocated 1hust De azses
it May ot he recover

ACG

DT QU0 G of C
Or CIreum ld
GUs from the pror

VENTS & CATTYIng &7

ST Y

cash flows

Tra canying vaue of goouw || g assessad oy reference 12 13 value inwsa refiectira The oreed
yroup of CGUs These projactions are based nn the nonst recant budaet, which Fas teen appreved by the
managenient's exsectat ons of sa'es qrowih, operating cosis and Margin dongp erce and exle
‘nformatcn. ong term groveth rates for periods not covered by the annuaal budger reflect <he progduris, industnes and countries
wrtch the refevant CGU, aor grow of CGUs, wperats

"{’,'.D':C,'b to achigve growth ouel ext thie e years noaxcess of the lon T glowth rates
: ] broe and five yc—ars, usIrg

ascd relate to discount 1ates,

LOpTICns in tne ekt recent arnual b
5 and exnected changes in volumres, s mg Orices erwd d n—.cdt oUSTs.

|ior each tusn
IR

Loted Lsing a R P-'-a;f weeahted averdye cost of napa
Y, mduww q.d M ! SSEUMRUONS LoEd o cécu'ae o L TAES 808 ¢
cuons The raes ‘ltfrd werg nelvweean 938% ard 23.4 .5 42027 —bhetweesn 985 anc

‘zunns for geodwil allocated to
nge betwesn 0% and

‘Fe value 1 use ¢35

oraterm orovvih rates bayond the minal hudgeted cash liows, apg: sdar
h Of the CGUs or groeps of CGUs thot are significant o the total carmying anvours
Ccons stent with the infiatior factors mcluded in he doscount rales appned (2021 — hetw,

and o rect cests are hased o pasi es

lig ard expectatons of

Ciiznges in velurnes, selling oice

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions
Toarmenr PC‘\“O 1% dCDEH( ent G
ey, thie discount rat

cularly as they re‘a e T tha foracasting of
i Gls had | eadroom

NS

narip

(AN {

Of e mlm[ Iﬂl')( s i s ovoparates in, sre rscrocseron e chal lascr e o ra contnuecd
"'e\op nent of row prmeu ar'd a'w re mpdct of (_O\ ID-"9 Accordng’y, r L has agaem uncertaken an
nrparneri revieve, Detalad foracasis tor z 2 VEATS T e mw reqe or am:p\c:‘ o of the busir
~ere prepared and reanagement corcolodad that ll‘-e assets wele Not arpared Tha mooztate forecast morovamia:
d\'i\-‘éﬂ oT’f sucressiul pricing actions iniespanse to siee fleant g oeal input mflaton acro =nergy and freight

on to 2 number of cost reducton actiens, end centmued aroveth nthe glonal bakery mg-edisnis £ a5 Howeves he
~the discount rate sigrificantly reducss overal fmadroam. Headro S72mona COU rarmyimg vaiu
I eacroom of $232mnonea C (;L, rryirg value of S] D02 The gecaraphis dinersity ard verying ‘ccal eCoremic
Hents of A3 M,mm operalicna toeal that the orteal essumptions underly ra the dets led “oroecsss Lised e
Todel are vods-ran s tharefore 'mp alto pn;\ |d¢ meanngiul sensitvil @8 16 These essnmplons o E
rate Tha d scoue .t rae JS deas 16 (2021 = 13.15%) sncdwoou'd nave o norease t¢onore 1han 18 00612021 -
e CGU careying value, Esumates of long-tenn growth rates bayond the [oiceast neriods were 2-3°

el

DI VYES

veluz i

light of the supply side mflatenary pressares comhined ve th ihe cost of living crisis Jaced ny ou UK Grocery Dusingss
~zgement performed a detaied imparment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvts, ard corcluded no i irment was deam
cegsary. Key drivers of the forecas f

tmprovenent in performance incicoe ackievemant of price mereases 'nohigh ot
e~y ronments, strateqic nmieatives in ibe UK and US markets, im |w ‘ernentauon of a number of margn imorcvement irtiatives,
particalary nocosl reduclion, 2nd conservatye volume caslicony estimatiors. Headroom was £2‘3m nna CGU canying vaive of
£147 11 12027 = Peaaroon of £47men a CCU camyn g vaug at £163m) The dsoo ‘”t sle used w 2.0% aad would Fave to
increase 1o more than 13,59 bafere value in ure fof beow the CGU canying vat

LIF2.

T 2UEZ 187
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

9. Property, plant and equipment

Tet-d
B _ _ _ L H]

Cost
4112 Suplember 2020 2,743 4035 A011 JELE3E) 24 11,215
Acquisitions — extorazlly purchasen la) 5 Mg 204 10 539
Crher disposals 115} 40 &l - - 1G3)
Transiors rom asactls under constriuct on 10 126 77 12131 - -
Tra 16} 125 - - - 131)
FHect 1874 130h 11531 20 123 474
AT 18 Septam 7077 2707 4,003 1,019 500 £ 11,266
Acquisitions — exiernany gurchased 32 76 203 221 1 743
Acguited trrough Dusingss conbinations | 4 1 - - A
Other dizposals Y 13} 1 - () (28
Trananiers from assats under construclion Z3 164 an {293] - -
Transler toYfromn asseis classiied as held for sale 132) B3] 1 i87)
EHoct of movements in forewen exchange et 223 119 37 B 483

[\
[ee]
N
n
&
o
| -y
o
K
B
-
D <
(2]
<
o]
-t
[
o
" —
N
w
~J
Ca

At 17 September 2022

Depreciation and impairment

721 2 BE2 2,148 43 5,554

5 180 7593 - S 03k

24 112 3 - 129

3 (7 - (10
Orthear disp 17 1360 154 - - 149)
Transfe 104 12 i - - 21
Eifact of movanents i foreign exchange {21; [Es]8Y; 5% - - izGE
A1 18 September 2021 729 2627 5213 - 51 5,920
Denrecigtion for the year 47 174 790 - 0 521
frnpainmerst -~ - 72 - - 72
Imparrent on séle and closure of business 11 19 - - - 20
Oeoy disppuaels {1} - {17) () 122}
Transter oy Trom assets oassified as ~eld for sals {17 150} 12 - - 179}
Eifect of moverrenis i foreigr excharge 35 160 74 - 3 272

At 17 September 2022 834 3,120 2,760 - 80 6,774
Net book value

A112 Septeminer 2020 ) 2022 1,252 o%ee A 5,651
A1 18 Septerber 2021 i o g4E s 40 a1 b,2E6
At 17 September 2022 19 1.299 605 45 5,599

2022
,, e e e e e e e EM
Capital expenditurs commiiments — contractad but rot provided fan i 7 364

sclosed sbove, there are £18m {2021 — £10my of preperty, piant and equipment class.f.ed as assets

tihvs, £18m 2021 - £3mhis reehold iznd and buldings

o ada ten te the amouris o
he'dd for sale isee nate 18), OF
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Impairment

An impairment of ART50m I£98m) was ‘ecorded in 2012 1 the A Hr
maiagen.ent has concivded that tne carrying value of - \‘e Elt=ic

A5A6m on a CGU carny ng vatse of ASGOZmM 12021 - n
dowas 11.8% 12021 -8.5%1 Esumates o

use

anrom. A sensitraty of +/4 1% on the discount «

Tethe duL (“\/ L‘o s}
stnformation aval

WY \-:::.JCL,UV{-'\YJ.

nd equinment ar

The reome statemeTithis 'yea
A
"

property plar
store igasss.

Vie firet entereg t

opercd storesin many oty cen

Howey
Hrancial year, parnculsy
Cemany & a high coss IO sorve rmarket for reta) e
QE'HWE—"‘,’ at the fnancial year g

3

. sales dersitlas

SMEnts, TRE IMpanrMent n.

lor'g term arowth rates beyend
are

ject ors, 2ssLmiphions on op

ol e in the later y

oL 8 for i JH' MR

sen used o netermine

n'e in the circumstar

“c\ucie an excey
dawnt ‘}
na Qorman Migrketin

ag el a !etail se’hng
3 upto the 2019 ﬁ' :
Cermany, Past m:ifde itveny un' kely that sé'es
15, A5 A CoNsagLence
/52 AN IMPAITMert &
ane for years 2

rd requwss us to reces
ooels assum= that 8
the foresast perices

erating costs, margn and discount rates Tne discount rete usad s

lorg-terrt g .:m;tlw raie

wen of £ :3—,m \,f

SLrCEd

snsimes vwill dac
er arnum,

the fulire :;«,‘_Iw’r |

1S e s nbed for rparmiant

H~E ff\r Y

ses mputs hat are Lnobseryshble,
alls 'nto the Level 3 categary of far

3 detar'ed a5
rrpaired. H
e of ASZ92 ] .
Ve 2 O“/« ‘402 00 per

rventedeawns of £72m aos
~on of Primrark Germarry
vour early stor
oot of The Primerk =state

a nthe second half of Ihl:,
pre-COVID lave
our reveed store forecast for
1 hes bees treated as excepticnal in T
> 1 thesa castficws.
Key assumipt'ans were igvenus grovith

20

ear and,

siesw
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
10. Leases

Right-of-use assets

LAr e Tan r e e A Tosl

Cost "
At 12 September 2020 3,315 47 1 3.393
Addicons 97 18 i 115
e - - (1s)
(&) - - 16
Effees of movements in foregr awchargo 1571 21 - 15
A1 18 Septeimber 2027 3267 53 2 2326
tel it o - T ’ BT Y s D - 177
y {16) - - 6]
Ao Ugh Dusness combinations 8 - - 5
(hher gisposals i1} 03 i 2
Other movemsats 12 2 - 14
Effect of ingvemenis in toreigrn xcharus Q7 2 - 109

At 17 September 2022 i o o ) o 3502 ) % 1 3579

Depreciation and impairment

At 12 Septenther 2020 385 17 1 403
: B on for the year 279 17 - 7296

- 1 - M

N Tore-gn exchiangs 120 1 - 27

AUTE September 2021 G4 3 1 ST
tion ‘or it e yesr 263 13 - 281
Irapaireent 134 - - 124

Ciher disposals 1) 11 i1 13}
Citect of vioveiienls 1) {ueign excranee 33 i - 34

At 17 September 2022 1,073 50 - 1,123
Net book value
AL 12 Seprember 2020 7 )
ALLS September 2027 POV U - | SO
At 17 September 2022

Impairment
Tre nethedology used lo assess nght-of-use asses for impairmert is the same ss that descabes forimps rment assessmisnis
of gocdwe | See rote 8 for further details.

I the vear there was a £134m 12021 - £r1) impa.rnment of roht-of-use assets relsting o Pnmrark imcluded vainn
excephanal items),

Lease liabilities

tanzira vt Fior 1 Foresarat
U 14 U L L
Cost
AT12 Seoteminer 2020 3.620 35 - 3,850
Additons 21 18 1 110
Interest experse relaling 1o ease habilties 63 1 - g4
1354) g i1 {374
Qiber mrovemsaris 171 i - 10
=fiect of movements it lorean exchangs &7 (2 - &
AL 18 Senlemper 2027 3,262 G4 - 2,258
Addr ong 161 9 - 170
Interes? expenss relating 0 ‘sase habil tss 80 i - g1
rent of 'ease vabilites 1235} s - 15035}
A von of busiresses g - - S
e FICVErTSiS [ z - 13
Cfact of movermants in foreign exchiange 9y 1 - 95

At 17 September 2022 3,237 29 - 3,266
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_ease Lab

£82m 2021 — £E4ntintere

Other information relating to leases
The Groun hed tre folovarg »apense

The Groun expean

4 120271 = 22000 that do vot form pa 2ase b
Reiat recenis of £4m (2021 — £6m)

~rofit for the panod
Drrdends receiy
Efent of movenents in “oreign exchange

A1 18 Septentuer 2021

Acqms.nors T T e
Froda dne tine o Y

Cradends recened

Etfect of movernents in foreg
At I/ veptember 2022

Detaris of jont ventures and associeies are hsted in note 2

Irsluded 1 th e consaidsted finanoizt statements ate tre foliowing tems st represent the Group's share of the assets, haln i

ang picfit of 'ont ventes end associates:

Curre~t hablities
Non-currert b lites
Good

Mt assets

Revenue

Proftforthe ner o

hes conpnse £3,202m 12021 - £3,281m) capital pa"’b eand £14in 12021 - £1on ) irteres
nayab'e s ai \ cu fent ard discinsed within trade a

other navables. Bepayrnents comprse £221m

(a1

sed £l 12021 £ O" \"d."ablf* lease ps

NInE Rt e i et
2022 70
Em £
202 B0
641 111

(475) 12661

1

(87) 571
20 19
3 278

2,165 1,666

90 £6

Associated British Foods ple =0

ot f Lk [_ift ot the ‘eases natiity
3 e reet 12 morins.

e total of fuiurs miminam

Caahocutfiowves of

2o

iR

2
5
1

1y
i

el
fra
8

302

278

.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

12. Employee entitletnents

“he Group onerates a nunrber of cafined berefit and defired contrbuton relreme

Cthe UK and averse

refit schames expese the Group tc a vanetly of eclenal nsks meleding devograchic a
un u‘ oS CLd cuntize, nflaten risk and mrarket (nvestimant] risk, The Group s et ey

scheme- \[_,43 ifie risks Al scheames comply with local leqislatve recuirements.

cefired he

SAUMPLoNS such 35 mortay

dp‘/’

i
&d T

AN A as

3
Lriususl, ertity-sg

UK defined benefit scheme
e Grown's prncpal UK defined nemcm scheimre is U*e 45300 v 1 an Foods Pension Sclhente {thz 'Scheme, whien s a
funded final salary schemre that : tcr arrargener:s are Invlace for other emplovess.
Tne UY de- Med berefit schome ft_p w5 oand 869 12021
- 885 of detred beneft schemse habiltes. The & fent of the Groun and

v ol dygiees 3 schedu's of conttibbutions vatl the Conig

5 defired “Pr“ﬂf‘t scheire a
m,u bus :

CRTIE S GovET
r\\f r’)c 1 ’

ent Uit et od, ars

Centbess’ accrLes

n ot *Iw Sc. SIS WAS CATEU
>t value of the Sai ASSEts v
Cre

e salatyor

JTG5.

~hich nctu

STIVEN INVESTMENT PO ey
unrents to hodge

lop the level of hedgas
tis intended to Fedge

Q -COOlrG e inve
5 1o rmatch, wlere the orehile of the lat the use of ¢
est and forewar exchange nshs, Tre Sche Ut H ard s VELY
mplece. To daie, the Schame is fully nedged for 7440 of inf at:cm sergty 530 0t inle
05 of tolai enposure

i ATe,

it equity of 1 Conpany, athough itz posebie

k:.mty‘ furic

= Scherme ‘s forbdoen oy e trust desd from Beldrg direct
3t the Scheme may hold rdiect reorests tn.rough rveslments |

Overseas defined benefit schem es

Defined contribution schemes
e Group ztes a nuimber of r:ﬂ"ir' =
all g ZEZm 2021 = UK P20, cuvers

ey ne Uk ang £75m ove

107

Actuarial assumptions
sumptions for the Group's defived benelft sclheres &5 tha year ard we e

Tre prircing actuans

2022 2022 a0z
UK Overseas 1= Crowre
Y% % “
46  0.9-135 i SR
! 2.6-3.4 0-55.0 2.6-2.4 o124
EiaLe of Increage in saleres 3.7-4.3 0-40.0 37473 0-17 0
mate of ingrease Ior persions 0 paynent 1.9-3.2 0-40.0 7132 3120
Rete of rerease for pensions in deferment iwhere provided! 2528 023 2527 4-2.0

stvet yizlds at the palance sheet date or high-guality corpurate bonds consisigl
SCLUANES i 2aCh Jur 5o

Discount rates are determired by rcference tom
with the astirated terr of the obligations. This has keen done m carsunctior

AT Incenendant

The UK riation assumition mcludes assurmptor s on both the Fetad Proe Irdax and Corsamer Price nuex measu-es of inflation

un the Basis that the gap batweer the Twe Mg eClen 10 1emain stacle in the org tern

182 Associated British Foods ple At



The molety assUuMDions O

mipravenerts mning waiath th

These monaliny assumniion
schere membears. £

s
fAer

Tra gss. SMphiens are rey

For tha overseas schem

ety analy

Af'ation
e of real increase N R aries

Asansitivity o thae tate of -‘f‘ree='e 1

e rw "'Ld a1d
sl ¢iher

sahilities recog
have not chang

Schenme hab Iies
Agaregate ret s, wnh.a/trje‘lcn}
Urreceverable surplus

clet pension assetfilabiity)

Arabyeed 23
Schemes nsarplus
Schemcs in defiort

e FEQ

322micte

ot UK nelined benefit scherr
A medsl prepared t\a 1me Cr MU
-""F""U venie ts |

(2021 - 83 morgl- Tf tat
as ard femrales (2021 - O-‘«rsar rating moverert for males an !s—r'ne!
nt of expens-ce 1o date, nwd ER
ulning “fe emntcr‘;. = the U

S 1ahe acco.
xamgias of the

ﬂ rra'je far casr COnILLET
scherres -
ewed a3t updated as naecess
£s, ragiona ly acorcprate 238,

50N the prn

DENSISNS N Ldy

PR 20,1 —[\_“/H Tirclugs £25

2 wth the

rg rd i

&y as st of th

ot and p $

e LEthe soual of

ne method

UK

o fm
1,135
308
767
398
1,126
3,734
{2,390}
1,344

1,344

1,366
{22)
1,344

sUvE s iiLnTé

raloter equity
sof UKp

1ine valuatic

sions in de

V caculating the sersit
“as heen applied.

2027 a2
nens Mos
: 2013 piejeein
a), hoth vath a long

iy ; tnns for further o
ned ner

saumttions used to weasure UK deined benelit

derad fror the 52 mosial y tables witn

1§34

ity | [ywes

2022
Male
22.1
23.77

corence, Gine ;
ierca ard omner relevant data.

nepuors for mortaty, inancial ard cemogrephe

5
ned o be one

yoLrger/aider

2022
Overseas
£m

188
92
47
37
53

417

(405}

12
(42)
(30)

CW\ [‘.f

(219

Termant

salTe ns
s

IR =l

Total
£Em

400
814
435
1,179
4,151
(2,795}
1,356
(42}
1,314

1,393
{79)
1.3t4

tigeron of the UK gt
v th g Oyvear 1
m trend of 1 5% (2021 - 1.
roverenis in Lis
teties are as nllovs

. QL}G\J‘

Female

¢ facinrs have beer us

‘1,323

T RoYeITIEnt

e sapactaney of

o
e o fe
24.3 221 240
26.1 23.7 231
daminiiantin assLmptions for

ves a0 17 Sentember 2022 s,

IntAR ] natals|

[SX

oo CH‘C date sciams

e sensimivily aralysiz

ol

fin

aG 7,3400
S40 a4
81z a61
260 259
1.057 1,112
1315 1,728
(3,710 {4,209
5985 516




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

12. Employee entitlements contingad

Sor fimanc al reporting in the Groop's Tpancial siatenenis, 1aoiliss are assessed Dy artuaries soecied arit retirod

g e p

The acrounting velue is different frem the result obtanien csng the funding asis, ma rly due o dif 'erant assumplions used («

proect schente Jianites

The def ned beneft scheme Laby 542021 = 26%) in respect of asuve partoipents, 200 (2021 - 239%) for deferred
I r

paricparis ang 584 2027 - 51

The v

t scherne lizohues at the end of the yearis 15 vearss for boin Ul and overseas
3 s Emies).

income statement

Tro charge 1o theimcemiz ¢ 87es COMErnses

2022 inzl
£m orai
Cuirent sarvice roat {45) 1458)
Past service cost - i+
Cefined conrbution scrames {87) 1211
ating cost (132) 131}
VCCTL wer finane al I CameisIsnse).
MNet nier 51 NCeme o1 The net pens’on asset 10 -
Irw:er st charge on irrecoveralys eurpus (1) (1
Met mrpact on pro’it before tax i (123} 1132
Cash flow
Group cash Tovein Syes | orzpadio leided scremes of £3om {2021

ag of E2m 12021 — £2+1 Cenmibut’ons 1o funded defined tene! { schemes
“mbulicn schemes amoen e 1o £87m 2021 - £81m

i
3% and ben

B c,t T
re SLinact 1o penod m 2y e, (‘orm het'c

o

=

ctal contrbut ors Lo funded schemes and Denelit paymants by the Sroud n respect of unfundec schemes 0 2023 e
currently evpected 1o B2 approamately £29m n the UK and £10m 3, total ng £39im {2027 - UK £30i, overseas 210m,
wetailrg ££20m)

Other comprehensive income
Reneasurerrens of 198 noel pension assel recog nset 0 sther comprelens ve ncomes zre &5 foliows,

2022
£m
Return o SCreme assets ngiding O 2MeUnts meicdad in et intensst in e naoime statern ent {582} G611
Actuana ga-ns/fosses) ans g from changes in finaical assumptions 1,440 {1071}
sl gansflosses) ans ng frorm charges in demngraphic assumpunis 11 i)
Exnernience ( 131713 on scheme gbines (38) 12
Change In unfecogrisea su plus {10) 1121
Femaasurements of the net pension asset ] ) 821 557
Reconciliation of change in assets and liabilities
2022 _u 2022 2021 2022 2021
assets S58610 fiabilities Nra LS net =1
B £fm £ £m fre - Em A
Atbeginmng of year T T T T Ta3728 0T 452 (42090 32061 Big 5y
Curnient servige cost - - (45} 146) (45]) (161
Emmoy@e contnbotions 8 (8) 171 - -
er contributions 36 - - 36 39
{ payments (154) 156 182 2 3
- R _ ] x

35T SenVCe L0

- - {582) B

=] ety p ~1

bangEs T

20 g fram
- 1,440 00 1,440 1)
T CELhoes 1 UEIQerenh o
— - 11 L4 11 [
- {38) 172 {38) 12
31 {28) 25 3
4,151 {2,795) 1200 1,356 o

[AsIuts]
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Reconciliation of change in irrecoverable surplus

2022
e _ - Em
MECinrng of year . T ) ) i {26} (13
Crangs recoomsed In Gther cemprehensive noome (10) (12}
Imterost charge o netoveisole surphus (1) i
Effect of atcvenenis m ‘ore gn exchanes (5} -
tendof vear ) ) (42) 1261

13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

At 12 seniber 2020 12}
Ay ount © r'—d tr'd to The mce e staterent {4
An _ Ti9
A oMbl *al ons - 5 - - - - 3
29 $ 1€ i - 5 14 17
_ . _ 39 - 34
. - - - - - - 2
TUVEMENS T ioreign gact 1 131 5 1 a - o
rterner 2021 137 50 107 175 12 1841 134 145
crented 0 il e ncorme statamart 34 {5) 27 1 - 13 8 78
' - - - 154 28 2 - 184
ombinat ons - 22 - - - 2 - 24
DA e

2 - - - - - - 2
S lax rales on ety - - - 44 - - - 44

ATIONANy FEARNTIRSS Taken
10 L,pun-lg or om 3 - - - - - - 3
Transfor o ete/liabl Tes weln for sale 5 - _ - - _ - 5
Efiect of movements n foreqs exc > 6 10 (4} - - {(8) 4
At 17 September 2022 o187 w7 (78) . 324 40 {75)  (2B) 489
e tenparary diff isions of £93Im 12021 - £33N, biclogicsl aseets of 2212021 - 728m1,

C1eim 2021 - £015im] ar 1d rary ¢ Horences of £200(2021 — £15imi.

s of the doferrad tax

et the tat'e above, Toe felovangais the ana

" cd Iax @5“'15 and Mah .m h ve beer o

(5N
1ed 1ox asses
rrietd tax absuties
ivaddnen o the amounts dsclased above, there are £8m 12021 - £) 4

23 of £248m 12021 —FS]Um, o
Q 21 - LT /0m ) vail &40 e &7 varous daies %‘dupm 20[’ "!wd 40“ (2021 = 2021 ard 20286), &

cen recogniaed in msspect of oiter termpcrary cifferencas of £516112021 ~ £10700 Thig ncludas
"'uoerlyj ola~Tana eguie 1 ont and leases in Ge cere derecognsed dun-g the \,ear a5 @i
cherge (see notes 9 ¢ Wd for furtner retads! vonot heen recognised on t

ZLOnar T EFTG'TI
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

14. Trade and other receivables

2022
- . JEmo
Non-current — other receivables ) -
Loars and recervables 29 3z
Other non-current nvesiments 29 23
58 55

Current — trade and other receivables i
Trade recavabies

Gtrerrece vabies 7
Acorlsn neome 16
1215
Prevayre s ard otrer non-firancal receralbies 152
P
367
radd asn o t e an OLTiS BiSCinsed anove, trere are 22021 — ot trade and otner rece vab fGr

The cirectors cens der 1iat the carmying amolnt of recevalzies apprex males

wote 76.

For detalls of creat tek exposurs on trade arvd o7 rgceivalies,

5, th £25 i nen-current saars
1l recaivables and £hmon current Gther
andl Tve years ang £9 0 moie
aree thes fve years),

£32m) i respect nf finance tease rece:
les WOM - L)cm N NCN-Cuirent 1oar

E L E16m hotween ©
asanc ' lhimn T

and |ece~ivc les :_wd E in CUIFEHI o Iwcr rec
recopables! Yinmum gase ;.'a‘y"unntv rece vat;
h we vears (2021 - fdmewith oy one

Wan T

e of the Croup lsee ~ote 281

arce ‘gage recevables rolnte to popsrty, 0'arT 30d equipmisnt 'sased [0 2 0Ly

15. Assets and liabilities c!assiﬁed as held for sale
~a 3uQar hesimeg
sets a-d hablites relats:

sulyect to conpst

v a Chirese yeast b

The G
requirements 'uTFe a

oaClire AOH tventara,
2022 021
Em o _fm
Assets classified as held for sale i
run'e assets 12
ronerty, plant erd coupment 18 10
e nion s 7 3
Tawating 5 -
Trade and oither receivanles 3 -
45 13
Liabilities classified as held for sale
Trade and other psyab'es (14} -
{14) -
S B ICH
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16. Inventories

Fave mraterale and consumables
Vverk in progress
Firis-ed goods grd goocs held for resdle

DN OF Inveriones

7 addition 1o the amounts disclesad above,

e note 16

17. Biclogical assets

- 2020

G nVGTICTY

Changes in fair value

2118 Septentuer 2021

Other disposals

Cranges in

gir valus
E“feit of moverrents o toiegn exchangs

At 17 September 2022

Growing cane
Thz iz 1 value
urmsiances for valu ng the groa

.. .. Zambia_
16,163
115.9

65.7%

Malawi
18,207

103.7
67.4%

South Africa

B,028

Expected area to harvest (hectares) .

Estimated yield (tonnes cane/hectare) 67.9

47.6%

Tha Tollowing assumptong we e Le
E 10 harvest {hectaraest
cenmated vield Gonnes ceng/roctzie)

Auvsisae matuny of growirg cane

=DECIRd are

A 155 change in Whe urobsenvesie inputs could incresse or decrease t

2022

+1%
£
1.2
a4

Associated British Foods ple &+

ations were Lsed nothe oslern: ABTH L orraGe a7 17 Septernber 2022,

Eswatini

8419

295
67.7%

-1%
. Em
(1.2)

2022
607
70
2,682
3,259

11y

=0 as 4582t held for sale

3

1/

of growing care s aglermened usirg cputs that are unobservan o, ua g tre bast mfonrnglion aval abe 1N ine
alls Mo ire Level 3 catecory of fan vae measurevent. The foliow,

113 {126}
5 -
(1 1
0 32
i g
. .8 195
[N
Tanzania Mozambique

9,612
72.6
46.2%

namied fucrose tonnage ¢ 18 Seplemibar 2021

5,802
71.0
72.4%




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Cash at pav< and in hand
Cash equiva

Bank OvEn

Cash and casn equai'ents on the fate of the balence shaet

Cash at bark a-din ~and generally earns trocest gt rates baseo on the &

19. Loans and overdrafts

Current loans and overdrafts

=ra and Guerdratts

Non-current lpans
Secared Gans
Unsecured loars

arate
s ard overdrafts
» Born overdrgits

CBP fixed rate
= USD flesurg
« USD finen rate
= EUR faating :ate
= Other floating rate
= Other ixed ate

Secured loe

sibs danes,

188  Associated British Foods plc ~i 1.2 Rengri 2022

s anprox mates fan value,

ph-cable dany Lars deposirae,

26

2022

 Em

674
1,447

2321

(126}
1,995

2,121
2,121

cd o moarey marsets for percds of Jp to three months weeich een

2022
£fm

126
380

]

oy

co oo

=]

Imersst at a

|3 o7]

Oy 1 =4 w1 =) L)



20. Trade and other payables

Deferten rcoma and other ror-linancia

Inaddtion to the arroumes d sclosed dbhove there are £74m trade ard other payebies 2021 —

e (=ea note 151

For pavablss weth a remaining life ¢

ErgenTents i &
0| thad party cank

Bagmall turmber of Dusinesses
supplie’s sole disoretion, 10 sc
cetter fhErcng rales than the

lf]

cceses no oenehit from

a £ 17rd party bank as alan 1o
are h ©nch .r.ui comhin trade pay 5 and assoC 2ted cash floves are ncluded
cart of the Group's narmal operateg oycie

Lhder suppiy chain firancing anangs

[RYRRA)
£ M
I —— . o T . I
31 11 31
1) @ (22)
13 - 1221

- L2

Re
Ei fE( t uf moverrents e foregn eachange
At 17 SEPTEJ!‘D,‘%E?Q?% e R . S L ™20 s 113

19 15 22 37
G 4l 13 26
55 20 38 - na3

Curent
Mon-currsrt

Finarca! liabilities within orovisiors compraas

Restructuring
P.est;uctur |‘q ;_wov siens neude bus.nes
renrgarisation plans. These restuciuning p ire langely ex d o b2 viiised in the next “nancial year.

readundancy, associated mth the Growp's announcen

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideranion comprises
are oblen iinked to perforrrance or olther co

s of amosnis cue o the previoss oweers of busnesses acquired by the Group whien

iIrmeie

OO0 S,

WIS E00 A aITENTy ©aIms ans rg Trom 1me sale and o
s nore Jncertan aiven the nature of tne cla'ms znd the penod of ¢

LGNS MEnly contprse Lganon o

dosuie of busiresses The enter:
I sation of these provsic ‘b

veArrant es

T
I
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

22. Share capital and reserves

Share capital
A1 18 Seo*erul ar 2021 800 17 Sopre r 2027, he Corcpany's issued anc fu y paio share capial comensed 797
snares of 7. p, each carry'™ng one vote per share. Total norminal value vwas £.16m.

674,183 ororary

Other reserves

£172n of other «eserves grese from the carcellatan of sharg prem uns account by the Comrpzny in 1993, £2m arcee n 2010 a5 a
rarsfzr o cgpral re phion resane folowng reden pton of two muil on £1 deferred shares at par. e remainirg £3m conrprises
a 247 unres 1 on o nvestments beid a1 fair value throlagn ether comorehars ve incorte, net of £11 ceferrad tax. All are

;1

58 NeN-a srdiaie.

[

swegn exchange differerces arsrg hom ibe trans
tat hedge the Group's net ivasts Ha‘;n‘ e

.

Translalive reserve
T

ransialion reserve comrpases ali
‘o, as well as from e translanicn of dabd 0o

Hedging reserve
“he hede

rve Compnses all cianges

frone the nedoirg reserve ©

ged trarsaction s no long

23. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions
2022

and fanmuolat
s wortfons of

n Frarce and sy prod
tonw Iessantthe G

tors.

neEnls oLETY

s tn ey ry e ;2|‘£H1"r‘.u3u.u,f1|, nutrineazl and 1oo

nor coiTibies o AB Aan's

i Fir'scdand a
=5,

S mnd Lhe fuleweing olfec onthe Groap's assots z

VI LSS T A0LLIRID o

MNet assets
mtangible assers - h4 27 7 88
; nant ard eqguipmert and nght-of-use asseis 14 1 ] 12 14
.-‘\JCFKI g capitel 17 3 1 11 2h
Cash arg averdrafrs 10 5] 1 3 10
Leans 1231 {11 12 i) 123]
Lease l'abilt'es 18) - & 1e)
Provisians 17 1] - 17]
Tawauon 181 114 13 12) 124y
MNet wentifable s 10 32 29 1 Fis)
51 12 12 &5
a3 4 26 160
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Cash nons
Cash am‘

tanlg bles

ty and

ion apart from £8
1o im nry, 8 £16m
25500 ates
18 deration elating tn orevio

er i'el

Y < ‘.‘d :vsic-
Veon &c won cf sub

On Ess r_1C'| AES and overgralis acqu'e

Hoostion tu an eastng jemt vertunz i Cnina

ANt veErtures
o detarre

|5 AC e £am

2021

'rithe prior penod, the Grown's
considéeration for this transaction v
gogueed rolldad non-cn angihle assets of £14G

25 producer,
daferrad consideration
ciy (deferred

; Jred DR Heﬁf‘h';are Es
as U dm, oo w' rg £1720 cash consdararon
VIRICD Ve G recu;msed with ez red

=ois oirtveniure  Crera vedn W dbar inrerrationa, and pad f7mo

ontnbuted £330 1o the bakery rgredn
uderan-:-m Ch acqLisihons rade n peos yesrs.

Disposals

2022

Tre nroposed sale o1 &
year £rdl e net goirg akean. The

LN a IR TA

al e =i2)
ure of hasimess

LoantoeEry W e ot venie nar irternat are o Cihra icla
£1011 ror cash Tparrent revarsed 1 2021 dweugh srefiiic

staterd ata costof £11m,

3 ovnde-dann

nonortn Chira Sogar is ¢assied as held-far-sale at year ern and an Assotieted £197% nom-

Ik
10 'oss on sale and C'osure of bus ness.

The: Croun glso released £2m of closiire provisions o~ Yivergo 1t the UK aro £4rmm of werrg iy provisicns 1w longer reqguired for a
! e husiness e the Un'ed Siates

2021

Tre Grous sond a num ber of Chingse yeast and Da<ary ING edients ndsinesses nto a new Chn oint verture vith Winar
internatona . Gross case corsidaralion was £39m with £ir of cash disposed w it the businesses The joint iture si30 assu
ng n et grogeeds of £450. Met assets disposed were £33m wailh provisions of £6-1 for associatad

W

£17m of ceby, res

o
resUsiLINg cosis ano a £&m gan on 1 e recyeling of foreign exchanue differences The gain on aisposa: was £6r
The Group cg.ced Lhe sale of a factary n Chira to the same jort venidre, Sb;_J_\.L to recuiatory acproval. These = Tuly
wtten down in 2019 when she proposed jont venture with Wimar was frst announced, A nop-casn reversai of irmpanment of

£ 0™ was noluded 1~ 0ot on sale and c'osure of ouseess, This was vaP'Fde 1 2022 isee sbovel

Closure provisiors of £3m re'ating to dis !
ciosure of business 'n ingren ents ard Giocery, botn in Asia Pacilic. Pronerty provisions of 1 be'd in previous years were =150 no
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rrsguired ard weers released o the Cennral and UK seoments
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

24, Share-based payments

The ernuat cha inthe iroams st ;:I'\;,-'e—:yesed IS \,M“rns &,(I 279 2021 - £17m) The
Group bed the o ‘owing princiosal ch;:t\'—se_‘ui Cl‘é.e-baserﬁ paynert pla

Tre 2016 _T'P was approves ano ade t@'i hy the Campany at the AGK held on 9 Decembior al
al.ocatcris of shares which arg re}eased if, end o the extent that, perormance 131go

vestrg perod

Associated British Foods 2016 Short-term incentive Plan (‘the 2016 STIP'}
icpted by the Besid on 2 Novemner 2016, it tavcs the ors
ar vesting ner od 1, and to the exter: thal, peiforarcs targets are saus l'-ej over a

arm o of cond tornal silos s of shares

Fuit o mfcrnration regarding ~he cperaton of the 2bova plans can be founa o 10 153,

cordticnal g

To Sronn’s ega tv-sattled shis

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust
5 suiect 1o a'locaton under the Growy's \.qL dy-seiled s
rsm.) P\ T!’L‘ST thuu"i by the Cm*m

shara-hazed payiicen: plans are held .noa separete Employee Shar
atracied 10 shares aeld by the Trut 2 cearmEable by ths wru,sme‘
ttes o Ttire Commany, AT 17 S wor 2022 the Trost neld

‘ - EXe crd veas T30m 202
ares acd o puichase of

7\3 23]
T) [o4]

ordinzy al G
5 rgl‘t 1o

—n\l

Fair values
The weignte ae Tarvalue
nung for the iz

s allocaics du'u

- 2,0270), H ¢ I»’IDE:PG vield Lzed veas 2570120

10 the vast
57

Sarand th
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25. Analysis of net debt

Snort-term leans

Leng-term foans

Lagse Fabilues

lites frem finane ro aonviues

Cren e 1-1r.k and i rand, cash ennvalents s
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Long-termn et
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.

i1
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uve'yr conpnse t

Current assat invest =
‘Rree mon

cOmEnise term depo

A i nErcing Actlv Ties,
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LT mr-t‘rh oF LH 11, [‘J\,«'T]E"IS of £118m,

£t
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments

PESC-E INSTTUents nelyde F3m f?U“l — Eril of trezoo and oloer recoveiles 2

o

(dd\ fmmov 5 made,

a) Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash a~d czsh 2gitive ents

Currant asset mvestrren;

Trade ard cther receivades

D

ke mon-current recalyehlos

At fair value through other comprehensive income

[rvestments

At fair value through profit or loss

Derivative assets not designated -0 a cash fiowe hadaing elat.ershig
s currency aervat ves lexclyd. g cross-curenoy swaps)

v corrmedity dervatives

Designated cash flow hedging relationships

Dernvative assats desygnaled ang effsctive as cash flow Pedaing instroments.
« currency denvatives ‘excluding cross-currency Swanst

* CIOSE-CUITONGY SWaRs

= Commoc ty dervative

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trede ard oer payales
Securad inans
U ra overdraits fair valus 20220 £577a 2021 - 2117 m)

1
Leaae 1 es Fal vaiue 20227 - 13 A7% 2021 - £3,223m)
Delfarred considarator
At fair value through profit or loss
Derlvatve "shithes nat jes agriziad in a cash tlow heogg relzucnship
NG CrOSS-CUIMTRENCY SYUETS)

Lo mu ty dc—l vat'ves
Designated net investment hedging relationships

Dervativy iz £5 (i
. CIOSS-CLITERCY SWaps

Designated cash flow hedging relationships

Derwvative habilites des grated and effective as cash flow hedgimg mstrumrents:

ignated as net mvestment hadgrg instruments.

= currency derwvatives lexcl udirg cross-c

rency swapsi
» terest detval ves

= contmadity denvatives

Total financial IEBbIIItIES

Net financiai iiabilities

ptwhere stated, carrying 2mou 1718 ‘(]L. al o *air valy

204 Associated British Foods ple 2 L3 Reposs 2002

2022 A
fm o
2,121 2275
4 32
1,567 1,415
29 32

29 23

50 3]

3

70 z27

29 A
323 49
4,225 3701
(2,651) 11,935
{1) 1)
{636) A05]
(3,252} 13,757}
(20} 014}
(5) BN

(3} -

{7) 121
{17} i5)
(3) -
{170) e
{6,765) 15670
{2580 11,959



Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value
F"uaw'm'—. instiunnent

JUMSILITEr s Laimg A Tar value Rercrch
_ud emicris on the imputs used N mar

ErieatvaER ardd nvestrrents Tr
s.gnficaree of both oo sctve o

£8 1EEe

subective

an od al fair valus on ne ha'arc
iy that
g e far value measurem

o

« Level 1. financiel mstruments are value d 1519 (,-bQE‘FumJ
for wvcuca‘ Mstrumeants An examipie o’ enlem intris o
rarket price.

Level 2, fimarcel ngreme:
rates) or indirect’y U oe. defived
witere fonvard exchange -a
= Leve! 3 financal nistrume

s that ref ect Lradjusted oucted varket gnices in én act ve market
s awidely radea equity mstriiment wih a normal cuoted

BIKEL I C
¥ 13 @ currency devative,
1o cerve fair value

TG METKel prices r-'wd ratesl An e
and yeld corve data which arg ob
s are vaued USing tecn™ cues Dvaiing Sig

e N the

b} Derivatives

Al decwvatives are classificn as curra: : ol Alalyses he E“”FI'\«‘HG amount of

o sandt otalinoT moLnts, toget vith an anelysis of de ves by the level intbe far valug Migrarchy
cowhizhy their far ve i

vat

2022 20021
Contractual/ : '

notional

amounts Level 1 Level 2 Total (RPN Lo
S e L _Em_ Em_ fm  fm
Financial assets S
Cumrenay denvatives
2 5o udhing cross-cutiercy swaps) 2,193 - 120 120 1.360 - 31 a1
Crong-cLireny s~aps 94 - 29 29 228 - 44 2
Commrod ty aervatives 439 3 323 326 188 4 40 9

41 - Lz
2,726 3 472 475 1,776 ¥ 120 1443
Financial liabilities

Cunengy denvatives
fgvelud ©g Cross clreney sy aps! 921 - {22) {22) T0Z - 6]

L 0es (urrewcy S 68 - {7) {7} 146 - 12

400 - {3) (3} - - -

366 - (173} ({i73) 66 (1) qasi {18
oSS - M205) 0 (205) 0 Tded b ad e
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 Septemher 2022

26. Financial instruments cordinued

c) Cash flow hedging reserve

shawdrg table dectifies the niovemesnts in the cash flow Redging -eserve dunr 8 yRar, t & .
> arg expected to ccour. The Leriods nowlich the cash fows are epected to anmpact profit or loss are matenally the sz

Q hE yaarn, and e Dendads inon

150, £bOm

2022
Currency
derivatives
[excluding Cross-
Cross-  CUrrency Interest Commodity
currency] swaps derivatives derivatives Total
fm fm - fm £m £m - Y . ™M
Oper ~g balz {14} m - (28} {43} G i . 7 7
{295} (20) 3 {234) {546) 3 G - 155) 361
nelssed In the nec e
SAtamart
. g 5 - - {(4) 1 2 - - b il
LY - - - 105 105 - - - 2 9
. ensef
- 21 - - 21 - 1168 - - el
Amaant removed from
ng resetve and
258 - - 22 280 127 - W2 1251
5 - {1) 24 28 &l - 3 T4
(41) - - (115} (154) [ i - 126
e itk A Sia o nonths {386) - 2 {105} (139) i) - - 251 2.1
. A NTontns
Wd o e\;L {B) - - {10} (16) (4 - 12 1651
. veen one and a0
i - - - 1 W N - - i 12}
. 1o and fue
- - - - - - (i - - {14
o o e - PR & 1) N .10 O A R O <1
Of thg clesing kalance of £0154m, £01541In = attibuabieo equw sharehclders and £t
2021 - £143m, £442im atlibutable to eswity sharehelders and £n1d 1o nion-cenrolling mter in the
ol

yaar of £ 1T, £011 1008 st butaire 1o eauity sharehclders ard £nu 1o non-contcli
airbutable to ecuity rehonders and £ril 1o ron-cerie!hing interssts).

Ihe halance rerraining o the commaodity cash flow cedas resarve from hedoirg relations~ns o0 voench bedoe accountng 5 no
\c—r*ger sopkedis £1m 12021 - £(1imy

nher 202

Tre baance in the cos: of hedgng reserve was not sign’icant et 13 Sey

d} Financial risk identification and management

Tie Groun s expoasd to ik e ‘ollowing firancial rews from the vas of finaroizl reumants:

‘ﬂablﬂ the aarly denuf
5 and systenis Fave been estak

ities, The Groun, Proegh 43 stardaras end ¢

1 alemiployess ndersterd the v raes acd

Y fe Groun's fMancia riek managemeant protess seel gt
of key st s facing the busiress R managemern: ;'01
i -ﬂa'kpt Longitiors ane the '

ve conrcl nvirenmrent inwh

weri reqn der|,' 1
res, ainTs 10 deve o
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gothy defmed srairewark of Boaid gpproved

Ury WLk Clesely voth the Group's

ndutied vathee 2 ¢

Treasury »ctv s and coneroaty procuwremesnt ang ‘r-edr;u“ ara o
pohices and quidennas e manage the Graup's finanas! and cornncodity risks, Creap Treas
pro" LIamen tears 1o menage commicd.dy nsks, Croup Tregsury policy sesks to ensuie that as w2 finanacial rascurces are
svelan'e at all tmizs for the nanagemsa rﬂ‘@nt of the Group's Busingsses, w |ve W rnanag ng iis mar<el sk
and *rsd\t nek. Tne Group's risk marag xphoitly fordids the use of financ’al of cemimocity dervalives louiside s nes
mearagemnent framenark of mritia Omn‘cd ty 118a3) Tor speculative purnoses.

e} Foreign currency translation
The Group preseinis st r-c\al statements n ster A5 aiesut of dsvorldade operatnians, the Gro r
CUTTENCY ranslizuon vz overseas operatoers have a turctional currency other than stert rg. Chang
exchange "ates pact rarslation mro stoling of ot the ncome statement and net assets of the

)

b

Sy

The Groun fingreas 18 op@aticns dairg own furds o gled in the furc sy of 1ts oparauons and wh
horrowirg ocaily intirc come fo ‘*Iu\\,ﬂa currency, This reduces gl 85501 vaues r:putﬂi i furctonal carrencies ciber than
srerhing, thereby reducing tre scorcn © exposura 10 fluctugtions in foreian currercy excnange -ees en trans

e

trnances #s operations by aba fng st Group leve. throd qh exte ney &1o NOTIn
: @r'rowu‘\gs may e designated - heLJc_‘e: Th on n
TS grocL n“cy borowngs to be charged o SN eosty against the

oo irarslaiion of the =et ass up had ve norawings (2027

~ated as hodges of s net imvesure -L in foreig DDR‘M

I nedge 15 fined rutn nor sielerg dabt These
of the hesg rg rsrument, 1o the degres
wrer : ite cross-curr 2GS 15 exc'udt .j fmn“‘le‘@d
12CCgrised -0 OiNEr COMPIRRENS Ve MCHiNe — LOST Of ing. Tne : ol the currency Lagis s
e s ng the byeothet'cal denvative approach Tre hypotietcal denvative 8 hased on ihe « '
yor Lo credht tisk, Cradit rsh s menitaore Llariy ardi

d CrOSS-CLITE
bedges end r.et VeSS redaas, ruc
wve reeme Urner iFRS 9,

I |y retfectiveress that might arise is in: RN
orr the hecye relatonshin

Tre 3701 vy heeae the 5 a9 1a1s moveTents G 18 monrv e elaEmert {aiber
han vz the petal econcim o hedge aris.rg froms the servior o costs i nor- sTrr‘ ng borovargel
g 2 G 4

{tmr\ ol anter Yy
esignge velst iy ansing v thim the borrowing o
S Ve INCOTe

2GS S duaddire

rehen

023 —£nilf an rat
St equity sharehold

TGRS 0 2Urgs, Ww

was atnk ut l le ‘ro equ ly shargrulders (2027 - £1.0r b

non of these vars ba
The Group alse 7e'd cross cunteney swaps t
=1 farr valw of £1m has been debited to g tr’amslatw(_’-n reserve, 3ot whch

o credited e ta el

e on consohdation,

slation r

f) Market risk

Market =¥ .5 the sk of movetieris nthe far value of future cash 7 '
Lndernying maikel prees cnar Gr(v.;} 15 e lo Ghidngaes in 1“.9 mEraet pmr & d corrredles, nterestra

exchangs rates. These nisks are l'r* Wl as iransact on’ or tecognised exposul

o forec

and forgign
o ‘econcnic’ o Tnrecastl aronosures.

ﬂ}

(i) Commodity price risk
Corrv.adity price nsk anses from the procursment of rave malerals and the canseguent g» sosus 1o changas 1 mert et prices

The Groun purchases a wiae range of commaaities 01 the ordinary course of pusiress Exposurs tc charges in the marat price of
certain of these commrodities ine uding suga raws, eneray, wheat, edibie oils, soya beers, teg, lean hog, cocca and nee s
marages through © ionward ')‘*v cal contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and opliors proianty 1o
corvert Hoating [:'v es Tre Lse of such coniracts o “edge commadily &xposures «$ goverred by the Group's risk
Mmanags ment pohr\es ard Is cont yovoriored by Group Treesury, Comedity dervatives a'so orovde @ way 0 meel
custemers pricng regurements whelst schieving a pnce struciure corsistent with the Crowp's overa'l pne ng sraiegy

i

W

61

=]
(N

“
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

g enterad inte, and cortinus

26. Financial instruments roninted

Sacire of the Group's convrod y Torveard contracts e classiy ed as 'owrn use’ contracts, since v
o be his ¢ for ithe perposes of tie Group's ordinary cperat cris, ' ts mistance the Group s \, k al delivery of the cormmodiny
corcerned. Own LER CoONL3Cts do Not recy 18 40000t ntl the comradiny p .:r:% nace actt. he cryzialises, Vvhare
possIne, other commadity derivatives are accourted *iow necs / ‘de th a ere—tovure hedge rato), but there are
e :‘on“r“md‘w c'r:-lva‘-.‘wa:, ‘c-( : : tbe catishied Such commodity
mcemng exposure, These

aeclass Illt' as he!d fo: Uom

e Group's

(i) Interest rate risk
Irterest rate NSk COMIPRSES Levd RIIMGTY Cioments

g from fnancia instrumants ez rng xad nterastrates Ch

st poce rsk resalt

vawe of these finanoig \r\sm ne ane i

= irlerest cast f'ovy nsk o resy 1 h"-frrn
DOV O nterast recevan's or pavable.

rates ai

The Group's po'icy 5 10 Marage 4s miv of “ived and £ 3 50 trat a sgrt canichange ninterast

13125 Joes 7ot have a matenal regauve imnact on .h
2022, f.q.j-w (767 12027 - £ mand 7501 of ol dent was subgect
it} m.d F\m“ g raie delby gnmpmfes cther bank borrcw.ngs heanng il efest retes
rret rate for tha currancy and locatian of the oorrowveng

4

tof Cthe maorty of

or \':‘r.rJu Hme penods

ALUVT Septericer
kit s the 2034 by
up o 12 maonths, by

=

rvesiments ae suizject o fleslr g rate

The Group's
rate for the rurrercy 0° 1

peErLes up

£3A00m of 12-mrotn stel'ing » terest rate svwaLs Hove Reen enteren inio 50 that the fusu |; rierast
e ances of 1he Group’s ¢ash and gt s Tved for e 12-morik pernd 1o Asgust 20232

{iii) Foreign currency risk

Tre Group conduots DUSINSSS vl
forgion cuirency exchares rates wieh alfec the eruv s frarsaciicn costs. The Groug &=
sierhng and is inersicre exposea o Tovements i fore.gn exchange rates on the trans’ n‘[
ews of its fore an oparatons nio sterl rg.

Tz ewposed [0 MICVENISHLEG 1IN
58 hinanaal statereris in

underly ng net

lepeorde snd conseguetly -

ra

frans'atorn nskis aiscussed in section 8) o0 pege 207,

Transaction risk

Currancy ransact or exnos e oLc. s wwhere a Dusingss ma<es sales and = s furctonal
curercy mcnetary sssets and natulites of a8 business ere o B cl ur‘:al CUTrercy, ana
where avic urplus furds ase reimitted Srom oversaas The Croup ates uen EXDOSUTES Wiheleve!

. b\/ us rg "O.r\’-.‘ﬁ!d g

5
i comimitments as s0on as an cuirency cantiacis,

nossih'e, &

The Group uses der

crvare o eign cufrency contracts ard Hime optens] (o hedge s expogure 10 movenorts
|

vaiie iy

cy lrade receivables and payab'es The Group Joes not seek foims

0 exchﬂﬂge rates 11 CLT
( U cr Fedges. nstead, such denvatives are ciass 2'r for treding end narked 10 mal‘v. cl through
cifsets the meome stztement impact of the retrans: Et on of e foreign cunency rade receivab’es

The Group Copatly ees forveard f’re'r‘n C‘I""*‘
nronatle fr\ seast foreion corren
proporion of nichly .J|C‘b_,._,
with each hus'ress by relsr
CatrIenoy dcma*.\'es Lsed o Iw

sl wu‘e LBILE
gt
transecunns as cash flove e
“orvaard pointa and carrency basis ¢

: : : > ﬂmcw‘r“
ratn, To the ext

e gt g

cent 18 des

wal

LY Leiis !l
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Tre Granp’s most s grofleant currency trancaction exposurss are,

of Primmark — costs are denion in 3 namber of curercies, predom nanty sterling. ewrns and US dollars
s 0 Brnsh Sugar o movaments in ibe sterl ng/eura (*xchar:ge rate

sweshiere, a number of businesses imake sales and curchiase a vanaly of raw mater
0 eurosh giving rise to transaclicon exposaras. noall cther mgienat res

3.

rpe atz in the rm

CONSCh

The table Leiows 'usirates (he effects of hedoe accounurg or the ©
statamiert by disciosing separzte'y by r'ek category, and sach wpe
=nd hedged ite

2022
Change in fair Chunge in fair
Carrying value of hedging value of hedged
amount  Furthest instrument vsed to item used to
Contract assets/  maturity Hedge determine hedge  determina hedge
national (kabilities) date ratie ineffectiveness effectiveness
Current
Lesenaten cash Hove hedomeg retanionships:
= crency denvatives esellding cross-cuirency
Swaps) 2,102 54 Sep23 100% 54 {54)
+ cotnrmodily denvalives 739 152 Aug23 100% 152 {152)
*nlerest rate swan 400 (3) Aug23 100% {3) 3
Non-current
Nesonaied cach flow hoedy ~a relatorahips:
 SLTERCY cerivatves dayolnd ng oioos cLiroroy
Ly, 8] 32 {1} Sep24 100% {1} 1
¢ CrosSs-cUrr Sy dIS 94 289 Mar24 100% 14 (14}
. Corﬂn’!cdl. darnval es 20 1 Jan24 100% 1 (1)
Dasignatec rer rvestrient hedgrg relatiznshps:
* carency Cefivatives IGTOSs-CuIrercy swaps! 68 (7} Mar24 100% ) 7 ) (3} 3

Current o T
Designated cash fow bengg relznor ~I‘|m
= currency denvalves lexcluding cioss-currarcy

sviaps) 1367 16 Sep?2?  100% 186 e
¢ LTOSS-CUNENCY SWaRS 1650 28 War 2?2 100%% [RRA 11
+ corrmodity deiivatives ciste 3 ALy 22 10050 34 134}
Des.gnated net inve DS,
s currenoy denvatives | 129 151 1604 10 {10)
MNon-current
Designated cash fowvw b refiss:
* CUTTENCY CEIVATIVES 12 5S-CLITENCY

=Tl 34 1 1 {11
. 78 13 ig) 3

57 o ka2s 108 &) )

Associated British Foods ple -~ uc



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments corntinuad
‘o The econonae re'atipnsh

Vg relalimnshiges are typ cally bezad on o cne-ic-ore b2

:twveen 1he hedged dem and the

redging nstrumiznt s analysed on ar ongomng basis, Sources of poss e meifectiveness n anges i {o eeast lrangactons
a5 @ rasult of UMing Cr vaiue or, 0 certan cages, different indices 2d 1o the hedged lema Ly INEtrument As at 17
Sepreniber 2022, £2.134m of {eward foreign currancy coniracts aesignated as cash {om hedges were custanding (20217 -~
£1,301m, largely nrslaton to parchases of USD (27,2582 ar~d sa'es rJ.‘ EUR E21amt weniy vary g mgiunties up —o Septemiber
2024 Weghted averags hedge rites for thess contracis are GBPUSD 1.271, EUSUSD. 1.01 2~d LEPtUP 1.16. Weighted averags
hiadigs rates {or the Cross-currency sveeps are GEPUSD: 1.70 and GBPELR: 1 26. Covmod.ty denvet ves designated o5 cash flove
edyes -elated to a rarge of underlyirg hadged items, v 1h vaiy:ng matunt o3 up w Jenuary 2024

The aralys s of the Groan's fore gr ourrency exposura 10 nancial assets and heon'l 23 Dy cunency of denamination s as jollows,

R 2022
Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
£m fm fm £m £fm
Finanrial assats ’ '
Cash end cash equvalente 1 78 10 38 127
Trade and othet recenvahies - 55 54 24 133
1 133 64 62 260
Financial liabilities
Tradse and o e payalles (29) {512} {38) {(17) (696}
Unsecured loars and cuerorafia - {80} - - {90}
{29] {602) (8] {17) {686)
Currency derivatives
GIGss 2T CUis receivahble a3 2,143 93 256 2,590
Gross amoJnts payable {2} {202} {428} {57} (689)
91 1,841 {330} 199 1,901
83 1,472 244 _ 1,475
LSt ke Tot!
1y fr B for
Financial assets
Casr and cashi aguivalerss 1 ol 22 40 [
Trads ard othe recercples - 23 45 19 123
1 120 67 59 247
Financial liabilities
Trade and oter payah'es {19 281 {281 18] {44
Linses red loars ard overdrafis - (218 - 13 {221)
11e 1599 i3l 11 {GES)
Currency derivatives
Gross armoanis raceivable 67 1,374 g7 221 P ERY
Gross amc.iis peyatle 2 133 BIChE 1201 1316}
60 1,247 1233 171 1,238
12 762 (2073) 219 820
The followng vapor eschange rates zpolies duing the year:
AT el rge Croming e
2022 2022
LS dotta- T e - B KV
Eure 1.18 1.14
Austratan dola 1.80 1.70
”J‘.’\ g sersiivity ana'ye:s Lu T"\at a 10 I [ "—-'cn,p‘? trarszcuonal currencies agansl
.w(:ml CUrTEnEEs vwo ol Ty T|.p ar tlamm CELES At wiar g

weses, A ein ar
\";E-ake-'ed agantat local functic

Croup's:

Lrg e n

by 1TeE DE v Tora se
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Sensitivity analysis

2022 2022
impact on impact on
profit for total
the period eqguity
. .o Em _. &m B
- 6 5]
19 172 2 87
(19) {41) 12 gl
i o . ) S 16 - 22 ”12 . ) 24

d o transiate the resuis
i “r but moposte

& tax If sl

mpact woad be fem oIl L‘Of t

2022
impact on I
profit for
the period
Fm

I} . T : i, . o B 22 L R S
USs dollar (18) (19
Eurn {3} 2

Austrahzn dollar , 16) 11

g} Credit risk
Crzeit ;.s‘r k3 sk tha rrurm—\p‘ rhes 1o fmancal trarsact ons cas not perform acced rg o t. The

t
es are poronaly exposed o counterparty crecit nsk when gealing vt therr o mers, and Tom ceriam

mantea ate credd ‘A”ioc e of frascial ¢ enTed Lv TIoSE TInal C -‘;\ Aoty . sosdve far
veles oy counterparty at 17 Seotaimber 2022, T} DD CONSIGEIS 115 MIZNNTUNT B¥00S, 78 T Cred NEL 10 e
2022
£m
Casn zrd cash gguivalents ) 2121
Coarens asset Invesiments 4

1,667

Trade ang othe
Ciher non-curren

29 73

fivana lo
desgr dI&'_I \.d“h flowy Redang relat anships 415

e sianificant majority of casa balarces and short-term deposits are he'o w.eh strong nvestmeri-arade banks or

arcial rstitutions.

The Group wses changes rorcdil reings ard other rretres to idenuly sigrficant changes 1o the financal prof le of
s courierparties
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeaks ended 17 Septemher 2022

26. Financial instruments corntingod

Counterparty risk profile and management

The tab'e balow analyees the Group’s current 2 avestnmeriz, cash chuivalerts and derivalive assets by ciedit exposure.
2022
Derivatives
Currency Cross-
Current asset Cash derivative currency
investments equivalents assets swaps Commodities Total
_ S g . fm  fm im0 fm - Em
; - - 293 2 - 10 31
A 4 955 103 22 - 1,084
=R - 157 - - - 157
28 - 9 - - - 9
3 - 16 - - - 16
Nt rated - 11 - o 316 326
Total 0 A S ?447 T j105 7 22 325 "1, 903
2021
Derivatives
Currancy Cross-
Current asset Cash derivative currency
investments eqguivalents assets swaps Commodities
Le < £m £fm £m £m £m
Al g 77 - - 2
3 1,148 21 7 1
- 319 3 5 -
- 19 - - -
5 _ - _
_ - _ - 37
o o o . 32 1516 24 32 40
va fgve included cash egueealerts in e ahove discos, g and Mave rerrerenien Tne oF O Y2 CoMmipar

75

Cash af £674m 12021 — £759M) has | > ondamand

ad finm this analvs s

Trade and other receivables
S griticant corcentatiors of credht nsx are very lins ted as a mesuit ¢ the Grour's large and
abhshed credit policy applied oy each business unds: wmch “he ¢eel status of each

ner pase. Tae Group has
TS eV exﬂxed before credit

Tius neludes exterral credit evaluations wehere pessile 370 in 30mc cases bank - =it irnis are
grificant o tigh-nsk customers, von Ch regsent INe NtaxinLm amou st perr d tu nE ouls T': cing W thout

[N

o

approval from the approprate leve -J rnaragement. Qutstarding deits g7 contnud y morito by e
reviewad on a regular bass, ard ateast annually, Custonrers thet fal 1o meet tre Group’s bwzchn‘.a:'k

Cre:Jm”rrvwws:s may only transsct on @ 0 epaymiant basis. Acoiegste exposures are mon tored at Groun ievetd

o Where
2 a securad clan,

Many customrars have boen rarsacing wath the Group for many vears and the incidence o bad delats ras e
appropnate, gowds are scld subject o retention of tile so that, N tre ew:rt of ~or-payment, the Groun may
The Group doess not tyr : viespect of trece ard othear recevat:les,

20 o0 krown events, and
vy of the \JO JSICN CONTRIISES

ciud ra trace and oter 1ecenabies b
~ified, hased on metoncal data The m

NGRS ‘H&tc-

Expootad o
" sloncs

O NEUST et
v raes rw‘ lf': count

s evperiations are armended

e may rob.

027
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DRI region of @ g R veas

e reaeinrum exros S (o cract nek for i 1] Liher receivahies at the pepcr!l ~o da

s

2022 20!

£m ) L
LK 579 142
Eurcpe & Afnica 385 =068
Tha i\mﬂ"'"a% 230 164
Agiz Pact 373 3

-
U

t.
[

3587

Trade recervzbles can be araivsed a3 follows

2022 S0

R o ___g_r_'n o |

o T T oo e T 1,129 2932

g Tonth past Cue 137 100

SHE anu oo moniths past cue 31 i

weaard nree montte past due 10 6

hlare than hires ~ionths oest due 21 G4
Expecied 'css nrovison {27) 120

1311 1071

= net of the followa-g expecion 10ss Drovisone

2022

I o . o _Emo
balares 24
charged 10 the income statemant &

L QN EXCRAnGe 2

(h

weere wrtten off drecily w0 the ionome st

Tire neogrephical amd ousiness | e cor
dlocaty, meants that itis e prac

1 rEEN00 10 0TIE recEahles not for rg natt of trace receiveil’es 3 sl g appioach nas beer sk
oeses. No s gnfeant expectied ¢eant foss has froeninertified.

Tre directors Lons der that the carrying amount of trade and othar receivanlas aparosrmates “ar va

Cash and cash equivalentg
RBank g relgnonships s
Dar<Ing requirerments. ine uudi m. r,i .ste nstitabiens ale eontcied ¢ i "__, az o Ooo
choice of hank, coerng of bank eccounts and repainaton of funds must e 1; rd with L: oUp Tr"aq

recorded mrparments aganst cash or e

resees’ day-lo-day
J‘urps irriimif'g

[518

nor have any 1 eoovaral

h} Liquidity risk

. qL w1y nsk s the nisk aith s Tnancial habilities gs
suificent

s o uncenmitted

nter difficuity 10 mesting is ob
vialdue Groop T NnoNItoMg rnd Mmaragrie i('mu‘
adroom nits comim med ic =gaen or abnerval requirerner

ac-ities 1o ass stavth skortterm ﬂ ‘“rimo TEDLLIETIENTS,

o by eg;ch bueine 85, winch are reviewed
i:\ir 99' are forecast each perod, and vanal

-ble neadroom s mon
terly, ormore often

sted ang explared Parts

S AredEUry pUices are 1 Llace to maErtan 3 airong

C antial stabily T s ncly ' . mg acce

conmtted credit fac: These pohoes are | 455 O
developmrent of the Dusress,

Ceials of the Gicun's b5
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

26. Financial instruments cunémued

ey table anal

25 therm 1o camyrg

ameounts,

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade ana othier payables

Scouedioans

Urzecured loans e~d overdrafts

Lease sb hes

Cefarred consderation

Derivative financial liabilities

» Cuyrrency dernvatives iexcluding cross-
CLITENCY &) Hirel payn

Tves et paymients)

5!

< Interest rate dernvai ves nat paynenis
Total financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Troce and orer payahies

Secured fogny

erred consdarat:
Derivative financial liabilities
Corercy Genvanivas (exe Liing oroes-
Linet paymrents)

! i/es inetl payneris)
Total financial liabilities

rodity derivati

Tng above tables do ot
her 2022

vsas the contractual Lndiscouried cash Povs

Due

between

Bue within € manths

& months  and 1 year

[ £m £m
20 (2,623} (28)
19 - {1
19 (153} {17}
12 (197} {214}
21 (4} {12}
(15) (2

(170) (m

(3) -

{3,165) (275}

20 ERCNRST 120)
19 - -
19 13200 1
10 73 11E9)
21 15 -
15} 2}

{121 1d)

".’1';’13"}_ . 1224

Bue
between
1and 2
years
£m

(103}
{409}
(1}

{1
{2)

(516}

Guie,

re zting 1o finarcia: ali'ties at the Relance sneer date ad

2022
Due
between
2and5 Due after Contracted Carrying
years 5 years amount amount
£fm fm fm fm
- - {2,651  (2,851)
- - (1 M
(21) (470} (774} {636)
(1,115) {2,400) {4,335} {3,252)
3 - (2o {20}
- - (18) {22)
- - (173} {173}
- - {3) 3
{1,149} (2,?70) {7,975} (6,758)

17,930 L Aa5)

- - i1 {4

175 - (47 1051
11,043 7595 1,306 13,281
- - (14} i1-h

- - 174 1€)

_ - 116 16

i 12.5158] 16,6961 15,652

o iorecast data for hamlnes which may be nourred inthe fodure Dot vebuch veere not coniracted

The pr rozal reasons {or differerces betveeen iseoLnted cash fiows 372 COURDT pRymenis on
tiowich the Grogp s 2 dy comtmiied, future interest payments o the Group's lease labilties, and cash
we finzncial instrurents which e ol algned vt ther Tair va'ue,
i} Borrowing facilities
1n2 Group Fas substaial borroveicg faciliees available to it The undrawr corinutied faciiizs avai'able 2117 Septarrber 2027, n

respect of which ali condions precedert hiavae been met, amounted tn £1,5667m (20271 — £1,713500]

Com
Fi.iic Bond dae n 2034
US or.ezte g acemrent
filev

Ceher

214

Facility

Asscciated British Foods ple unnl Repare 27027

2022
Drawn
£m

390
87

Undrawn
£m

1,500

2021
T e -
297 297 -
iz 12 55
3 1 2
_ L L < P =



Hnconmmtted fachities avalenle gt 17 Septanther 2092 were:

2022
Faciiity Drawn Undrawn
- : : , ——— L EW o Em En S
weymarket ines 100 - 100 o -

o

:
CI
Cooe

188 a9 89 157 G3 a4
‘ 36 2 25
Ch. 39 - 37
Other 162 40 121
2}25 14t 257

g aise E11hr (2021 - 1 14m) of unarawven
r ke norral course oF SUSINESS,

JO‘J{! 1 3
recit and gu

Jor duein 2034 f’f‘luc:"ed ac ceferred Prancg costs totaling £10m which have bzen
ECITE00 Ll 1S L

sk Cenim oy which matures in Juns 2027 Tre
BrGining MIS3LE "0 0

] JD, rernainir g Mr tion of 1 Jy.:e nd an ave

“eyoling O < as £87m of privats
“‘I'L songhinvesiors i the US sre Brrope which are do 7 Septernher 2022
»age fed coupen of 2.92% . The other s.gn “.cant core commilied

T

fomied by tte 2anys =neugly,) aithough can theoetca y be vathdraen

Uncomimitted bark borreoning “acat es are normaly rez
lary 1me.

He 27 {or g summany of the Grawp's guarantass An
1Al Reviswy on raoes 60w 63

el
@

COMMMITIents ard to
potbe B

zfer 1o rote 9 for dea s of the Greun's cat
ezsmient of the Group's cutient lguidity pos

OIS given

)
7]

23

i Capitai management
Tng capal structie of the Grogp s
mansoemMent, ca TCULES 1

28521, The conzaldated st 5
overdrafts Short- end med urr, slurdimg regu re
ArQ Lroen o, vath g -arce of courterpartes
wrivale placement notes and commiited syro'cated |

ol e Gron f‘ 5 Lr"llo|
ders, wota L EHJ 2021 -
oty anag ~ote 12 uroy.des (19‘ s and

_'1 ot movd cvardraft Voo mitied
srding s souces from the 24 Fubie Eond,

veson, creditor and narre — o enal'a
oy s et 0 the ardinary course of ness the Drard
""j ESITOA o be we Lo der !

on and

-m a sirory capiial base s

e TV,

VEED Gy

ares i the market o
mdrl &1 The Group cozs not

Fromt
s3t sty &

o captal maragemenT dunng the year, Neotner re Corrpsny nor anv of its
A capnal recurenents.

27. Contingencies
_itysten ard other proceedinas aganst the Giowd are nos cors dered mae

‘nthe context of these fina-ca tements,

contracts 10 guarantes the indebtedness of other Gioup © 1ES, 1

| las eleciad 1o accowet for them as s.oah in accordance with \FRS 4
tinger liskiity ot such tme as 1t becorres probalie (rat the re evart
o make a payiment uncer (ne guarartee.

Wihere Group ccrr:pah':es anter into fin
Lrown considers these 10 DS NSLrance ararge

thes respect, the guarantes cont-act s treated as &
Group compeny ssuirg the guaran 2z vl be regl o ed

Az at 17 Soptemnbar 2022, Group corrparies have praviasd guarantees o the ordinary couse of b
2021 - 1,857
ir* ”u21, a Tnal court ruleq in favous of 11 e Group's Ovaltin

CThe comnt carc
ton of 2 2 eillic: Trar bah
~d at the end o 20709 Tra

aritent.

opliers in wwj“* of ] L."""_fg\. s disp

&
- £38 i The relevant contras
cob yel recorded an i
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

vestinents Lonited, with the trustees of

shareln

“ha Goo der s werth
he barﬁ:'d fesien Foun db‘.ow ano aith e tm nlhc:r nciyad H azls who i-:uld sha Cowvpary. Furither detairs of the
v are included i ngte 29 The Growp has & re ated parly -e'2t yeeil 1S 3s500IatES 2nd joint
e party Hansact ons entered inte wy e

contrellng shaeh
ventures (ses nole 291 -?W oth its directurs. In the coarse of no mal ope:auans
Gro i veontacted on e ao's larath bas s,

haterial transac wes with related sz

2022
£000

by J =] (,r*n‘ cany

) espem of sanvicos p ovider

<ty s Limites
: Ly unddertaxin as
D e ‘u’JJ et by Associeted Brit'en Foods
nitrustees of the Garlie d Wes o Foun
i) orectors of Witt ngton Investnents ©
H"cl thar ciase “aruly
i drecters of the Cornoany vielio are ot trasteess of e Toundat.on and are not direcions
ngion nvestrenis | mited
o sube thary urdeakings on norma

930 335

nd received noa beceiicial capaci :
i an d her close “amily 1 12,361 1,570

cunaation

uted who are not trustees of 10

2,322 =00

128 14
trading 1erms 48 55
SEes 1 COTPAmEes T COMMon Fey mardagerant personnel on nooma. ad g terms P 16,891 14,880

Lris due from eompar 25 wizth con'mon Key managemier T personna il 2,898 1,405
54,111 44,505

uf VY

s ra

Laoeintventures oo nonmal tracag tenrs
o assecetes on rormal radiag tlerms 73,360 46,407
dres on ngrmal trad.ng terms 436,467 261,287
s on rormzl tredirg terms 13,879 16,574
37,865 EICRSRR
9,151 033
30,214 2250

hases from assonis
. from ot v
Arnocts due from gsseciates
AMCLITs fue o oint v

te
L

ACIC

Aprounts due from jomt vantures mcude £29ma2021  £32m1of °r e rece vables isee rate 1.0, The rama nder of the

bolavce s treong es Al it £4m0 2021 - £t of the finance 'ease 7e
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29. Group entities

Control of the Group
The lergest grou
\“\f\ﬂiatwf'\gtcrw’y the accounts of «
company, 3 areorporated 11 Great Sritar

cetrmens Limaed
Tis tre Ltimate ho'dirg

BRI ""T\'“U*Oi* I
rd e CF113UZ

conan! datec wation [
25 Heuse, Croven Way, Co
ﬂg}\;anf,,

A7 Sepamrber 2022 Vg i diary, Howard nvestients Linuted, held 431,51
12027 =131 021 - 31570 of U‘-e :r):ai isseed ordingy stare cenital of Assocatoed

Ertish Foods ple,

o0, Ced Westor Foundat on {1e Foundanen's, ars
Lirg certain members of e Wesion Tamly who o
Clewf e \WWestan ard Er“"‘- .’f N0E are, under
FOL‘“ iaticn and are the
nd “‘duc 5 ‘mc

";:-r‘w a ‘d‘\\‘ ugh

ol arehcideis of '.“e Con
Compaty Erd meludaeg
chng in FO"‘C"—‘

@5 s m=ld within the
Aetest and therafore allow
2 b ave d“\_ e "“rﬁ“ew
the Groeup's

rholdings
nthe Group's

Ahistef the C :
Groun exnept v -hme
for stuations wiero
ol shars, thes !=
i squity hiclding. Shares m ABF [vestmenis ol
subsidianes me ovned by members of the A
frigncial slietements.

CERTaUES e
adate subsic
antage holdings
Aszoclated |
¢ arown Al s

oV EN e i
| Foods pic A
ChAres ure Corsn

G
:

BE
L3
ABF
ASF
UKL Lo e ipreny cus v Aien Teomn s
L.'I'w'f"di
ires L )
o Bake
TANASCCLandl Liien
s AGeL T L e
Tl
SEFERLF ronee [
CF Crmgv L
AEF Frod Teovimeaatmze 15 arniten

o
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities continued
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities coafinusd

Germany

Fu b
LB Frzy

[RACTRTes
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AL
France
o 12
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities corlinugg
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

29. Group entities contimiad

Joint ventures
ve Group's ;ort vaniures as a1 17 Septenber 2022 s given below
ts Lsing the coulty ma

Algtof

stateren i wod of ao Iat]
Cngon
Furweand Sgronunny L
GF Paloatars Lar
GH Cran L 50 B
. . CR
GH Cran Mo g 8
150 Hiren SN L
o Hlarys
FrrEGne b 0%,
Fenrs Lnred [SIEA
50
gge. T9 Oy
a0y - France
SI00N
DO
;
507
50°%%
vagro Lid o]
Australia
Fortnem & 33%

Chile
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Associates
tof ihe Grodip's tesas gl 17 Septeryioer 2022 05 given
alen ents using the equity rrethnrd o accounting.

Ve Gicur's finarcis!

Al

I
435
205 i o
42
e, BULISRR R S0
Mexico
Jmears Ust Wb Lo 145,
o Crl R o B - . "
Australia
¢4 : 207 434
e Pork Frybw 20
I-dge Bacoe Py Lid 207
et oz 50,
. Philippines
K i
Bahrain
St b
50+,
i oLl Rral ST
C CT PR s, o o AEe
ingapore
i N u
A3
3, fakil
30

Cearnbow Tz

sbuiers L

THailand

A

e

5O

Associated British Foods plc ~m




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

e Comry
siaiutory guarantss front Alsociated British Foods i, © i
H\e Act relztirg (o the audht of ndivdual sceounis i resnact of :I‘u— fnareial yeas ended

3 Act 2006 ithe "Act’), an it subeot to oo

ﬂ
@
=
i
it
7
[

1
enem m oM e
17 Gepterroer ~OZ

Ten i .
A D orstee - 00622561
AB . China Ly toe TZWUDO ] Q7267122
) i 03468366 05658745
0959162 13985724
04560120 a : CO140371%
3369749 RTURNE B b | 00348510
Sdvue NG Feopertas | o “137
04600969
C20078a3
021000856

43708802

Q017211
05350813
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Q039527
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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Note A

2022
Etorral rovonue roim cortraing QLG neIses 3,735 2,016 1,722 1,827 7,697 - 16,597
Aduates oneral ng pront 399 162 47 159 756 (88) 1,435
Adiisted operet ng margin e 10.7% B8.0% 2.7% 8.7% 9.8% 8.4%
2021

siemal rever e fiom continung Busimessos 3.583 1,650 1,637 1 5,B93 3 13.86
A cperautg prodit 413 152 i 221 1701 1.0

ayvrent of jon retention s NE TOn eS - - - /]

renIy et of an

2 9% 10.0 &

Eaternal reverns fiom contnuing Dus nesses

3,593 1,650 1,557 1, 5,593 3 1388

30 54 8 & - a7
3679 1700 1885 1035 SEU3 3 12,82
3% 41106 4193 4200 27

2022
Aciusted operating profit at cotasl rates 399 152 47 159 756 {88} 1,435

2021
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Impact of ‘cre gn ey change 5
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30. Alternative performance measures ooy
Note C

2022

Aadjusied earr’:r‘}gs [i(:'r'sr‘wa'e'\ipel“ce}* ’ 131.1
Dividerds “elating o the vaar ipence) — excluding specia 43.7

Dwiderd cover ) . - o o B ~3.00

Note D

2022

A e%.qlmﬁmem S 7 ‘ ' 680
89
769

2022
SuiLt e Em

perty, plant and el pirant 680
e of mtargb!
s 0l 5anginanss, loint ve
baidiary andsrtening frem non-contrallieg nierests

21Ny estTerts 7

eS8 370 35560 318S 154

Note F

2022 RV
P i £m L
Adiisted cparat rg profn 1.435 1,011
Charged to silusted ¢

SIS 'R

521 SR
24 26
281 288

Adjusted ERITDA I 2,261 1,260

fies {1,764} i1.2e0

Met cebt inctuding 2¢

Firancal feve s

Note G
2022
£m H
o nefore lease lishilines ' ' 1,488 1,501
wiang debt 400 72
| fyirg cedit facitias 1,500 1.088
15 oty 7 3,388 3063
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Company balance sheet

at 17 Sentember 2022

Dehiors

2022 2021
- Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangihle assets 1 15
Right-of-use assers 2 9 12
Investments in subsidiares 3 1,287 720
1,296 747
Current assets s
* due within one year 4 3,163 2,576
+ due stter one vear 4 1] 146
Employee benefits assets — due after one year 5 1,366 533
Derivative assats 30 44
Cash and cash equivalents 1,408 1,653
6,065 5,052
Creditors: amounts falling due wathin one year
Bank loans and ovardrafts — unsectirerd {2) {239}
{ masg liahilities 2 (3) {3)
Other creditors 7 {4,013) {3.322)
Derivative liabilities {3) -
{4,021) {3.554)
Net current assets 2,044 1,498
Totaj assets less current liabilities 3,340 2,245
Craditars: amannts falling die after nne year
Banlt Joona  unaceurcd {481} (741
Lonsa abiities bl 7} (i)
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 7 {196) (243)
Fmployaa benefits liabilities 5 {22) {27)
Deferred tax liabiities 5 {324) (137)
B {1,030) {502}
Net assets 2,310 1,743
Capntal and reserves
Issued capital 8 45 45
Capital redemption reserve 8 2 2
Hedging rezarve 9 - 4
Profit and loss reserve 8 2,263 1,692
2,310 1,743

Equity shareholders’ funds

The Company’s profit for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022 was £426m (53 weeks ended 18 September 2021 - loss of £44mi.

The financial staternents on pages 233 to 233 were approvad by the Board of directors on 8 November 2022 and were signed on

its behalf by:

SN

Michael MecLintock Johh Base

Chairman

Associated British Foods ple Annual Report 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company statement of changes in equity
far the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1,560

Total comprehensive income

Loss for lhe perod recognised in the nociy e staten oot - - - 10 44
of dafired berefit schemes - - Bad 5,34

aw associated with defined berefit sanenies - - - (142 1147)

Al ng ke reclass fied tonrofit o '0ss - - - 207 402

Other coirprehensve noents - - - 202 10z
Total compr=hensive rcone - - - 528 5hE

Transactions with owners

Divdencs pe'd 1o ecuily sharebold=rs - - 4o 019)
Not movarnent i1 own shares he'd - - - 17 17
tal transacuons v th owrers - - - 132} 132)

IS
o

S}

F

1 . —_
&)

Il

~

P

(%)

Total comprehensive income

Preiit for e perod tecognised i hie eonte saleent - - - 428 126
RS e AaSUISIT - - - 72 742
B 55 - - - (156! 186}
temis that veill rot e reclassified to profd orics - - - sl 5E6

flowy hade. g nosrion - ] - (R

with movenisnts i ey e - - 1 - 1
- - {2 i

Diher con viel ensive noome - - () 556 552
total compretensive Ncore _ - ) 937 78

Iransactions with owners
Diadends paid 1o ecuty s
el mevemeitt noewen shares
Tasal franes N& wWith owrers - - - i

Balance as at 17 Scptember 2022 7 o _ a5 -2 - 2,263 2,310

e D
N A P
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Accounting palicies
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

1. Intangible assets

T
i ~ _E.'“
Cost
4418 September 2027 14 Q 23
Cisecsals i1y - 114
At 17 September 2022 - a 9
Amortisation
AU 18 September 2021 - 15} 5]
Aenert sation - 1] 1
At 17 September 2022 - {9} {9)
Net book value
S0 18 Septentber 2021 i1 7 15
At 17 September 2022 o _ o - ~ o -
The goodva | balance was dispozea of to a subsidary undeiiar ry et book va'ue
2. Leases
Right-of-use assets
-
o . e
Cost
AL IS Septenher 2027 18 3
At 17 Septemhber 2022 ) 18 18
Depreciation
A8 Septemmbar 2021 WGl 15
Degprecianion for tna year 12 13
At 17 Septemhber 2022 (9} {3)
Net book value
At 13 September 2021 12 17
At 17 September 2022 N 8 9
Lease liabilities
Cost
£ 13 Septenbher 2027 T 4
Repayment of ‘ease labvlines 12 I
At 17 September 2022 10 10
Currers 3 3
Mon-currert / i
L 10 10
3. Investments in subsidiaries
L1168 Septeispe:r 2027 - - ' 720
e 567
At 17 September 2022 S 7 7 7 1,287
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022

4, Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year
AT NS ¢ oy subs daries

Other cebiors

Carporat’on tax recoverahle

Amounts falling due after one year

Arounts gwed by

osidiares

1% creciorg cansidar rat the catrying emount of decters approxmaies

5. Employee entitlements

2022
£fm

3,104
18
41

3,163

38

2022 2022 e 2022
assets tiabitities ‘ net
fm o : ) MEII“‘I . ﬁn]

Reconciliation of changes in assets and liabilities

At begnrng of vear 4,315 2,781 {3,718)
LrreaT servioe Cest - - {34)

NIR'OYGE Cort DL AIoNS 6 6 {6)

ulicna 27 30 -

: {136} 16 138

2fvICE COST -

t o rcome/lexns:

i
ELLTT QN B0

CLEreSt Nenmn {552) 617 -

~O Tror changss 1N g tarcig!

"5 5

T+ T DM

~ - 1,325
paris ra from changes 0 zemrograchie

phions - - 11
snee ossEsioaing on cobemve lishlinegs - (42)

Atend of yaar 7 3,735 1.3%b (2,391)

Tne net pengion asset of £1,344m comprises a

of £22m.

Further detalis of ne Asscoeed Brins Focas Person S

6. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A118 September 2021

Amount charged 1o the meome statament
Amount charged 10 eguiTy

Disposals -

At 17 September 2022 ) {336)

7. Other creditors

Amounts falliﬁg_ due within one year
Accrugls and deferred reome

Amicunts cued 10 auhs ' diares
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e 1

i {42}

3779 1,344

2022
£m

67
3,946
4,013

196

{34)

[ERS

0}

5ue

fusned sohema with a suwrplus of £1,566m and an crdundsa scheme wih 3 deficit
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8. Capital and reserves

Share capital
wribar F021 and 17 Seple
shargs of B S, each cany. Ny cne

the Conpany's sseec ard Tully paid chare capaai conpr see 781,674 18

CTotal norung! vdloe was £45m,

Capital redemption reserve
Tre ren-distnbutable capntal redempion reserve arcee folia

weng redempnen of two nothon £1 cofenied shgras

Dividends

Cetals of dividenaos pad and prorcsad sre orev ded nrole 8 10 the consaldated Fnzrcal statements,

Share-based payments
Cewmis of the Comeany's eouy-zetiles sbare Based payinert 2'2ns are provican 1o note 2

Tranc e stalerents,

Hedging reserve

The Fedoirg reserve con i £8s & I chanpes Lthoy are elantive casn flow ,
net of amourts ooy 'ed ﬁ'c" the Fodgmng Irence Ll Srawlen Tie madgsd harsaction

IS NO ONJer € uJected 0 aoour.,

9. Contingent liabilities

Where the Company enters irio | 35 G otner comipanies within 1s greup,
e Coprnany corsiders hese o uu e BrranGen The ¢ & tract is reated
. B SN S A S A o

The Compesry had provided £484m of gusrariees in the ordnary course of pusness as 4l 17 Septentbar 2022 12027 — £33 m0
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Progress report
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Company directory
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